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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREER
Turnover =1
Retail TE 24,274,496 19,751,940
Other businesses HMZE® 738,843 804,576
25,013,339 20,556,516
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable  AQFHEAE ABEER
to owners of the Company w=AL(ER)
Continuing operations S AE S 1,060,359 486,365
Discontinued operation RIERR AT (47,679) (34,039)
1,012,680 452,326

Earnings per share — Basic and diluted

BREF - EXREE

66.8 cents{l
71.8 centsAll

15.0 centsAll
15.0 centsAlll

30.0 cents{lll

For profit for the year R T 149.5 cents{l

For profit from continuing operations FBEEEBn T 156.5 cents
Dividend per share BREE

- Interim — R 20.0 cents{l

— Final - k5 40.0 cents il
Total dividend per share for the year 2FERIREEE 60.0 cents L
Dividend payout ratio TRELE = 40%
Equity attributable to owners of the AREEE AELER

Company 12,204,072
Equity per share SRER $18.02 ¢

Turnover - Continuing operations

EXE - BHEEEER

45%

11,890,543
$17.557¢C

+118%
+40%

+124%

+124%
+118%

+3%
+3%

Return on equity

& [ K

Year
Fn 24,274 739
2023 | | 25013
2022 19,752 805 20,557 %
2021 19,922 2,066/ 21,988
2020 13,098 1,900/ 14,998
2019 16,258 1454 17,712
0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 25,000 30,000
HK$'M
’ M Retail & Other businesses H fth 275 ‘ BEAT

Profit attributable to owners of the Company - Continuing operations

ARREBARERT - FACEER

Year
EH
2023 _ 1,060
2022 | 486
2021 | 744
2020 | 639
2019 | 1,000
0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200
HK$'M
HEBT
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

| am pleased to report that in 2023 the Group emerged from the
darkness of the pandemic to record a profit of HK$1,013 million, an
increase of 124% over the year before.

That brings us back to roughly the level of 2018. The post-pandemic
rebound, in Mainland China especially, clearly lacked momentum.

We look forward to the growth-oriented policies from the central
government bearing fruit. We are poised to welcome new guests from
the Mainland under the relaxed travel schemes. We wait in anticipation
for the Hong Kong government's effort to revive the economy to make
progress.

That landlords in Hong Kong will empathise with retailers and
restauranteurs to keep in check their urge to raise rentals is something
to be devoutly wished. Any relief to the problem of labour shortage
would likewise be welcome.

But above all, we look to ourselves to move forward with enhancements
in logistics, marketing, merchandising and cost control. We continue to
expand our store-networks and markets, selectively and judiciously.

| am confident that with the relentless support of our staff, our
customers, our investors and other stakeholders, we can continue to
grow as we move into and beyond our 90th Anniversary. | thank them
all.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 90, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 50 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 77, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. Mr. CHOW is the cousin of Dr. Gerald CHOW King
Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and the father of Ms. Genevieve
CHOW Karwing. He is a director of Everwin Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. CHOW has been with
the Group for over 40 years, having been the Group General Manager
and the Chairman since 1998 and 2013 respectively. He was the
Chairman of the Home Affairs Bureau to its Advisory Committee on Arts
Development, and is currently a member of the Culture Commission
and a member of the Board of Governors of City University of Hong
Kong Foundation. Mr. CHOW was made an Honorary Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts; and he serves as a Director of
the Board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited,
which is a not-for-profit organisation. He is a member of the Board of
Governors and a member of the College Council of the UOW College
Hong Kong.

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 67, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 35 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He
is a director of Speed Star Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW
was an expert member of the “Managing World Cities” Programme of
the Faculty of Social Sciences, The University of Hong Kong. He was
a panel member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs
Bureau, HKSAR until its cessation of operation in 2018, a member of
the Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre until its cessation of operation
in 2022, a former member of the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong
Government (2009-2011) and a former council member of The Better
Hong Kong Foundation (2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in the
Central and Western District Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011). He is
an honorary member of the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’ Mess and
the founding President of the Central and Western District Fire Safety
Ambassador Honorary Presidents’ Association of the Hong Kong Fire
Services Department. Dr. CHOW has been a voting member of the Po
Leung Kuk Advisory Board since 1997. He is also a member of the Hong
Kong Strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 70, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is an independent non-executive director of six other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.,
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited,
Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited, Dongyue Group Limited
and China SCE Group Holdings Limited. He served as an independent
non-executive director of Texhong International Group Limited until 25
May 2023. Mr. TING is an accountant by profession and has more than
40 years of experience in accounting, auditing and management.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 83, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer and
a Hong Kong Notary Public, he is also an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A
Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 66, is an Executive Director
of the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director
of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been
with the Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become the
Group Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the younger
brother of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He has
experience in real estate in Canada. Mr. CHOW's key responsibilities
include the product development and staff learning and development
of the Group’s jewellery business in Greater China. He is the Chairman
of Jewellery Advisory Committee and a member of Product Promotion
Programme Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
a Vice-chairman of the Quality Tourism Services Association and a
member of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee under
the Qualifications Framework of the Education Bureau.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He serves as an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Yuexiu
Property Company Limited and Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited.
Mr. LEE served as an independent non-executive director of Medicskin
Holdings Limited and Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited until 15 November
2022 and 28 September 2023 respectively. Mr. LEE continues to
serve as an independent non-executive director of Chong Hing Bank
Limited (“Chong Hing"”) after its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited was withdrawn on 30 September 2021. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited,
a holding company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA,
DocHKAPA, Cavaliere (Order of Merit, Italy), Chevalier (Order of Arts
and Letters, France), aged 86, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organisations. Dr. LO is the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Arts Festival Programme Committee and the Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Arts Festival Executive Committee. Dr. LO is also the
Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He ceased to be an independent
non-executive director of Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited with effect
from 31 December 2023.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 78, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of The University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organisations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing, aged 39, is an Executive Director of
the Company since 1 November 2021. She joined the Group in 2010
and is the Group's General Manager of Omni-channel Development.
Ms. CHOW is a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group
since August 2023. Ms. CHOW is a daughter of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing and a niece to both Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing. She is a director of Everwin Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Ms. CHOW leads the
Group’s e-Commerce business and is responsible for the development
of strategic initiatives to better position the Group to deliver a holistic
omni-channel shopping experience. Since 2018, Ms. CHOW has also
been the Brand Director of EMPHASIS and PROMESSA, overseeing the
branding, business development and product management. Ms. CHOW
holds a dual Bachelor of Arts Degree in Science of Earth Systems and
Economics from Cornell University. She is a GIA Applied Jewellery
Professional (A.J.P.) and GIA Diamonds Graduate. She is an Executive
Committee member of The Hong Kong Retail Management Association.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HSU Rockson, aged 54, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 June 2023. Mr. HSU is the Chief Strategy Officer and Chief Risk
Officer of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited. He was the Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of ZA Bank Limited from May 2019 to
February 2023 and the Chief Risk Officer of Chong Hing Bank Limited
from September 2015 to May 2019. Mr. HSU had held senior executive
positions in various banks. He has more than 30 years of banking
experience in foreign and local banks, and possesses sound knowledge
in credit risk management in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
various business segments. Mr. HSU graduated from New York
University, U.S.A. and obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance
and International Business.

Mr. Quentin WONG Kwun Shuen, CPA, aged 42, is the Company
Secretary of the Company and the Financial Controller of the Group.
Mr. WONG joined the Group in November 2022 and has nearly 20
years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial management.
Mr. WONG is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Economics and
Econometrics, Master of Arts Degree in Risk Management in University
of Nottingham as well as a Master of Business Administration in Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 71, is the Group's General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China) and a director of a subsidiary within the
Group. Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over 50 years. He is well-
experienced in sales management. Apart from managing the retail
operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is also responsible for
the development of operational strategies in Greater China. He also
serves as the Vice-chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellers” & Goldsmiths’
Association Ltd. and the Chief Supervisor of The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association.
Mr. LAU is a founder member and the First Vice-chairman of The
Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths’ Association of Hong Kong Limited. He
also serves as Honorary President, President or Consultant of various
organisations in the industry.

Ms. Cecilia YIM Sze Nga, aged 48, is the Group’s Chief Market
Strategy Officer. Ms. YIM joined the Group in December 2013 and has
over 25 years of experience in marketing communication and brand
management. Ms. YIM is responsible for the multi-brand development
strategy, brand experience and marketing communication in the Group.
Ms. YIM's experience covered a variety of industries including digital
advertising strategy and creative services with one of the world’s
top three marketing communication groups, as well as the Regional
Marketing Director of one of the top three wine and spirit companies in
Asia Pacific. Ms. YIM holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree in digital
graphic communication from School of Communication of Hong Kong
Baptist University.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

Following the end of epidemic-related restrictions in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau, total jewellery and watch sales of the Group in
the first half of 2023 rebounded significantly by 31% year-on-year. In
the second half of the year, the pace slackened, especially in Mainland
China, to 15% vyear-on-year. The growth was fueled by the robust
demand for gold by consumers which continued unabated despite the
rising gold price.

Although we have expanded online sales into countries like the United
States, Britain, Malaysia and Australia, our key markets are Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. Our retail networks in the key
markets widened with a net increase of 55 stores, which are mostly
located in Mainland China.

Gross profit margin increased slightly by 0.1 percentage point from
26.3% t0 26.4%. Because of the predominance of gold in the sales mix,
the gross profit margin would have gone down if the price of gold had
not been on a rising trend in the year.

The Group's consolidated turnover from continuing operations increased
by 22% to HK$25,013 million in 2023. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company increased by 124% to HK$1,013 million. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company from continuing operations
increased by 118% to HK$1,060 million.

Retail of Jewellery and Watches

By geographical key markets

Segment revenue

EEENMRDN

o

BEHEAE  BEMAPIRGEREM
REORGIENE  NEBEHE2023F L+ 5F
EHRENBRHAECERFARRE
31% ° THEENERSUNE  LER
FEHRBEARE  RFERBE15%  BRRE
BHEEURSHNRYFR BE2ET
E EXR - BB ER -

HARPNREHECKBRIXE &
CHRADMRMNERR - PEIAR
FE BAMBEZRMOEIEDS -
PEZEMENTERBEMEL - FI1E
JES5%K » FBARNRBIAME -

EME B263%MFA01EE D HE
264% - MR HEHAEPERHLEBE
AHRFANTEREREN  ENX-—FER
B

AEEFHECEEBNRAEER
EIN2%E25013E8F L A DA%
BAEIEHEFIENI24%E1,013BEH
e RERBBELEEBNLRER ARNE
HA ETH118% = 1,060 BBBTT ©

KERERTE
BETETSHEED

Segment results

2 Ep UL DERELE

2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FTEx FET 2E) TR FHET e
Mainland China R K RE 15,818,061 13,697,207 +15% 872,251 531,803 +64%
Hong Kong and Macau  &#& MBI 8,174,722 5,823,648 +40% 597,527 320,006 +87%
Taiwan & 281,713 231,085 +22% 28,625 19,794 +45%
Total = 24,274,496 19,751,940 +23% 1,498,403 871,603 +72%

o The result of the Group’s retail of jewellery and watches segment
improved 72% year-on-year, benefitting from overall positive SSSG
in all our key markets.

o The Group’s total jewellery and watch sales in 2023 grew by 23%
year-on-year. Turnover growth in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Macau are driven by strong demand for gold. Sales in Taiwan
achieved steady growth at 22% year-on-year.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEBNWR DN

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued) KEREKTE(E)
By products EEmE7

Mainland China
EPNES

Hong Kong and Macau
BEREM

2023 1H 2023 2H 2023 FY
20234 20234 20235

2023 1H 2023 2H 2023 FY
20234 20234 20235

SSSG REHERR Lt¥FE  THFE 2F ¥FE THEE 25
Gold jewellery and E= e fimm &k

products Em +26% +15% +21% +78% +28% +47%
Gem-set jewellery FERKE -18% -30% -23% +34% +11% +21%
Watches Eik +37% 1% +9% +16% +2% +9%
Overall =g +19% +6% +12% +56% +21% +35%
Sales Mix HEER 2023 2022 2023 2022
Gold jewellery and BEHimk

products Em 79% 74% 73% 66%
Gem-set jewellery EMIUKE 9% 13% 1% 12%
Watches FE 47 9% 9% 13% 18%
Platinum/Karat gold As/

jewellery K £8H 3% 4% 3% 4%
e Strong demand for gold jewellery and products drove SSSG in o HEAEHESHLREMNEDS

Mainland China to grow 21%, and in Hong Kong and Macau
47%, year-on-year.

o Diamond jewellery sales, particularly those at higher price bands, .

were on a downward trend in Mainland China, resulting in -23%
SSSG for gem-set jewellery. However, jewellery sales in Hong Kong
and Macau managed to record +21% SSSG with “PROMESSA”
and “Infini Love Diamond"” brand making significant contributions.

° Watch sales slowed down in the second half of 2023, but for the .

whole year SSSG in Mainland China was +9% and in Hong Kong
and Macau +9%.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED /10
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEAWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued) BKEREREE(E)
Store Network B IEATAE
[ As at As at
31.12.2022 31.12.2023
Region ®2022 Opening Closure Net change | 12023 &
HWE 12A31H (S g% R 12A31H
Chow Sang Sang | A%4% 766 +101 -52 +49 815
Rolex/Tudor Eht /@ 14 +3 -2 +1 15
Mainland China MINTYGREEN MINTYGREEN 50 +9 -3 +6 56
AR EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 19 0 -3 -3 16
PROMESSA PROMESSA 24 +7 -8 -1 23
MARCO BICEGO | MARCO BICEGO 1 0 0 0 1
Sub-total /5t : 874 +120 -68 +52 926
Chow Sang Sang | 4% 45 +3 0 +3 48
Hong Kong Rolex/Tudor Sht/ 5k 10 0 -1 -1 9
AR EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 4 0 -1 -1 3
PROMESSA PROMESSA 2 +1 0 +1 3
Sub-total /N5t : 61 +4 %) +2 63
Macau B S BER 8 +1 -1 0 8
R
Sub-total /N5t : 8 +1 -1 0 8
Taiwan HBa BEm 30 +1 -1 0 30
Al PROMESSA PROMESSA 4 ) i 4 5
Sub-total /)&t 34 +3 -2 +1 35
Total A3t 977 +128 -73 +55 1,032j

o During the year, 101 new Chow Sang Sang stores were opened
in Mainland China, of which 72 of the new stores were located in
shopping malls.

o In Hong Kong, we added 3 Chow Sang Sang stores, one each in
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kai Tak and Tin Shui Wai and 1 PROMESSA store in
Tuen Mun. The number of Zh#5 & stores in Macau remained at 8
at the end of 2023.

o We had net increase of 1 new PROMESSA store in Taiwan.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing

The Group’s Omni-Remote Sales strategy encompasses online sales, Star
Concierge Service and remote sales concluded outside-of-store with
remote inventory. Omni-channel retailing remained strong even after the
lifting of epidemic-related restrictions, bringing in 31% (2022: 34%) of
total sales in Mainland China.

EEEAWMROM

BKERERTE(E)
BHELZREZTE

AEEMNEREEBHERE  RERL
HE REEERE  UARFBEEES
PEDIETEHAERHEE - MEERBEW
REERERE  2RBETENARARYL
IEHRBIRFEASEE 31% (20224F : 34%) o

Online Sales WEHE
2023 2022
Online Sales BRiHEI DK HK$'M HK$'M Change
by Market REHE BEET BEET 2
Mainland China Fh B K B 2,974 2,666 +12%
Hong Kong, Taiwan BB 88
and Others K H A 274 228 +20%

The online sales in Mainland China maintained its growth
momentum and accounted for approximately 19% of total
Mainland China sales, the same as in 2022. Growth in sales
of gold jewellery and products continued to outpace other
categories. We have continued to invest in live-streaming using
home-grown and external talents in over 22,000 (2022: 19,000)
hours of shows.

Online sales in Hong Kong, Taiwan and other regions continued to
grow at a steady pace in 2023. This had been achieved by channel
expansion and to other overseas markets through collaborators’
e-commerce platforms and joint promotion with local partners.

Product and Marketing

On the product front, demand for gold jewellery and products
was strong. “Cultural Blessings” collection of gold ornaments
were popular with customers. The stylish new collections “Mirror
Gold” and "gin” also continued to grow rapidly in 2023. Gem-
set jewellery under the “"PROMESSA" brand, comprising affordable
luxury and daily wear styles, recorded strong rebound in Hong
Kong and Macau as compared to 2022.

Sales of high unit price gem-set jewellery was sluggish. Total
sales conducted through Personalised Jewellery Service in 2023
was down 37% year-on-year. Total diamond jewellery sales from
this service accounted for 20% (2022: 30%) of the Group's
corresponding sales during the year.

We have continued our efforts to engage customers and enhance
shopping experience through various Chinoiserie ( B& ) pop-up
stores, display points, wedding expos and online campaigns.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Wholesale of Precious Metals

Turnover decreased by 7% to HK$711 million during the year, the
decline is mainly due to fall in for metals of the platinum family demand.

Trading of Laboratory-grown Diamond and Gemstones

The subsidiary “The Future Rocks Company Limited” was set up to
explore the market for laboratory-grown diamond and gemstones
("LGD"). It currently operates an e-commerce platform, with the
business name “The Future Rocks”, for the sale of LGD-set jewellery
curated from around the world as well as those designed in-house.
It has launched online stores in Mainland China, on portals Tmall
International, Xiaohongshu and WeChat Mini Program in 2022. In 2023
"The Future Rocks” started its own live-streaming, launched a number
of pop up stores and conducted a series of online and offline promotion
campaigns and marketing activities.

Securities and Futures Broking - the Discontinued Operation

The Securities and Futures Broking business has since early May 2021
ceased operation. We have been processing unclaimed assets. Complete
shutdown will occur when all such assets are returned or placed into
court custody.

Since the commencement of legal actions against the customers
who defaulted on the repayment of margin loans, the payment of
commission fees and margin facility interests, and their respective
guarantors in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong
Kong in February 2021, the Group has obtained judgments in certain
actions and is now in the process of enforcing the judgments and
petitioning bankruptcy of certain individuals based on the relevant
judgement debts as appropriate.

Provisions for impairment losses on margin loans totalling HK$45 million
and HK$31 million were made for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, respectively. As at 31 December 2023, total loans due from
the customers in default, net of total credit loss allowance, amounted to
HK$78 million.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLD\NGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

Investment Properties

The Group holds various properties with a total carrying value of
HK$428 million for rental purpose as at 31 December 2023. Rental
income for 2023 from investment properties amounted to HK$10
million.

Shares in HKEC

The Group's investment in 3,326,800 shares or 0.26% of HKEC is of
strategic nature and is the remaining part of the distribution received
from the reorganisation of the then exchanges in the year 2000.
Such investment was carried at fair value of HK$892 million as at 31
December 2023, representing 5% of the Group's total assets. During the
year, the Group received dividends in the amount of HK$27 million and
recorded a loss of HK$230 million recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of fair value change of the Group’s financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Capital Expenditure

The Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$435 million of which
HK$278 million was spent on new openings and refitting of stores.

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its retailing
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,096
million (2022: HK$749 million). Cash is mostly held in Renminbi or Hong
Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks with maturity dates falling
within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$10,910 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$994 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2023, the
total unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$6,111 million (2022:
HK$3,879 million).

As at 31 December 2023, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
amounted to HK$1,518 million and HK$3,048 million respectively, which
were unsecured in accordance with the Group’s policy. The weighted
average tenure of bank borrowings is around three years. The gearing
ratio was 37.4%, based on total bank borrowings and bullion loans of
HK$4,566 million as a percentage of equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$12,204 million. The current ratio of the Group was
2.7.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local
and overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing
interest costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 35% of its bank
borrowings at fixed rates as at 31 December 2023, increased from 25%
as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure.
Management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such,
the risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group
maintains an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural
hedge, foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency swaps,
to mitigate foreign exchange exposure. As at 31 December 2023, the
bank borrowings denominated in US dollar, Renminbi and New Taiwan
dollar amounted to US$6 million, RMB155 million and NT$200 million
respectively.

Charge on Assets, Lease Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no asset pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had lease liabilities of HK$1,059
million (2022: HK$983 million) and had no material contingent liabilities.

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies with a discretionary annual performance bonus.
Training has been provided to new and existing staff at a pace
commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all territories.

A share option scheme is in place to provide incentives or rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and enabling the
Group to attract and retain valuable employees. Details of the scheme
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of employees of the Group
was 12,175, of whom 10,352 in Mainland China, 1,577 in Hong Kong
and Macau, and 246 in Taiwan. During the year ended 31 December
2023, total staff costs amounted to HK$2,155 million.

Outlook

Stepping into 2024, turnover in Hong Kong and Macau continued
its uptrend, supported both by tourists from the Mainland and local
customers. In Mainland China, despite strong sales over the Chinese
New Year holidays, for January and February of 2024 together there was
a slight decline against the high base in 2023. Diamond sales continue
to disappoint.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the opening up of more individual travel
from the Mainland is encouraging. But the other side of the coin is the
worries that store rental is on the rise in unrealistic anticipation, and
the influx of potential customers will exacerbate the problem of staffing
shortage. The challenge for us is to be able to raise operating efficiency
and enhancing customer experience at the same time. Later in the year,
new stores are slated to open at THE SOUTHSIDE in Wong Chuk Hang,
MOSTown in Ma On Shan and 11 SKIES in Chek Lap Kok.

In Mainland China, the downtrend in gem-set jewellery sales seems
to indicate that consumer sentiments have turned cautious, and that
fewer people are spending on wedding jewellery. Both phenomena are
symptomatic of economic uncertainties and changing demographics. We
are continuing our expansion strategy, setting a guideline of 50 new
stores located chiefly in second-tier cities and above.

The increasing proportion of gold in our sales mix inevitably puts
downward pressure on our gross profit margin. To maintain a healthy
margin, we will spare no efforts to create products that will command
higher margins, such as jewellery set with gemstones, as well as gold
pieces with higher design and workmanship value. We will put highlight
on affordable luxury and daily-wear, instead of wedding jewellery.

Chow Sang Sang marks its 90th Anniversary in 2024. We will make use
of this milestone to strengthen our brand image. A series of marketing
events is being planned, kicking off with an exhibition in March,
showcasing our “Infini Love Diamond”, in Chengdu.

Experience has shown that “branded” collections such as “Infini Love
Diamond”, “Charme” and those under the “"EMPHASIS" brand are more
resilient and resistant to downturns than generic pieces. A host of well-
defined and focused brands can communicate more effectively with
different customer segments. Omni-channel retailing and online sales
are cost-effective yet capable of fulfilling customer expectations. A well-
honed regime of inventory and logistics is imperative to keeping our
profit margin. We shall follow these lane-markers into our 90th year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of manufacture and retail of jewellery,
distribution of watches, wholesale of precious metals and trading of
laboratory-grown diamond and gemstones. Details of the principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 83 to 201.

An interim dividend of HK20.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 27
September 2023. The Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK40.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 7 June 2024.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in
the Chairman’s Message on page 3 and the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report. Certain financial
key performance indicators are provided in the Financial Highlights on
page 2.

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers as well as the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group are shown in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
59 to 74.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are

included in the ESG Report on pages 27 to 58.

The above review constitutes part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

Results

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Turnover

Retail

Other businesses

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit for the year
from continuing
operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Loss for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LERBER

TXEIAKRBBEREMBRFELEA
mEE BE AENMERESZHER
(RSB LERGAM BRI REES

REFOE) - WBETTRKEEZLEE
B HRERZ—B7 o
#iE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL AT FEL TAL AL
BELELEY
TE 24,274,496 19,751,940 19,921,938 13,097,720 16,258,416
ELuE/ 738,843 804,576 2,065,621 1,899,821 1,453,697
25,013,339 20,556,516 21,987,559 14,997,541 17,712,113
eIyl 1,357,452 592,764 1,005,711 943,749 1,312,255
R (310,590) (117,003) (265,331) (304,611) (312,564)
EREH
1,046,862 475,761 740,380 639,138 999,691
RIEERER
RIFEEER Y
FRER (47,679) (34,039) (100,611) (94,674) (356,158)
EREF 999,183 441,722 639,769 544,464 643,533
ERERGR/(BR)
RARER A 1,012,680 452,326 643,257 544,464 643,533
R R (13,497) (10,604) (3,488) - -
999,183 441,722 639,769 544,464 643,533
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary (continued)

IEMBERE(E)

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling interests BE BERHEZERESR
As at 31 December
R12A318

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT FET TET AL
Total assets BEE 19,156,156 18,650,857 18,088,758 16,826,467 16,236,438
Total liabilities waE (6,985,962) (6,780,629) (5,345,297 (4,807,353) (5,604,053)
Non-controlling interests FERER 33,878 20,315 9,659 - -
12,204,072 11,890,543 12,753,120 12,019,114 10,632,385

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$2,353,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s properties are set out on pages 202 to 206 of this
annual report.

Share Capital

There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Share Option Scheme

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 11 June
2020 (“Share Option Scheme”) is set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. No share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLD\NGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and
prevailing industry practices.

The Company determines the emoluments of the Directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 9 and 11 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the guideline on declaring and recommending the
payment of dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the following factors:

o financial results;

o cash flow situation;

. business conditions and strategies;

o future operations and earnings;

o capital requirements and expenditure plans;

o interests of shareholders;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

o any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company intends to distribute between 30% to 40% of the
Group's annual consolidated net profits as dividends to its shareholders.
The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, amounted to HK$1,447,744,000 of which
HK$270,974,000 has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 76% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 47%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun
Mr. LEE Ka Lun
Dr. LO King Man
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung
Mr. HSU Rockson
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam and Dr. CHAN
Bing Fun shall retire by rotation as Directors at the 2024 annual general
meeting (the “2024 AGM") pursuant to bye-law 99(B) of the Company's
bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. HSU Rockson who has been appointed by the Board shall hold office
until the conclusion of the 2024 AGM pursuant to bye-law 91 of the
Company's bye-laws and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023 which is still in force.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

Long positions:

EEnkOzER

R2023F 128318 SEFRARAI
HHzB(TEA(BHFRBER)E
XVE)EBTRAS  (BHLBEK
{f1)8E 352 AR RIA FIRfF 2 B RETEE
8 IBRBEETRNARARE RBER
PR EEMT

#

iny

Number of shares held

BR¥AE
Approximate
Personal Family ~ Corporate Trustee percentage of
interest interest interest interest Total  shareholding
BRERY
Name of Directors BEng EAER FEER NERE  GEARE &% BAlt
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing Ik 464 - - - 136,271,595" 136,271,595 20.12
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing ELipL 960,000 70,398”  74,995,996” - 76,026,394 11.22
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing A8 %4 28,681,104 52,8007 14,244316”  32,616,000% 75,594,220 11.16
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RRBE: 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.19
Note: Bt -
M@ please refer to the notes in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ 0@ = T EIFE G EAM AT HRIRD BB
and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”. B 2 s | — 8 Z BT o
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Br £ FE SN PA2023F 128318 -

Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS BEEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares FTERRREMATRAROREBRE Z
and Underlying Shares R

As at 31 December 2023, the interests of those persons in the issued M2023F 128318 BE(EHFELBE
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests GEHINE 3361 - ARABTRELEES
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO MasEANEERRBCBITRAAL 21

were as follows: Fas NN
Long positions: #E
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholding
£ &% BRHAE Bk
Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000" 17.71
EnFFAA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of
Controlled Corporation 74,995,996 11.07
EalE ARREHIRA 2 #H
Schroders plc Investment Manager 54,276,447% 8.01
REEBA
Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932% 7.96
RERERRAF EnFAA
Pandanus Associates Inc. Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000" 5.02
St [N £
Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000" 5.02
St [N £
FIL Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation 34,009,000° 5.02

TR 2
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

M

136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of
which Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was the beneficiary. The trustee
of the trust was Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited, which held the
interests in the Company through the following companies:

Name of companies
RE] 5

Everwin Company Limited
Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have
interests in the 136,271,595 shares. Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was
deemed to have interests in the 136,271,595 shares in the Company.

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

60,751,680 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited,
a company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the
beneficiaries. The trustee of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and,
accordingly, it was deemed to have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in
the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 75,066,394 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

Schroders plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Schroder Investment Management
(Singapore) Ltd., Schroder Investment Management Limited and Schroder
Investment Management North America Limited, held 29,633,447 shares,
24,568,000 shares, 65,000 shares and 10,000 shares in the Company
respectively, and was accordingly deemed to be interested in the
respective shares held by the aforesaid companies.

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited, in
which the late Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling had a 20% equity interest.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(5)

Pandanus Partners L.P. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pandanus
Associates Inc., and Pandanus Partners L.P. holds 38.71% shareholding
of FIL Limited. Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and FIL
Limited are therefore deemed to be interested in the 34,009,000 shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person, other
than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed
"Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have other connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire, and being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2024 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In conformance with the HKEx ESG Guide, this report for the year ended
31 December 2023 is presented to demonstrate the Group's current
management approach and performance in social and environmental
responsibility as well as its vision for sustainable development strategies.
The section on corporate governance is separately presented as the
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

The Group has established an Environmental Sustainability Department
to define and promote sustainability strategies. We have expanded our
reporting boundary from Hong Kong and Mainland China to encompass
Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan ("Greater China”)
from 2023 onwards so as to provide a more comprehensive picture
of our ESG performance. Therefore, unless otherwise stated, the ESG
performance indicators and all policies and management systems in this
report present the performance of all operations in Greater China, and
restatement has been made for all ESG performance indicators under
the operational control approach of the Group as well as change in
methodology for environmental data consolidation in accordance with
GHG Protocol, so as to better reflect the Group’s actual situation. As our
operations continued to expand, the number of retail stores included in
this report has also increased.

In preparing this report, the Group has fully considered the four
Reporting Principles in the HKEx ESG Guide, namely materiality,
quantitative, consistency and balance. This report prioritises and details
the issues deemed important from the perspectives of our stakeholders
and business. The relevant key performance indicator(s) (“KPI(s)") and
applicable calculation methodologies are presented in the “ESG Data
Table” section of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Statement

The Board oversees the Group’s ESG strategy, material ESG-related risks,
and the effectiveness of our ESG risk management and internal control
systems. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the establishment
of environmental targets and the associated reporting disclosures, while
our management is responsible for implementing ESG management and
objectives.

By taking part in stakeholder engagement and endorsing materiality
analysis, the Board provides oversight of the evaluation and prioritisation
of ESG-related issues. The Group's risk management framework and
ESG-related risks are under the Board’s supervision. The Board is
committed to taking actions to identify, mitigate and adapt to the ESG-
related risks of our Company.

The Group has established an ESG Working Group to raise the
awareness of our employees on ESG-related issues and drive group-
wide contribution to environmental protection, social responsibility
and corporate governance. The Board has assigned the ESG Working
Group, which reports to the Board where required, to be in charge
of monitoring important ESG trends, targets, and associated risks and
opportunities, as well as assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s ESG-related implementations and updating ESG policies when
necessary.

The Environmental Sustainability Department supports the formulation
and implementation of the Group’s carbon neutral and sustainable
environmental development strategy, develops the Group’s carbon
emission inventory, designs and implements sustainability programmes.

In 2023, the Group further established the Carbon Neutrality Task
Force, comprising members of senior management from key operational
units across all business locations. The Task Force’s pivotal mission is
to define the Group’s comprehensive carbon neutrality strategy, design
and execute impactful programmes and initiatives. Through regular
progress reviews, the Task Force aims to ensure the Group’s unwavering
commitment to achieving its ambitious carbon reduction goals.

In view of its business nature and the global trend of going green,
the Group has set a series of environmental targets to decarbonise
its business portfolio and improvement plans covering greenhouse
gas emissions and resources consumptions. The Board will review the
implementation progress and performance of these targets and plans on
a reqular basis.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RIE HERERKRSE

Risk Management LB B 1R
A robust risk management approach is essential for the Group to REMEREEAZEAEERIRE - 1
minimise ESG-related risks. Relevant policies and procedures are ehEREHRREREREELHEE - 17

implemented for managing ESG-related risks of the Group. We have BHRRENMEFCEMRNEBEAEBIRE
clearly delegated role and responsibility to all relevant parties as HeREREARR W TRAT B

presented in the below table. ERBEREARARZRTHABREBESA -
Role Responsibility
B BfiE
The Board - Oversee ESG-related and climate-related risk management
EXg EERS - He REREERRIREHRERER

- Review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems by
which ESG-related risks are monitored and mitigated
RECERNEREERABEZZGENEZELRERE e LERERRER
oy idia

- Oversee the establishment of environmental targets and the associated reporting

disclosures
EBSTREEEREBRERE

Audit Committee - Oversee ESG-related and climate-related risk management procedures
EGLZEE® EERE e kErBkREEERRERRZF

- Review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems

e L B TR e PO RBAR 6 R AR B AR

Senior Management - Identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks, including
RRERE ESG-related and climate-related risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority
Bl AW FHE  BY  BEREREERR BREASERERSEANIME

B BALSURIZEBENIRE e REREEKRIEEERER
- Develop action plans to address potential ESG-related risks and contingency plans
for possible loss scenarios

REHEERE e NERRBRRKAELRBRNERDHFETHIRR

SRR
Internal Audit - Conduct review of different aspects of the operations, including ESG-related and
M2 1% climate-related issues

HEENTREBETR  BREE HEREAHEIRREHEEE
- Report findings to Audit Committee
MEZZEGREASHER

Risk assessment is carried out with ESG issues taken into consideration. ETRRFEREZERE HERER
ESG-related risks involving loss will be investigated and properly EH -EREREEI(EN -2 #H
documented as part of the effort to manage risks. WRIBANRE  HekERBERRKE

TREYZEEH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Analysis

The Group maintained close communication with internal and
external stakeholders comprising employees, customers, shareholders
and investors, suppliers, community and charitable organisations
to understand their opinions and expectations towards the Group’s
ESG issues. There are various channels of communication with
these stakeholders including company website, meetings, online
communications, questionnaires, interviews, and on-site research and
investigation. The Group reviews the feedback from stakeholders
periodically to identify and prioritise material issues so as to align its
business practices with the stakeholders’ expectations.

Based on previous result of an independent stakeholder engagement
exercise conducted and the latest requirements from the HKEx ESG
Guide, combining with the results of latest industry development trend
captured by a peer benchmarking exercise, the materiality assessment
matrix which shown as below remained unchanged.

Relatively High
BE

Occupational saf
annd health <

52 MEZ R N2

4.7

4.2

HEDENEEM

3.7

Importance to Stakeholder

3.2

Relatively Low

B {E:
35 4 4.5
Importance to Business
HEBNEEM
Topics
E 1
Service and product quality
RHRERE 10
Occupational safety and health
BERE AR "
Employee development and training
EAER R 12
Anti-corruption
4 R&F 13
Customer privacy protection
> EFRLBRE 14
Intellectual property rights
6 mumm 15
7 gg/er% management 16
8 %nplﬁ@e remuneration 17
Diversity and equal opportunities
5 ZrMkTERE 18

19
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Service and
product quality
0 EBREREE

. Employee development

and training
EEHEREN

Relatively High
BE

5.5

Supply chaln management

HEnE

Child and forced labour

BIRAHST

Respon5|b|e marketing

BEMAEH

Packaging materials consumption
BEYRNER

Non-hazardous and hazardous waste management
EEREEERNER

Water management

KERER

Air emissions management
ERHMER

Contribution to community development
HitEERAOER

Climate change management
RIRZ(LER

Wastewater management

FEKER
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Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Analysis (continued)

While we are striving for an overall balance in the disclosure of the
Group's ESG initiatives and performance, emphasis will be placed on
issues which are considered more material to our business.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to ensuring that its products are of premium
quality, obtained from verified and ethical sources and that processes
are well controlled to prevent the occurrences of corrupt practice. We
were not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to
health and safety, advertising, labelling, privacy matters and methods of
redress for the products and services provided during the year.

Product Responsibility and Service Quality

The Group has implemented systems to ensure that all marketed
products are monitored for (a) the fineness and veracity of materials;
(b) the presence of toxic elements as prescribed by national standards
that we operate in; and (c) conformance with our defined levels of
workmanship.

Management protocols are in place to define the testing methods and
sampling procedures for different products and materials. The Group's
externally-accredited laboratories located in Hong Kong and Shunde
conduct tests using both surface spectrometric and destructive methods.
Among them, our wholly owned subsidiary, Hong Kong Gemological
Research and Authentication Centre Company Limited, has passed the
assessment of the Hong Kong Innovation and Technology Commission
and has been designated as a “Designated Local Research Institution”.
Workmanship inspections are conducted at several stages on all products
along the supply chain to ensure product quality. All our products are
required to undergo quality assessment according to China national
standards such as GB/T 16554 at National Gemstone Testing Centre.

The Group has formulated the Quality Standard for Incoming Goods
which takes into account the relevant laws in Hong Kong and PRC, to
ensure that the precious metal parts of the products must be free of
harmful elements such as lead, mercury, and hexavalent chromium.
Jewellery must exhibit zero nickel release, and jewellery worn in touch
with skin must not contain nickel. Once any non-compliance with these
requirements is found upon inspection, immediately procedures would
be taken to manage the relevant product. A breakdown of number of
products sold or shipped subject to recall for safety and health reasons
is provided in the "ESG Data Table” section.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEEESEERARRDA

31

BOENSRAREEND T (E)

BPBRERBARERE HERER
EERRRERTFENRE  KEEHHE

AHERBRRERMNEE

E€ETA

AEEBNRUELIER  EEMUAB
BRENAERRRE  BRAXEEE
Eo IEREITAMEL - STEERHEE
mEREE - BEENTZE RS BEK
FAEEEMER T EEEMEAEER
BRREMNERMER  RALTNEF
ABEAEBERERPIOSEM -

EmBEXRRBEE
REBRBESH - LAREGRPTA HE T E A
EmBZIATHIEMNER : (@) RMEH
RELERE  O)BESBERMELME
WHKEERENESTE  R(OFTA
SEETMIEKY -

EEENTEREERRE  BTRERK
MBI BAER T ERBERERRF - RNE
BREANIEER LN BRATNER
= FARE N EE R MR8 178
o Ha - RMMNE2ENBRAREEER
MERETHOERARBAESAFE
FEMFE  BETAMET A TEE
Bl EREAREEFHEERSSHTS
ETERE  UBRERLE - ROIKFAT
EEMBEERRPRBREZEGRT
16554) ERRKETAEEEERBF L
BITESTE -

AEKECRERERTBENERERHE
EEEERE  URREMNES BT
et REANEBREAELE - REH
mAMEBREVEART  ENERBOK
Em SR8 —BEEREDEREM
PMIAZFBRNER - B LBV RIS i
EEABER A2 MEREAmED
W ERMENERSE PABNRE -
HERERBEER] 6 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 4 iR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality (continued)

In case of defective or substandard products identified, the Group
will evaluate the associated risks and scope of the issue and initiate
appropriate recall procedures. When potential safety and health risks are
observed, the Group will promptly notify the relevant parties. Once the
affected products are identified, we will develop an action plan and a
timeframe for recalling the distributed products. We will further request
to submit a final incident report, analysing the reasons for the recall
detailing necessary corrective measures to prevent future recurrences.

Management has established policies to ensure that the advertising
and labelling of our products are in line with applicable laws and
regulations. Moreover, in conformance with the Group’s Code of
Conduct, management has systems in place to ensure that intellectual
property rights, both our own and those of other parties, are observed
and respected in our business dealings. The Group protects its own
intellectual property rights by registering for its own created brands and
designs in Hong Kong and overseas. To address enquiries or complaints,
the Group has a dedicated team of customer relations personnel who
provide prompt responses. Customers can contact the team through
various channels, including:

° service hotlines;
° emails;
o instant messaging service including WhatsApp, WeChat and LINE;

. LIVE CHAT; and
o social media platforms including Facebook, Weibo, Xiaohongshu
and Instagram.

In addition, all store staff are trained to handle queries on products,
maintenance and repair. All customer correspondence through proper
channels is logged and documented. A breakdown of number of
product- and service-related complaints is provided in the "ESG Data
Table” section.
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Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality (continued)

In recognition of the Group’s marketing, innovation and leadership
strategies, the Group has been awarded the “Customer Service Power
Brand Award” by the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing (HKIM) in July
2023. The Group has also received the "Excellence in Personalisation
Marketing — Gold” and “Excellence in Loyalty Marketing — Bronze”
awards from MARKETING-INTERACTIVE to commend its customer
management strategy and personalisation experience.

The Group was commended as a long-term participating retailer
member of the “No Fakes Pledge” Scheme at the 25th Anniversary
Celebration of the “No Fakes Pledge” Scheme cum Long-term Members
Commendation Ceremony held by the Intellectual Property Department
(IPD), that recognised the Group's effort in promoting respect for
intellectual property rights to the public. Furthermore, the Group was
awarded with the "Most Valuable Brand Award in Greater Bay Area”
at the Third Navigator “9+2" Greater Bay Area Navigation Award
Ceremony, hosted by Hong Kong Ta Kung Wen Wei Media Group.

The Group’s Chow Sang Sang Precious Metal Laboratory was awarded
Gold Award of the “Testing and Certification Manpower Development
Award Scheme” 2023-2024 by The Hong Kong Council for Testing
and Certification. One of our assistant laboratory managers was also
awarded the “Excellent Testing and Certification Professional Award”
in the Senior Professional Sub-group. This Scheme was to encourage
testing and certification bodies to invest in talent training and
development, while commending practitioners who strive for continuous
learning and contribute to service quality improvement.

Customer Data Protection

The Group takes data privacy seriously and strives to protect personal
data of customers. We have policies and procedures in place to ensure
compliance with the relevant applicable local laws and regulations
where we operate, including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the General Data Protection Regulation of
the European Union, which collectively govern the collection, use,
retention, processing and protection of the customers’ personal data.
We only collect and retain the minimum amount of personal data of our
customers in our database. The database is well-protected both in policy
and technological terms. Customer data is strictly released on a need-
to-know basis and will not be shared, without prior consent, to external
parties or other units within the Group that are not the original data
collectors. We reqularly review the impact of updates in regulation of
data privacy has on our business operation, and in response to changes
in China data transfer laws, we have conducted review of and enhanced
our Privacy Policies and internal guidelines in relation to personal data
processing in 2023.
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Operating Practices (continued)

Customer Data Protection (continued)

We also provide provisions in relevant guidelines, operation manual and
customer data management code available to frontline staff regarding
our policy in relation to the collection, use, retention, processing and
management of customer data.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has implemented comprehensive procurement and supply
chain management policies that align with the industry best practice
principles. Most of our suppliers are involved in our supplier selection
process. During this process, the Group conducts background checks
and prioritises suppliers who are currently working towards responsible
and sustainable operations. In addition to considering factors like
infrastructure, production capacity and market reputation of the
potential suppliers, we also evaluate their commitment to legal, ethical
and social compliance.

Diamond suppliers are required to provide documented proof of the
ethical provenance of their raw materials. All materials and finished
goods are monitored as stated under the section headed “Product
Responsibility and Service Quality” and only those that passed the
tests are accepted. Through prioritising suppliers with demonstrated
management and high performance on ESG aspects, relevant social and
environmental risks associated with the supply chain are mitigated and
managed. All new suppliers are required to complete a ESG checklist
to understand their environmental and social risks performance and
they will be randomly assessed annually. We strive to work out a
solution with suppliers in identifying substandard goods and materials.
These suppliers are subject to a system of warnings, temporary or even
permanent blocking of orders if no improvements have been made
thereafter.

Where possible, the Group maintains relationships with multiple
suppliers to prevent the risks inherent in over-reliance on the suppliers.
The Group also promotes fair competition during the selection of
potential suppliers by adhering to relevant laws and regulations. This
commitment is communicated with the procurement staff through the
procurement and supply chain management policies. A breakdown of
number of suppliers by geographical region is provided in the “ESG Data
Table” section.
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Operating Practices (continued)

Anti-corruption

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance policy on bribery and corruption, and
strives to uphold and maintain business ethics, integrity, fairness and
transparency in its operations. Our employees are required to comply
with the rules stipulated in our Employee Handbook (the “Handbook”),
the Anti-Corruption Policy, and the Whistleblowing Policy. These policies
define permissible and impermissible practice regarding the giving
and receiving of advantages and gifts. Through the Whistleblowing
Policy, our employees are safequarded if they submit signed reports on
suspicious activities. Furthermore, our employees are required to follow
the Group's Code of Conduct, which outlines appropriate procedures
for handling conflict of interests. Relevant anti-corruption trainings are
provided and directors and all staff are informed periodically of the
latest requirement regarding anti-corruption practices. New employees
are required to undertake anti-corruption training on our e-learning
platform upon joining the Group. The Group has also implemented a
Prevention of Money Laundering Policy that establishes the principles,
work and reporting mechanism relating to criminal activities. The
number of legal cases regarding corrupt practices is provided in the
"ESG Data Table” section.

In addition, our operating subsidiaries in Hong Kong have registered
as Dealers in Precious Metals and Stones (“DPMS”) under the Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance
(Cap. 615) ("AMLO") since December 2023. In compliance with the
obligations as DPMS, we have issued the Anti-money Laundering and
Counter-terrorist Financing Policy, as well as operation manual for
frontline staff for conducting customer due diligence and reporting
of suspicious transactions in order to comply with the applicable
statutory requirements. In anticipation of the DPMS registration, we
organised presentations introducing the amendment of AMLO and legal
requirements to all relevant employees to enhance their awareness. In
addition, over 200 relevant staff members have attended pilot training
on statutory requirements such as customer due diligence and record-
keeping prior to our being granted the registration as DPMS by the
Hong Kong Customs and Excise Department.

Employment and Labour Practices

Training and development programmes, employee welfare and
relationship building initiatives have always been particularly important
to our business. The Group proactively adopts best practices in human
resource management to cope with the ever-changing business
environment. We have won the title of being one of the 2023 “Foshan
Harmonious Labour Relations Enterprises” awarded by Foshan Municipal
Human Resources and Social Security Bureau.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEEBRER QA

IH

35

B dHERERHE
ZETR(E)
REF

AREHBREEFENTRBER - I
ROBEEXER A 2FREPR
HEE - HMNETAETEIFMUIF
i) RESBRREBRBREHMRA -
RERRRETHEGETREZEEREY
HERNBFRAAFITR - RESEREK
R WMEIRAREDRIBLRERH
REMRE  fboh - ETHRBRAEED
TRTR ERATRENZERNEER
Tk e BfREABORESEY  IE
HREENMEETRBAERAELSER
BRI ER - HE T AR - BAERM
VEFEBTE LEXRENRE - A&
BAEMD T RERR - EHIIREE
FEBABNRA - RERBRES - &2
BESHBNFRAREREENRE e
MERBER] -

AN BPERANELHBLARAER
203FN2ARBITEARRZ MY FE
SEEEN(E615F)([AMLO]) 1 A
EcBREARSME(DPMS]) - ARBTT
ERDPMSHIEME - HMEMA TR AR
RERHDFECEEHR  MARE T
HETRPERASNRETRR H R
EFM - UREAERKEEEX - BER
DPMS f) R AT AT 2648 - BAPMAR T &
e WTEHEEE INBAMLOMIEET
RAEFER  UREHBRENEH o b
B0 BBETERMER B BHAMME
A ADPMSZAIEZ M T ERBNEFE
BAERMBEFLESETEEKNHEE -

BRESIER

FHIRERAE  BERFIRELERS
GRERHANEEEXERLAEE - XAEFR
BRMANEREENREETE  UEM
HEBENHERSE - HMEGLTAN
BRMEERERRF2023FE[H LT
L EELE B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 4 iR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employment

The Group observes relevant employment laws and regulations. As
an equal opportunities employer, the Group and its management
embrace diversity in its workforce and ensure that the employees are
not discriminated against in recruitment and promotion because of their
ethnicity, age, gender, marital status, physical or mental health status,
family status, sexual orientation, religion or belief.

In compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the Group strictly
prohibits any child and forced labour in all business operations,
including suppliers. The Human Resources Department implements
appropriate procedures during the recruitment process to ensure that
all job applicants meet the legal working age through checking their
valid identification documents. If violations are discovered, the Group
will take immediate measures to stop them from working. Employment
contracts are entered on the principle of equality and voluntarism
including the right to terminate employment and the right to provide
adequate protection in respect of minimum wages, working hours
and annual leave. Our suppliers are also required to confirm that their
employment does not involve child and forced labour. In 2023, there
was no identified case regarding child and forced labour.

On the other hand, the Group requires employees to comply with the
Code of Conduct, which stipulates the Group's value and expectations
on employees to uphold high standard of ethics and integrity. The Code
of Conduct is available on the Group's intranet.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has a total of 12,175 employees.
Apart from the below diagrams, a breakdown of the Group's
employment data by geographical region, gender, employment category
and age group, and a breakdown about the Group’s employee turnover
data categorised by gender, age group and geographical region are also
provided in the "ESG Data Table” section.
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Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employee Welfare

Beyond the requirements stipulated in the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group upholds an open and standardised framework
for employment, salary reviews and promotions. Apart from basic salary,
employees are rewarded with performance-based bonuses. Benefits such
as paid vacation leave and insurance coverage are commensurate with,
or better than local practices and legal requirements. Relevant policies
are fully communicated to employees through the Handbook for their
reference.

We enhance the overall communication across various departments and
ranks within the Group through the utilisation of platform “WeCom”,
“"WeCom"” provides employees with a more efficient and convenient
access to the latest corporate and training information, as well as
personal exchanges.

The management level of the Group regularly reviews employees’ goal
alignment, job performance and working conditions to ensure that
their personal development and job performance improvement are
aligned with business priorities. Grievance procedures are in place for
the protection of employees. Personal details of employees are strictly
protected.

Work Safety and Health

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention first” to
create an accident-free working environment for the employees. As
such, the Group has established various committees dedicated to ensure
that the employees have a safe and healthy working environment.
These committees also aim to further strengthen the implementation of
relevant initiatives at divisional level. Safety risks in various facilities have
been identified, assessed and managed with corresponding preventive
measures. Committee meetings are held to monitor our occupational
health and safety performance and reqular safety inspections are
conducted. Safety- and health-related awareness building trainings are
conducted for the benefit of all staff.

We are in compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations
related to providing safe environment at all operational locations and
safeguarding employees from potential occupational hazards. During the
year, we have obtained ISO 45001 to further improve our occupational
health and safety performance, and to continuously create a safe and
healthy working environment for the employees. We had zero work-
related fatality in the last three years and 1,924 (2022: 1,308) lost days
due to work-related injury in 2023.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training

To cope with the development of the Group’s omni-channel and multi-
brand strategy, the Group and its management oversee the design and
execution of various onboarding and on-the-job training programmes
for both new and current employees. These programmes cover topics
such as product knowledge, customer service, consultative selling skill,
store marketing and team management, property security and risk
management, and occupational safety. They are designed to support
and upskill all employees at all levels and with diverse responsibilities.
To promote continuing education of employees, the Group has set up
its own online training platform, “Channel T". This platform facilitates
interactive communication between trainers and employees covering all
business-related aspects.

To nurture high potential talents for the Group, a Management Trainee
Programme has been rolled out in Mainland China since 2020. To
align with the Group’s omni-channel retailing strategy, we provide
trainees with well-rounded development experience and exposure. This
includes orientation sessions, store attachments and back-office project
management and execution.

In addition to utilising internal training resources, the Group subsidises
employees who require professional qualifications or advanced studies
for specific positions. We also cater to their specific training needs by
third-party professional training. The Group and its management are
dedicated to the continuous development of our employees' capabilities
and we value the personal and professional growth of our employees.
By fostering a culture of continuous learning, we aim to cultivate and
retain our best talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the
market.

Although the pandemic has subsided, we have conducted large part of
our trainings virtually via video conferencing platforms such as Zoom,
“"WeCom” and “Channel T" as permanent measure. Apart from the
below diagrams, a breakdown of the training data is also provided in
the "ESG Date Table” section.
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Percentage of Employees Trained and Average Training Hours Completed Per Employee

by Gender

RUEREDNZIEEB D LR EBAREETHZ N T

)l 13.1% 86.99%

F(ll er 2 3 [ ] 4 hours /|\fF 48 [ O hours /)\B

Male £ Female %

Percentage of Employees Trained and Average Training Hours Completed Per Employee

by Employment Category
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952 58.2%  37.4%

%
[Q@C]) 58-7 hours /J\B 23-3 hours /J\B
/\Tj- /\Tj'

General Staff Middle Management
—RETL HEEEAE

4.4
10.6 ...

Upper Management
BEEEAR

Environment

The Group has made an internal environmental protection pledge for
sustainability, where the Group values its role as a responsible corporate
citizen. For example, the Group bans shark fins, humphead wrasse and
other endangered species from the menu at corporate functions. To
minimise plastic and paper waste, wherever feasible, reusable cups are
provided for beverages. Employees are encouraged to follow suit in their
personal life.
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Environment (continued)

All business partners are expected to adhere to our Group Environmental
Policy. The Group has also formulated Guidelines for Handling and
Discharging Effluent and Flue Gas, which delineates the proper disposal
and monitoring procedures for hazardous waste. The commitment to
the environment is further communicated to the employees through the
Group's Code of Conduct.

To demonstrate our commitment to combating climate change
and reducing our environmental footprint, we set up the following
environmental targets for 2030. The Board will keep track of the
Group’s progress made against the environmental targets on a regular
basis.

2030 Targets
2030 FHE

Electricity consumption and electricity-led
greenhouse gas emissions intensity *

ENERAENETNAEREBINEER"

B5 (&)

FBERGEHREETRERERIE - A
SENHIR] T KR ERAEE R ST
Al ERE T AEEEMA LHREE K
ENEF- - RAEBAKE ZITRTH
E—FMETEHRFA °

RTRABRMERERIREC R RE
RBFERL - FFIRTE T AT 2030 FIRE
B - ZEXEREHREASBHEERR
REBRTERER -

<< =>>

Water consumption and intensity *

FKERTE

’ 7% at jewellery manufacturing factories

’ 7% at jewellery manufacturing factories
REUERE 2 BB R 7%

[y

(how SangSang

ETE

e-receipt

Paper waste reduction

AR

REGEIRE ZBERD 7%

To increase the use of e-receipt for the
transaction records issued to customers with the
paper waste reduction programme to 70% by 2030
B A ARG 81N 2030 F 3.2 AT E T IR
EBREEFHNRHEHFTFOELRESZET0%

*  per product manufactured, compared to the Group's average performance in

2016-2019
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Environment (continued)

Apart from the targets above, the Group has also developed a roadmap
towards decarbonisation. In medium term, we strive to enhance
our disclosure on emission reduction, including targets set on each
environmental aspect and steps taken in achieving them. In the long
run, we aim to reach decarbonisation with a systematic approach based
on our targets set and by going beyond regulatory requirements. The
Group has been advocating sustainable development business model
through various management approaches and strategies within the
dimensions of social responsibilities and environmental protection.

The sustainability account opened with a renowned bank has made
the Group and the bank won The Asset Triple A Awards 2023 — Best
ESG Solution — Liquidity and Investments in recognition of our indirect
support to various sustainability projects implemented by the bank.

In acknowledgement of the Group’s commitment to sustainability, we
were honored with the following awards and recognition in 2023:

The Group was the only recipient in the jewellery industry receiving
the "2023 Green Sustainable Development Contribution Award” at
the “2023 Second International Green Zero Carbon Festival and 2023
ESG Leaders Summit” for our contribution to carbon neutrality and
environmental protection.

In “The First Excellent Social Responsibility (ESG) Enterprise Selection
in the Greater Bay Area” directed by the Guangdong Federation
of Industry and Commerce and co-sponsored by Guangdong New
Express, which was owned by Yangcheng Evening News Group, and
Protron Consulting Group, the Group was awarded the ”"Excellent
Environmental Protection Practice Enterprise Award — Excellent Award”
for our outstanding performance in carbon reduction and environmental
protection practices.

Our Manufacturing Technology and Production Centre in Hong Kong
participated in the “EcoPartner” and “Low-Carbon Commitment”
through setting electricity consumption reduction target, replacing
lighting system with new energy-saving LEDs, replacing air conditioners
with higher efficiency model and other feasible measures.

We operate in accordance with the local environmental laws and
regulations, and are not aware of any material environmental non-
compliance that would have a significant impact on the environment or
the Group. We have summarised our efforts in managing climate risks,
energy and resource use, effluent, waste and emissions of air in the
paragraphs below.
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Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management

We take proactive measures to minimise the environmental impacts
caused by our business operations. The management observes and
seizes opportunities for reducing overall energy use across the Group.
We have signed up as participants in the “Charter on External Lighting”
and “Energy Saving Charter” organised by the Hong Kong Government,
thereby committing to switching off store lightings at the preset time
and maintaining an average indoor preset temperature. We may even
switch off store lightings earlier than the committed preset time after
considering the operation hours and marketing needs of individual
stores. We are in the progress of upgrading the lighting in our offices
and stores to LED lights and the replacement works in our four factories
are expected to be completed in 2024. To enhance our employees’
awareness, tips and information on carbon reduction and energy
conservation are also shared through our intranet from time to time.

During the year, we continued to carry out multiple energy and water
efficiency measures including:

o controlling billboard and exterior lighting at street level stores with
timer;

J maintaining indoor temperature at an optimal, comfortable level
to conserve energy;

° replacing conventional vehicles with electric vehicles;

J optimising operation time of central air conditioning systems in
Shunde and Xian factories;

J revamping air compressor units’ operation in Shunde and Xian
factories; and

J replacing washroom faucets with sensor-based water-saving
faucets in Shunde factory.

Energy efficiency, water conservation, waste reduction and other
measures to mitigate environmental impact have all been carefully
considered by the management as part of the design specifications of
the Shunde factory. Based on the experience gained in the construction
of the Shunde factory, we will also prioritise these factors in future
building constructions. The Group also adopted green building design
and materials when constructing the new facade panels of the Xian
flagship store. Savings on air-conditioning are achieved by implementing
measures to mitigate the heating effect of the sun, reduce heat
generation by reducing excess lighting, and place furnaces and other
heat and emission dissipating in isolated equipment room wherever
feasible. Solar panels are installed to generate electricity for our staff
quarters and canteen. We have adopted a centralised control system
since 2020 to intelligently manage the air conditioning system such as
chilled water flow and temperature of air handling unit.
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Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

At the same time, various enhancement works have also been
implemented or planned. Our Xian factory established charters to avoid
energy- and water-wasting behaviour, as well as added an inverter
and repurposed used water in our manufacturing process to save the
resources. To minimise our environmental footprint, we have also
implemented a lights-off initiative for an hour during the lunch hour.
This initiative involved turning off all unnecessary lights in our workspace
or building, with the aim of conserving energy and reducing electricity
consumption. We have set targets to reduce water consumption and
intensity by 7% at jewellery manufacturing factories by 2030. In
addition, we are gradually upgrading the air conditioners to Grade 1
at Hong Kong factory. Besides, a department of our Taiwan office has
set up a dedicated team to develop and build an automated planting
area in the office using technologies such as daylight-like LED lights,
soil condition detection, electronic components and microcomputer
controllers. Through this activity, we hope to encourage our employees
to make good use of technology to protect the environment, while
creating a healthy and comfortable working environment to enhance
their sense of belonging. We target to promote this activity to offices
and even factories in other regions.

A comprehensive overview of the Group’s total emissions is provided
in the "ESG Data Table” section. As we resumed all operations and
recorded a business growth in 2023, we observed a higher level of
energy consumption by the Group compared to the previous year. We
will keep track of our energy and water consumption and regularly
review the effectiveness of our current initiatives to further improve
our performance in energy and water use as well as greenhouse gas
emissions.

Climate Change Management

Climate change poses potential risks and disruptions to business
operations. Consistent with our risk management policies, our
management is dedicated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond to,
monitor and communicate risks related to climate change. We have
identified climate-related risks which have impact on the Group's
business through a qualitative assessment conducted in 2021. In view of
the following risks, we have taken corresponding mitigation measures
and actions, and have fully considered the resilience of response
strategies under different climate scenario.
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Environment (continued)

Climate Change Management (continued)

Physical risks

Operations located in Mainland China and Hong Kong are exposed
to physical risks such as extreme wind or cyclone, flooding and water
stress. These extreme weather events would pose threats on our
business and the safety of our employees, such as property damages,
disruptions to daily operations, as well as interruptions to the supply
chain of the Group. The impact of climate change has been mitigated
by various measures. Business contingency plans for our manufacturing
and retail operations are in place. Emergency response preparation
against flood is regularly reviewed. Employees are also guided with
corresponding work arrangements and safety precautions. To prevent
impact from flooding, all production equipment is placed above ground
floor in the factories in Hong Kong and Mainland China. In addition,
the Group has also established water and energy consumption reduction
targets for our factories, and closely monitor the consumption to
enhance climate resilience. We will also monitor weather conditions
during severe weather events to prevent property damage, employee
injuries, and business disruptions.

Physical risks are well observed throughout the Group’s supply chain,
such as the sourcing of pearls, where the production of oysters and
mussels are prone to environmental stress caused by climate change.
The Group has taken supply stability and product pricing considerations
into its current business strategies, and incorporated sustainability as key
priority in supplier screening and assessment.

The Group believes that with its ongoing climate change adaptation,
mitigation and emergency response, physical risks would have minimal
impact on our business. We will continue to monitor the situation and
update our management approach to climate change.

Transition risks

Decarbonisation is one of the key national sustainability trends related
to climate change. To achieve the 2060 carbon neutrality goal set by
China, more preparatory initiatives shall be established for the Group.
We have identified policies and legal risks in response to regulations and
standards including emissions trading scheme, and voluntary agreements
such as green energy certificate programme in China. We monitor
energy efficiency performance and strive to reduce our environmental
impact and stay abreast of relevant laws to better prepare the Group for
adaptation measures.
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Environment (continued)

Climate Change Management (continued)

Transition risks (continued)

The Group also identified market risk as arising from increased
environmental and social awareness among customers. A shift in market
preference from consumer expectations to sustainability commitment
could harm the Group's reputation if we fail to meet their expectations.
Market risk from increasing environmental and social awareness of
customers is also identified with relevance. We closely monitor our ESG
performance and strategies to ensure our performance is in line with the
customers’ expectations.

The sourcing of gold and platinum is also subject to transition risks
due to urgent diversion of investment towards climate risk mitigation
and demand for low-carbon technologies. We have proactively sought
to procure our materials from recycled sources, specifically recycled
gold, to decrease the reliance on newly mined metals and mitigate the
environmental footprint associated with our operations. In response,
the Group maintains close partnership with suppliers and secures the
supplies of conventional materials from multi-sourcing. We strongly urge
our suppliers to stay updated on national and regional carbon-neutral
policies and regulations. Additionally, we encourage them to create
their own carbon reduction roadmaps in order to align with our Group’s
commitment to sustainability.

Science Based Targets initiative

To expedite our progress towards carbon reduction and demonstrate
our commitment to sustainability, we have committed to establishing
emissions reduction targets through the Science Based Targets initiative
("SBTi") in 2023.

The SBTi is a collaborative effort led by esteemed organisations such as
the United Nations Global Compact, the World Resources Institute, the
Carbon Disclosure Project, and the World Wide Fund for Nature, which
helps companies determine a pathway for reducing their emissions in
line with the Paris Agreement’s goal of limiting global warming to well
below 2°C above pre-industrial levels.

Being the first local jewellery brand in Hong Kong committing to
science-based carbon reduction targets, we aim to contribute to the
transition to a low-carbon economy. We will disclose our reduction
targets and achievements in our ESG report upon receipt of admission
from SBTI.

The environmental and social data in the “ESG Data Table” section were
organised along with two previous years' data and baselines year data
for comparison and analysis.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Wastewater Management

The Group’s major use of water occurs at its factories in its
manufacturing jewellery, which results in the generation of wastewater
containing acids, alkali, various chemicals and heavy metals. At the
factories in Shunde and Hong Kong, there is an onsite facility for
neutralising, deioising and sedimenting of the wastewater. The effluent
is certified safe to discharge into the municipal network, and the sludge
is properly handled by licensed operators.

A breakdown of wastewater discharged is provided in the “ESG Data
Table” section. Compared with 2022, the Group discharged less
wastewater with effort of improving efficient water use during the year.
We will continue to monitor the volume and quality of the effluent to
ensure it is discharged appropriately and responsibly.

Waste Management

Another area of focus in the Group’s environmental management
policies is waste reduction at source. The Group has placed significant
emphasis on the reusability in the packaging of its products by making
use of recyclable, reusable, and biodegradable packaging materials
whenever possible. Customers will find our boxes useful for storing
other items if not used for their jewellery. We have been promoting
the use of electronic receipts as transaction records to our customers,
hoping that they can join us in contributing to environmental protection.
It is ingrained into our culture to reuse suitable containers and boxes
for transportation. As a recognition of our continuous effort in waste
reduction, the offices and laboratory of the Group were bestowed the
Wastewi$e Certificate (Excellence Level) while factory of the Group was
bestowed Wastewi$e Certificate (Good Level) by Hong Kong Green
Organisation Certification. An increase in the usage and distribution of
packaging materials was noted as compared to 2022 primarily due to
the resumption of all operations and growth in our business.

The Group will continue to explore possible ways to avoid undue
and unnecessary use of packaging materials and recycle whenever
appropriate. A breakdown of packaging materials used is provided in
the "ESG Data Table” section.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)
There are other measures for further savings but heightened awareness:

o to cut down the use of disposable cups, all staff members are
encouraged to use glass and cups; and wherever feasible guests
are served with those as well;

o to reuse printed paper before recycling;

o to promote paperless office by using electronic communications;
and

o to promote digitalisation in daily operations such as dispatching
meeting materials electronically.

Recycling bins are generally available and employees are encouraged to
make use of them. We have participated in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence for many years and recycled resources used
in our operations wherever possible. All recyclables are collected and
handled by recognised recycling organisations.

Where options of recycling and reuse have been fully considered, the
Group engages authorised or licensed contractors in the disposal of
general waste and hazardous waste generated at our manufacturing
factories or at our offices.

The Group endeavours to reduce use of hazardous materials wherever
feasible. For example, the factory in Hong Kong has changed its
electroforming processes to use non-cyanide chemicals. Overall,
hazardous waste has always been handled by qualified contractors in
compliance with applicable local laws.

A breakdown of hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste generated is
provided in the "ESG Data Table” section. Due to the resumption of all
operations in this reporting year, an increased amount of non-hazardous
waste has been recorded by the Group compared to the previous year.
There is a slight decrease in hazardous waste. Due to expansion of data
scope and alignment of data consolidation, previous year's data is also
being restated to reflect the comparable trend. We will continue to
promote waste reduction measures, such as reuse and recycling, in our
operations to improve resource effectiveness.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Air Emissions Management'

Jewellery manufacturing generates air emissions that may contain acids,
alkali, other chemicals or traces of metals and dust. Depending on the
scale of the operation and the nature of the processes employed, our
workplaces are equipped with measures ranging from fume cupboards
and filters to full-scale scrubber networks to render the air clean for
discharge into the atmosphere as per the requirement of local regulatory
authorities. In particular, the scrubber system in Shunde factory has

airflow control to keep noxious emissions out of the working area.

Community Involvement

The Group believes that its involvement in the community can foster
social harmony and development and is simply good corporate
citizenship. The Group is awarded as a Caring Company in the Caring
Company Scheme organised by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in recognition of the efforts the Group spent on community, employee

and environment topics.

Promotion of Arts and Cultural Development

The Group is keen to foster the growth and development of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural landscape, and we believe this encourages
positive societal values for the expression of thoughts and feelings
through design and innovation. For example, we have been a corporate
partner with Hong Kong Sinfonietta and Maestro Circle member of the
Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra for many years. The Hong Kong

Repertory Theatre has likewise been receiving programme sponsorship.

Community Development

The Group has contributed to various charitable themes such as youth
education, social service, community care, child and elderly care, care

for special needs and groups on raising environmental awareness.

During the year, we have supported many charitable organisations
through monetary and in-kind donations and through participation in
their charitable events. The Group’s charitable contributions can be
referred to the Report of the Directors in this annual report. The Group
donated to a number of organisations including The Salvation Army, St.

James' Settlement People’s Food Bank and Yan Chai Hospital.

not reported.
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Air emissions are not material to the Group’s operations. The types of
emissions and respective emissions data of HKEx ESG Guide are therefore
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development (continued)

For charity events, the Group has been collaborating with The Salvation
Army in organising " A4 4 x It EHE T ¢ELS " in some of our stores,
allowing the rehabilitated persons to interact with the community and
to sell exquisite products made by them for charity purpose. The Group
also cared for the vulnerable groups by continuing participating in the
housing projects operated by Light Be (Z4F ) which aimed to help
short-term poverty households who are capable to escape poverty
and gradually achieve upward mobility upon receipt of short period of
assistance from Light Be.

Recognising the importance of quality education for young people,
the Group provides scholarship funds to The Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts, the City University of Hong Kong and have subsidised
the “Sustained Vitality, Ever Rejuvenated Education aid fund” (44 A
BELBEES) run by Shanghai Education Foundation of Huangpu
District.

Apart from offering scholarship, the Group is also devoted to cultivating
our next generations in Hong Kong the value of creative thinking and
diverse talent. We have continued in participating in the promotion of
STEM education in Hong Kong. The Group organised a STEAM (with the
element of “Arts” incorporated into STEM) workshop — “Precious Metal
Wizard” during HK SciFest hosted by the Hong Kong Science Museum
to empower young minds by providing them hands-on experiment
experience to learn about the scientific concepts and principles behind
the manufacturing of jewellery. Together with our STEAM workshop &
Ea T which over 740 participants from 20 secondary schools
and a social service organisation have joined our workshops in 2023,
we hope to pass on our talent and science knowledge to the youths
through these activities.

To promote the jewellery industry to secondary school students, the
Group has participated in a project on “QF Promotion for Industries in
Schools”, co-organised by Qualifications Framework (QF) Secretariat
and the Hong Kong Productivity Council (HKPC). A Jewellery Industry
FutureSkills Experiential Workshop was organised, aiming to allow the
students to experience the actual working environment in and have a
better understanding of the current trend and career development of
the jewellery industry.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development (continued)

Chow Sang Sang has opened a marine-themed jewellery concept
store at Harbour City, making it the first of its kind in Hong Kong. In
addition, to promote the concept of caring for marine ecology to the
public, we have invited a startup company, which offered one-stop
solutions for restoring degraded marine ecosystems with 3D-printed reef
tiles, to assist us in launching the “Harbour of Love” coral restoration
campaign. This campaign will last for 3 years, aiming to cultivate more
than 20 square meters of coral in Hong Kong waters through the
setting up terracotta reef trays under the sea and hoping to support the
conservation of marine ecology by providing an ideal environment for
coral growth. An Annual Report will be provided to us which highlighted
the measurable impact achieved with the deployment of the reef tiles
including highlights of the coral reef growth and the amount of coral
fragments secured.

The Group not only supports Hong Kong community but also extends
the support to Mainland China, Macau, and Taiwan. Our offices in all
regions are encouraged to initiate or participate in charitable events
targeted to serve local community associations and organisations
for youngsters, elderly, and environmental protection. To encourage
participation by our staff, the Group sponsors the activities and
encourages interested employees to become volunteers. Employees
are eligible to apply for volunteer leave, which further encourages the
participation of meaningful charitable work. The number of volunteer
hours accumulated in 2023 is 1,906 hours.

As the pandemic subsided, apart from our event "E4 4 RZIH", our
offices in China have resumed taking part in tree planting activities held
by different organisations across the country. In 2023, we have over 500
staff participating in the event "Z& T AfE#1/Z®)" and a total of 253
trees was planted.

Our Taiwan office has organised a “Volunteer Day” where our staff
were divided into two teams: the business center team went to
Bethlehem Warehouse to sort out donated items to be sent to the needy
in remote villages in East Africa while the system development team
went to Sanzhi Coast for a beach clean-up and consolidated the waste
data in support of The Society of Wilderness ( FEf{R#E %€ ) marine
research.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG Data Table

In this table of this section, the totals are rounded to the nearest whole

BE HERERKRE

BE  HERERBER
ERBANRRT  BEEREREOL

number. B o
Environmental Data REEE
KPI Unit
HRRERER By 2023 2022 20212
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions’
RERBLEHENE’
Scope 1 - Direct Greenhouse Gas Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide 875 688 898
Emissions Equivalent (tCO,e)
#HE - ERAZREBHNRE RE—ARES
Scope 2 - Indirect Greenhouse Gas Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide 19,332 20,675 19,946

Emissions*
HE2 - HEAE

Equivalent (tCO,e)

REHmE" DE—S(LIREE

Restatement of data due to expansion of geographical scope

3

Data with reference to GHG Protocol

Energy conversion factors used are referenced from the Department for
Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy of the UK Government and The
Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (“HK & China Gas").

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are emissions from sources that are
owned or controlled by us (Scope 1), including fugitive emissions, use of
fuel for stationary and mobile combustion. The data were calculated and
referenced from “Greenhouse Gas Accounting Tool for Chinese Cities
(Pilot Version 1.0)" published by World Resources Institute, “Provincial
Greenhouse Gas Inventory Compilation Guidelines (Pilot)” published
by China Business Council for Sustainable Development, “Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx,
and the "Greenhouse gas reporting: conversion factors” published by
the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy of the UK
Government.

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are emissions that are consequences
of the activities of our operations, but occur at sources owned or
controlled by other entities (Scope 2), including purchased electricity. It
was quantified by the market-based method as defined by GHG Protocol.
GHG emissions associated with the electricity purchased in Hong Kong
and Macau were calculated referencing the data obtained from the
relevant providers of electricity, including CLP Holdings Limited (“CLP"),
Hong Kong Electric and Companhia de Electricidade de Macau. The
emissions for electricity purchased in Taiwan and Mainland China were
calculated referencing the data from the Bureau of Energy, Ministry of
Economic Affairs of the Taiwan Government and International Energy
Agency respectively.

With the use of renewable energy such as self-generated electricity from

solar panels at the Shunde Factory, and the purchase of Renewable Energy
Certificates, we were able to reduce our Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission in
2023.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG Data Table (continued)

BE  HERERBER(E)

Environmental Data (continued) REEE (E)
KPI Unit
HRRERER By 2023 2022 20212
Greenhouse Gas Intensity®
BERBEZE’
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions Tonnes of Carbon 0.8 1.0 0.9
(Scopes 1 and 2) Intensity Dioxide Equivalent
BRERBAENE(HEI1 R2)EE (tCO,e)/Turnover in
HKD million
AE-—EfiEE
BEABTEXER
Total Energy Consumption’
wpEse’
Direct Energy Consumption Gigajoule (G)) 3,617 3,763 5,233
 Euel? FhEE
B
- KRR
Indirect Energy Consumption Megawatt Hour (MWh) 38,893 35,262 33,872
— Purchased electricity JKEL
I BE#E Gigajoule (GJ) 140,015 126,945 121,939
-BEE FHREE

The revenue used for intensity calculation is based on the turnover of all

continuing operations due to expansion of geographical scope.
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Fuel used in the operations includes natural gas, towngas, liquefied
petroleum gas, diesel, petrol, butane, acetylene, cokeoven gas and naphtha.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RIE HERERKRSE

ESG Data Table (continued) RE HERERBEXR(E)

Environmental Data (continued) REEE (&
KPI Unit
BRAENER By 2023 2022* 20217
Energy Intensity’
BERZE®
Total Energy Consumption Gigajoule (GJ)/Turnover 5.7 6.4 5.8
(Fuel® and Purchased electricity) in HKD million
Intensity TKEE BEET
BREEMH REEEN)RE BER
Total Water Consumption
BREKE
Freshwater Tonnes 114,219 111,517 120,968
D UN W
Water Consumption Intensity’
FkZE®
Freshwater Tonnes/Turnover 4.6 5.4 5.5
HIK in HKD million
W,/ BEATEER
Total Volume of Effluent Discharged
BHEkEE
Wastewater Tonnes 90,104 92,800 98,895
LN W
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RIE HERERKRSE

ESG Data Table (continued) BRE HEREAREEXR(E)
Environmental Data (continued) REEE(E)

KPI Unit

BEENEE By 2023 2022? 20212

Hazardous Waste Generated

FELEBEEREY
Highly Acidic Waste Tonnes 6.5 8.3 8.4
=R EEY I
Others (e.g. waste with inorganic cyanide, Tonnes 101.2 101.2 118.3
organic solvent) A
HipEEM(PImERTIy  ARARN
REEY))

Non-Hazardous Waste Generated

FELEEREEY

General Waste Tonnes 925 859 777
—REEEY I

Paper Waste Generated Tonnes 73 61 56
FrEEE HRERY I

Paper Waste Recycled Tonnes 8 7 20
PR ARREE R W

Packaging Materials Used

ERANEENH

Paper Box Tonnes 508 440 455
Hwea 1

Jewellery Pouch Tonnes 17 17 16
NRER M

Paper Bag Tonnes 156 120 212
mR W

Others (e.qg. plastic, leather, wood, and etc.) Tonnes 26 35 42
B e (BImER  RE - AME) W
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RIE HERERKRSE

ESG Data Table (continued) BiE HEREARBERE)
Social Data HEHE
KPI Unit
RREVER By 2023 2022° 20217

Total Workforce by Geographical Region

BHRESNESEH

Mainland China Person 10,352 9,989 9,382
BN

Hong Kong Person 1,426 1,330 1,303
e A

Macau Person 151 126 96
R A

Taiwan Person 246 228 211
=) A

Total Workforce by Gender

BURIESNESEE

Female Person 9,908 9,442 8,849
z A

Male Person 2,267 2,231 2,143
3 A

Total Workforce by Employment Category

RERERESNESLEH

General Staff Person 7,191 7,202 7,275
—RETL A

Middle Management Person 4,239 3,786 3,111
FEERABR A

Upper Management Person 745 685 606
BEEEAR A

Total Workforce by Age Group

RERERNBINERSRH

Under 30 Person 2,545 2,769 2,923
305k T A

30-50 Person 9,213 8,520 7,723
30-50 3% A

Over 50 Person 417 384 346
503 £ A
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ESG Data Table (continued) BiE HEREARBERE)

Social Data (continued) HEEE(E

KPI Unit

BEENEE By 2023 2022? 20212

Employee Turnover Rate by Geographical Region

BB NEERER

Mainland China % 15.7 31.4 39.6
FBIKRE

Hong Kong % 9.4 17.6 21.0
BE

Macau % 21.9 27.0 19.8
JRFT

Taiwan % 18.3 26.8 23.2

Lk
R/=

Employee Turnover Rate by Gender

RUBEPHNEERAR

Female % 15.6 30.4 37.5
z

Male % 13.2 26.9 34.2
|==]

3

Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group
RERAREINEERAER

Under 30 % 27.8 56.3 63.5
30BAT
30-50 % 11.9 21.9 27.9
30-505%
Over 50 % 8.4 1.7 12.7
503 £

Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender

BUuBBSNZIEEE S

Female % 86.9 86.5 86.8
L8
Male % 13.1 13.5 13.2
£
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ESG Data Table (continued)

BE  HERERBER(E)

Social Data (continued) HEEE(E)

KPI Unit
BRAENER By 2023 2022 20217
Percentage of Employees Trained by

Employment Category
RERERNAINZIEERTSL
General Staff % 58.2 62.7 65.6
—RET
Middle Management % 37.4 334 304
FEERABR
Upper Management % 4.4 3.9 4.0
2EERABR
Average Training Hours Completed Per

Employee by Gender
BitERE S BEEETHZINTHEY
Female Hours 48.0 50.8 51.0
z N
Male Hours 234 252 24.0
S N
Average Training Hours Completed Per

Employee by Employment Category
RERERES  BEEEXAZTINFIRY
General Staff Hours 58.7 61.5 56.8
—RET /B
Middle Management Hours 23.2 22.2 25.0
FEEEAR /N
Upper Management Hours 10.6 13.0 19.1
=SEEHAS /B
No. of Suppliers by Geographical Region
RiEE S NHERHA
Mainland China Number 274 244 266
=N gE
Hong Kong Number 191 206 184
BE gE
Asia (excluding Mainland China & Hong Kong) Number 14 16 13
M EHPBEARREREE) BE
Europe Number 5 7 10
BM gE
Others Number 2 3 2
HAh gE
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ESG Data Table (continued)

Social Data (continued)

B dERERBER(E)
HEEE(E)

KPI Unit

BRAENER By 2023 2022 20217

Product Responsibility

EmEIME

Percentage of total products sold or shipped % 0 0 0
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

Az2kERRRARMNEEHSREED
BEASL

Product- and service-related complaints received Case 53 39 75

PTUS B 6) 2E o S PR AR BR 1R 5 =

Legal cases regarding corrupt practices

HESHBRARSE

Concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Case 0 0 0

brought against the issuer or its

(=
N

employees during the reporting period

RERAARBTASLEE TRETERED
BISHRAARM

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEESEBRBRARAA

58  ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 F



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group strives to adhere to the highest standards of transparency,
accountability and corporate governance, balancing and protecting
the interests of shareholders, employees, customers and suppliers. The
Company has complied throughout the year ended 31 December 2023
with the applicable code provisions as set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the "Code"”) contained in Appendix C1 (formerly
Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules, except for the deviations from code
provisions B.2.4(b) and C.2.1 which are explained in the relevant
paragraphs of this report. The Company will continue to enhance its
corporate governance practices appropriate to the operations and
growth of the business of the Group.

Corporate Culture

Forming the core of its corporate culture is Chow Sang Sang’s belief
that the Company must act lawfully, ethically, honestly and responsibly
in all its endeavours, to all its employees and stakeholders, in order to
thrive. It is a belief that has been upheld by the Company steadfastly
since its beginning and as it celebrates its 90th Anniversary in 2024.

Our mission is to create jewellery and related products that are
innovative in design, exceptional in quality and workmanship, and
environmentally responsible in manufacture.

Our vision is to be a leader in the industry for innovative use of
technology in design, production, distribution and marketing, with
the ultimate aim of reducing cost and cutting waste as we strive for
sustainability.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises eleven Directors, of whom four are Executive
Directors ("EDs”), two Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and five
Independent Non-executive Director(s) (“INED(s)”). A list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC.

The code provision B.2.4(b) stipulates that where all the INEDs of a
listed issuer have served more than nine years on the board, the listed
issuer should appoint a new INED on the board at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. In accordance, the Company strived to select
a suitable candidate for appointment as a new INED before the 2023
annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2023 (“2023
AGM™). Mr. HSU Rockson was appointed as an INED on 1 June 2023,
after the 2023 AGM was held.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Chairman and Group General Manager

The code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of
the opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The
composition of the Board, with a strong complement of INEDs and
NEDs, already ensures checks and balances in decision-making.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs written annual
confirmation of his independence as required under the Listing Rules.
Based on the annual review conducted by the Nomination Committee,
the Board considered all INEDs to be independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Two NEDs of which one is an INED are appointed for a specific term of
not more than three years pursuant to the then Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in the Listing Rules.
There will be no fixed term of their appointment, subject to the re-
election after the expiry of their then current term. Pursuant to the
Company’s bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years at the Company’s annual general meeting
and any person appointed by the Board as an additional to the Board
or to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first annual
general meeting of the Company after the appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are
reminded on a reqular basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines (the “Written
Internal Guidelines”) that follow the Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

On appointment to the Board, the newly appointed Directors will
receive a comprehensive induction handbook covering the Company’s
constitutional documents, internal policies and guidance as well as a
briefing by a qualified professional on the general and specific duties of
a director under legal and regulatory requirements to ensure that they
are thoroughly aware of their responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development (continued)
During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided their records of training to the Company. Details are as
follows:

>
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Exg(8)

EECHAZXRR (A
FRNEF2ARBBIXER UBRKE
RSz Bk WERARRRM
WE2EAR e - ST

Training "
Name of Directors EEng s
Executive Directors: HITESE !
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing XA e v
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing [E AP B v
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing B EE v
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing B2 e v
Non-executive Directors: FHITES .
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TREXE v
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam EMMEE v
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHTES :
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FREEE v
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun PBRIFENE £ 4
Dr. LO King Man ERXEL 4
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung BINEESRE v
Mr. HSU Rockson FRELAE 4

(appointed on 1 June 2023)

(R2023%6 51 AEEME)

Note:

The mode of trainings includes but not limited to attending briefing, conference,
online trainings and seminars, and/or reading materials on relevant topics.

Apart from the above trainings, a visit to the Group’s stores and/or
industrial park in Guangzhou and Foshan has been arranged for
Directors during the year to enhance their understanding of the Group's
business and sustainability developments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group's
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group's businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.
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Attendance Records of Directors

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committees meetings and the annual general meeting held in 2023 are

set out as follows:

>
e
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ESNHRELHE
REFHRN2023FARTHESTERE
ZZE29H  URBRBAFARENLE
o

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRLERY/ BN
Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Board  Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors BEH? Eze ENZEE  §MWzZEe REZEE  RRAFAE
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing xR EE 5/5 - - - i
Chairman and Group General Manager IEFREF LT
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing KB4 5/5 - - 1”n "
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing ARKEE 5/5 - - - i
Group Deputy General Manager £ER B0
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing BBt 5/5 - - - 171
Non-executive Directors: FHTES :
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 5/5 22 7 n n
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam EmMEE 5/5 22 /1 1l 171
Independent Non-executive Directors: ~ BIFHTES
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FREEE 5/5 2 N 0 101
Chairman of the three Committees ZlFEREZEE
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun BREE 5/5 0 1 11 11
Dr. LO King Man EgxfEt 5/5 0 1/1 11 o
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung BErs 5/5 2 11 171 7N
Mr. HSU Rockson* SREEAT 33 1/1 17 N/A N/A
TEm TER
- The Director is not a member - EEUHAS

* Subsequent to the appointment of Mr. HSU Rockson as an INED and
members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee on 1 June 2023, there were three Board meetings,
one Audit Committee meeting and one Remuneration Committee meeting
held.

In addition to the Board and Board Committees meetings, the Board and
Board Committees also dealt with matters by way of written resolutions
during the year.

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Independence

The Company recognises that board independence is crucial in good
corporate governance and board effectiveness and has put in place
mechanism for ensuring independent views and input. The board has
conducted an evaluation, and, based on the following observations it
concluded that its independence is adequate and effective:

five out of the eleven Directors are INEDs, which meets the
requirements of the Listing Rules that the Board must have at least
three INEDs and must appoint INEDs representing at least one-
third of the Board.

the Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of
reference to identify suitable candidates, including INEDs, for
appointment as Directors.

a director nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) is in place
with details of the process and criteria of identifying, selecting,
recommending, cultivating and integrating new directorship.

the Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence
of all INEDs and to affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria
of independence as set out in the Listing Rules and is free from
any relationships and circumstances which are likely to affect, or
could appear to affect, their independent judgement.

any Director may seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense, upon prior
reasonable request being made to the Board.

a dedicated meeting with the Chairman annually will provide
the INEDs an opportunity and channel to express their views in a
confidential manner.

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the
Company'’s senior management independently, if necessary.

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
HKEC.

Composition of each of the three committees is shown in the section
headed “Attendance Records of Directors” above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to monitor the
integrity of the Group's consolidated financial statements, oversee
the Group’s financial reporting systems, internal control and risk
management procedures and the relationship with the external auditor.
Members possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Group’s accounting
principles and practices, development in accounting standards and
associated impacts on the Group, risk management issues, audit
findings, compliance, strategy summary and financial reporting matters,
and the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The Committee also reviewed the re-appointment of
the Company’s auditor, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the unaudited interim
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2023, with recommendations to the Board. The Committee discussed
the above matters, where appropriate, with management and external
auditor.

Remuneration Committee
The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and structure for
the remuneration of all Directors and senior management, determining,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
EDs and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.

During the year, apart from reviewing and making recommendation
on the remuneration package and letter of appointment for a newly
appointed INED, the Committee conducted the annual review of the
remuneration packages under its purview and made recommendations
to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of INEDs, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and determining the policy
for nomination of Directors.

During the year, the Committee conducted a review in accordance with
its remit. It assessed and confirmed the independence of the INEDs, and
made recommendation to the Board on the nomination of Dr. Gerald
CHOW King Sing, Mr. LEE Ka Lun and Dr. LO King Man, the retiring
directors, for re-election as Directors by the shareholders at the 2023
AGM.

The Company embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members and
has a board diversity policy in place. All Board appointments are based
on meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In determining the Board composition, the Committee considers a
number of aspects including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
industry and regional experience and other qualities.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of one female
and ten male Directors with different professional background and
industry experience. The Board considered that the Company has
achieved the objective of board diversity during the year.

The Group has also taken, and continues to take, steps to promote
diversity at all levels of its workforce. Opportunities for employment,
training and career development are equally opened to all eligible
employees without discrimination. Currently, the male to female
ratio in the workforce of the Group including senior management is
approximately 1:4. The Board considers that this ratio is appropriate,
given the nature of the business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Policy sets out the selection process and the criteria in
relation to nomination and appointment of directors of the Company
and aims to ensure the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level. In selecting individuals for nomination, the
Committee takes into account the person’s:

o character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience;

. effect on the diversity on the Board;

e meeting the independence requirement for members of the Board;
and

° commitment to understanding the Company and its industry,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board.

Upon receipt of nominations for appointment of new directors, the
Committee evaluates and ranks such candidates based on the criteria
as set out above. The Committee then makes recommendation to the
Board. Any nominations submitted by shareholders will be considered
likewise by the Committee, which shall then advise the Board to make
recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.

For re-election of director at the general meeting, the Committee and/or
the Board reviews the overall contribution and service made by the
retiring director to the Group, and determines whether the retiring
director’s level of participation and performance on the Board meet the
criteria as set out above. The Board then makes recommendation to
the shareholders on the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, who is also the Financial Controller of the
Group, is a full time employee of the Company. During the year,
the Company Secretary undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required by the Listing Rules. The biography
of the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed “Board of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has undertaken to perform the corporate governance
functions and is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and keeping up to date with the latest
requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Written
Internal Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and
the disclosure in this report.

Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs, results and cash flows in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

External auditor

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, on the Group's consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75
to 82 of this annual report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, the process and the
effectiveness of Ernst & Young and has recommended its re-appointment
as the Company's external auditor at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated
fees thereof paid/payable for 2023 were as follows:

=

Audit =h
Taxation %
Others Hi
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that adequate risk
management and internal controls are in place to safequard the Group's
assets and manage risks (including ESG risks). The Board reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. Policies and procedures are designed for providing
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Group’s objectives.

Risk Management

Management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Management
develops action plans to address potential risks and contingency plans
for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks. Risk assessment is carried out biannually. Key
risks and action plans are identified by management and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board.
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out as follows:

AEEEL L BEE KT EEAFWT -

° Retail markets are affected by the respective economies,
geopolitical manoeuvres. Consumer demand for gold is susceptible
to price volatility.

. High-value transactions could be attempts by parties to launder
money.

. Details of financial risk management objectives and policies are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

J Data and communication systems and online trading facilities
could be subject of different forms of attack.

. EMISX & ELE R &KEUA
?E’J?/E HEEHSENE KRS
ZHEREBNTE -
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CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AELESEBREREAERAA

70

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 4 iR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control

The purpose of internal control is to reasonably provide assurance for
the compliance of the Group's operation with regulations and laws,
asset security and authenticity, integrity of financial report and related
information.
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group include the
following:

PEEHE L BABERERUTERE

o An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different aspects
of the operations and reports findings to the Audit Committee.

. A whistle-blowing mechanism is in place for stakeholders to report
wrongdoings and inappropriate practices.

. Policies and Code of Conduct are in place to guide employees
to behave with integrity and honesty, obey relevant laws and
regulations, and anti-corruption practices.

J Policies and operational guidelines are in place to inform
employees to avoid breaching anti-money laundering laws and
regulations.

J Major or material transactions require approval of Directors.

J Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.

. Operations are required to adhere to the principle that assets

are accounted for in books and systems and the records are
reconcilable at all times.
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The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group's risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2023, with reference to the risk management and internal
audit reports and the representations made by management and
concluded that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained. The annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget as well as those
relating to the Company’s ESG performance and reporting. There were
no significant areas of concern identified during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Constitutional Documents

In order to (i) conform with the latest Listing Rules and the applicable
laws of Bermuda; and (ii) incorporate provisions to allow and facilitate
hybrid and electronic meetings together with other minor housekeeping
amendments, an amended and restated bye-laws of the Company
was adopted at the 2023 AGM by a special resolution. Details of the
amendments were set out in the circular of the Company dated 28 April
2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not made any changes to
the Company’'s memorandum of association and bye-laws during the
year. A copy of the latest consolidated version of the memorandum
of association and amended and restated bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that human capital is a key asset to sustainable
business growth. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing a performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement. We believe
these measures could further enhance employee involvement and
engagement as part of a team.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to its customers. Apart from our professional sale representatives in
stores, we also have a dedicated team of customer relations personnel
for quick response to enquiries and complaints. We believe that
customer satisfaction is the key to our long-term success.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with its
suppliers. The Group is committed to developing stable and sustainable
partnership among its suppliers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with the
Company's shareholders and other stakeholders, and has therefore
established a shareholders’ communication policy to ensure effective
practice.

Our company website (www.chowsangsang.com) is one of the principal
channels of communication with shareholders, investors and consumers
alike. All corporate communications of the Company, including annual
and interim reports, announcements, circulars, terms of reference of
the committees and other corporate information are available on this
website.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as the chairman of the three Committees and other
members of the respective committees are available to answer questions
at the general meetings.

To solicit and get feedback from the shareholders, the following
channels are available to shareholders to express their views on matters
affecting the Company:

1. the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar for enquiries on
shareholdings;

2. the Company Secretary for enquiries about corporate governance
or other matters; and

3. whistleblowing mechanism.

Investor communication

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group's intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members
are held to share and discuss issues on achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, actual operational practices, local rules and regulations and
compliance practices.

The Board, having considered the communication channels and other
provisions as set out in the shareholders’ communication policy, believes
that corporate communication have been properly and effectively
conducted during the year.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholder(s) holding in aggregate not less than one-tenth (10%) of
the voting rights (on a one vote per share basis) in the share capital of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting ("SGM")
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholder(s) concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with
the requirements under section 74 of the Companies Act once a valid
requisition is received. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such SGM, the shareholders concerned or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholders concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b)

not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company's registered office and principal place of business in
Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

As regards proposing a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at the general meeting, the shareholder can refer
to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director” available on the Company’s website under the section
“Corporate Governance”.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e
EY:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 201, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEESBEBEBRARRASA

76

BYLHEMERS

HRETER
ARETZRIRERMCEXZHE - &

REAMGAENBRRZBIARRBERL
FH GLERRAHGSMBHRRER
ETBAAUTKERNER TETRE
B ZMTHELERIZREBLER -
RAE TR E—FRAER P EMAEY
BB ALBE R o

RMERBITARE KB F ot &I
HEAECEFIBOBLZEE  BREE
ELHREGFZHENAB AT - AR
R ET TEBERTRAERE KRS MG
BREREAEFARMRIEF © HAIT
BRFZ2ER  BREEYTABEREN
FEMATZEF  RERMBEHRRER
BRETBRRMTERM -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

2023 F #y



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYLHEMERS

Key audit matters

BREETSER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZERAEET P RUMAEHK

Net realisable value of inventories

FEZAE%FHE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
inventories (net of inventory provision), mainly comprised
of gold, platinum, diamond products and watches, was
HK$12,256,832,000. Significant judgement was required
to assess the appropriate level of inventory provision for
slow-moving or obsolete products which might be sold
below cost. The assessment took into account factors that
included, but were not limited to, economic outlook, sales
forecasts and the forecast market value for the inventory
items.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value
during the current year amounted to HK$12,948,000.

Further details about the Group’s inventory provision
are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

R2023F 12 A31 0 T8 (FEpE=E: 0  #EA
EmkiERk) WERMEES 12,256,832,000 8T (BHKE
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We obtained an understanding of management’s
processes for the initial identification of slow-moving or
obsolete products. We reviewed the bases adopted by
the Group for its inventory provision policy with reference
to historical inventory losses, and evaluated whether
the inventory provision was made in accordance with
the policy. We also assessed the inventory provision by
comparing the selling prices of the inventory items to their
costs.

In addition to the above, independent gemologists
were engaged by the Group to assess the net realisable
values of certain jewellery items held by the Group
as at 31 December 2023. We reviewed the sampling
approach adopted by the gemologists, which was based
on a mix of material and random items. For diamond
products assessed by the independent gemologists, we
also evaluated the net realisable value with reference
to independently published sales prices. In addition, we
evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency
of the independent gemologists.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYLHEMERS

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BRETEE ZERAEETPRUNMEHRN
Valuation of investment properties
REYF1EE

The Group owned a portfolio of investment properties in
Hong Kong and outside of Hong Kong, which was valued
at HK$428,210,000 as at 31 December 2023.

Significant estimation was required to determine the
fair value of the investment properties, which reflected
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Management engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer to estimate the value of investment
properties at the end of the reporting period.

Further details about the Group’s investment properties
are included in notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EEBRNEERERBIINEBIRNEMELS
F12 B 31 HZfAEA 428,210,000 BT °

HR 2023

BERBME 2O FEEAFLEAMG - ARBNERE Y
RGN - ERBERBBUEXABRGEMGERE
MERRERREE

Bl ERERBVEZE—SHBENGSMBHRRME
3R 17
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer. We also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the bases
and assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and performed
the benchmarking of the value of investment properties
held by the Group to other comparable properties. We
also compared property-related data used as key input
for the valuation with underlying documents, such as
lease agreements. In addition, we assessed the related
disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yen Ka Shun, Catherine.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

22 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2023

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Turnover

Retail

Other businesses

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Foreign exchange differences, net

Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before tax from continuing

operations

Income tax

Profit for the year from continuing

operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Loss for the year from discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable

to owners of the Company:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDIN

Note
By &E

BESEER
EER 5
TE

H i F5

HEKAK

EF

Hi A R Wzt - #E 6
HENMDHER

THREH

EXERE FE

Lip N 8
FHEH 8

BRELERK
BRBLATE 7

st 12

BREEXE 2
FRER

KPR 13
BRI 7 FRNER

FREF

BEER

A (B8
ARAREAA
IR

ARRERAREFR
A,/ (B1R)
TREEED

RIEREXET

FEBBEEBAR QA 2023

REBEER
HZE2023F 12 A31BILEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
24,274,496 19,751,940
738,843 804,576
25,013,339 20,556,516
(18,409,837) (15,140,010)
6,603,502 5,416,506
106,158 37,513
(4,253,838) (3,847,602)
(971,528) (862,228)
(14,499) (82,905)
17,556 13,340
(129,899) (81,860)
1,357,452 592,764
(310,590) (117,003)
1,046,862 475,761
(47,679) (34,039)
999,183 441,722
1,012,680 452,326
(13,497) (10,604)
999,183 441,722
1,060,359 486,365
(47,679) (34,039)
1,012,680 452,326

o
i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS REBEER

Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12A31BLLFE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
By &E FTET TET
Earnings per share attributable to EAREEAEMN
owners of the Company BREF 15
Basic and diluted EAR#E
— For profit for the year - FRHF 149.5 cents 66.8 centsfll

— For profit from continuing operations - FEEEEB RN

156.5 cents

71.8 centsfl
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REZHEHBREEX

Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F 12 A31BILEE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt =E FEx FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 999,183 441,722

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Ht2EWKE(FE)

Item that may be reclassified subsequently BETEEHRIEE

to profit or loss: BiEKx2HEE
Exchange differences on translation P 5 =28 (223,819) (651,647)
Items that will not be reclassified AETEENIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BRR2EE
Changes in fair value of financial assets EERBRRATEE
designated at fair value through other STAHMEE K
comprehensive income NI BEEZ AT
BEZD (238,296) (392,633)
Revaluation upon transfer of buildings to BFERTRENE
investment properties FrE (G 16 = 20,622
Other comprehensive loss that will not be R TeEHsHE
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss BRrzHMEE
BB (238,296) (372,011)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMEZEESE (462,115) (1,023,658)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FREEKE(FHE)
FOR THE YEAR e 537,068 (581,936)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the E{HFEREM

year attributable to: Wz (F58) 858
Owners of the Company KARIEEA 550,631 (571,280)
Non-controlling interests IR (13,563) (10,656)
537,068 (581,936)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the ZAATHEEABIEER
year attributable to owners of the 2EkE(BE)
Company: e
Continuing operations BRI 598,310 (537,241)
Discontinued operation BRI (47,679) (34,039)
550,631 (571,280)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2023

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Other assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Tax recoverable

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Bullion loans

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

REeMBRR R

72023%F12A31H

Note
B &
ERBEE
ERE Y] 16
REME 17
EREEE 18(a)
Hih & & 19

BEREAFEEFAL
EERSENIHEE 20

BREFIAEE 33
BIERBEE

RBEE

FE 21
JEE U5 B 3R 22
BEHENREELEE

Z FEUTBR 3K 23
B FIE - HiEWERR
REMEE 24
BATFEEABZEMN
BB E 25
MEemI A 30
AU B E

REFHEELHS 26
RekZFEREE 26
BRBEE

PN

FERTER K 27
BHEDREELEEY
FERTERX 28
HiEfRF R ESEE 29
TESMTA 30
SEBRITER 31
ESBIEE 32
HEARE 18(b)
AR

BRBEE

RBEEFE
BEERRBERE

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx FAET
1,202,495 1,085,850
428,210 508,335
1,052,169 964,050
220,340 205,021
920,520 1,158,816
59,179 68,244
3,882,913 3,990,316
12,256,832 12,112,349
969,359 818,472
78,144 123,642
848,763 815,415
12,417 14,334
528 10,008
10,575 15,623
479 2,070
1,096,146 748,628
15,273,243 14,660,541
134,917 130,442
479 2,070
674,688 609,147
4,842 12,371
1,088,888 1,026,163
3,047,732 3,073,102
517,216 466,241
166,189 37,274
5,634,951 5,356,810
9,638,292 9,303,731
13,521,205 13,294,047
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2023

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Issued capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Director

B &
ES

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDI

=

FRBEE

ATRIRITER

ELEREAE

BIFRBAE

EEFRE

B

ARARA ARG

BEITHAR
G

ey o

RER

Winston CHOW Wun Sing
Director

EEEE B AR

NGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NI

REMBERRE
72023%F12A31H

Note
By &E

31
18(b)
33

34
36

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
429,030 540,761
541,922 516,744
380,059 366,314
1,351,011 1,423,819
12,170,194 11,870,228
169,359 169,359
12,034,713 11,721,184
12,204,072 11,890,543
(33,878) (20,315)
12,170,194 11,870,228
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022

Profit for the year

R2022%1 /1R
FRET

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year: FERNEM2EME/ (BE) :

Changes in fair value of financial assets
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation

Revaluation upon transfer of buildings
to investment properties

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Transfer from retained profits
Dividends declared and paid during
the year

At 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2023

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
Changes in fair value of financial assets
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer from retained profits

Dividends declared and paid during
the year

At 31 December 2023

HEAEATEEF A
£ 2 UG5
%7 AT EEE

ExXZE

BT BEERANEREN

FRZEBEER
ZaREEMN
FASREAMRS

72022612 A31H

R2023F1A1H

FREA
FREMEEEE :
EERRRTEBTA
ity 2 ER R F %
EEZATEERY
EXER

FAEERREHE

HEREEH
FRERREMNRE

72023512 A31H

Attributable to owners of the Company

Building

Issued Share revaluation

capital premium reserve

BF

ERITRA R4 R 1E EfhfEE

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt zE TR TR TR
169,359 1,060,356 451,914

16 - - 20,622
- - 20,622

14 = = =
169,359 1,060,356* 472,536*

169,359 1,060,356 472,536

14 = = =
169,359 1,060,356* 472,536*

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$12,034,713,000 (2022: HK$11,721,184,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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REERZER

HZE2023F 12 A31BILEE

ERRERAES
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets Difference
designated at arising from
fair value acquisition
through other of non- Exchange Non-
comprehensive controlling fluctuation Reserve Retained controlling Total
income interests reserve funds profits Total interests equity
EERRAY
BEG AL
2HBEH e
BHEEZ FRRER HE
ATEERE EEZEH BEfME REE REEF CHS FERESR E 43
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(Note 36)
(F&E36)
1,549,513 4,897 365,319 612,006 8,539,756 12,753,120 (9,659) 12,743,461
- - - - 452,326 452,326 (10,604) 441,722
(392,633) - - - - (392,633) - (392,633)
- - (651,595) - - (651,595) (52) (651,647)
- - - - - 20,622 - 20,622
(392,633) - (651,595) - 452,326 (571,280) (10,656) (581,936)
- - - 11,092 (11,092) - - -
- - - - (291,297) (291,297) - (291,297)
1,156,880* 4,897* (286,276)* 623,098* 8,689,693* 11,890,543 (20,315) 11,870,228
1,156,880 4,897 (286,276) 623,098 8,689,693 11,890,543 (20,315) 11,870,228
- - - - 1,012,680 1,012,680 (13,497) 999,183
(238,296) - - - - (238,296) - (238,296)
- - (223,753) - - (223,753) (66) (223,819)
(238,296) - (223,753) - 1,012,680 550,631 (13,563) 537,068
- - - 38,786 (38,786) - - -
- - - - (237,102) (237,102) - (237,102)
918,584* 4,897* (510,029)* 661,884* 9,426,485* 12,204,072 (33,878) 12,170,194

* W EREEB ARG AR R 2R A I 12,034,713,000870(2022 4 : 11,721,184,00087T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Mainland China and elsewhere tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for right-of-use assets in relation to
leased land

Proceeds from disposal of an investment
property

Purchases of investment properties

Deposits paid for purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment

Additions to other assets

Refund of other assets

Dividends received from listed investments

Dividends received from unlisted investments

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

New bullion loans

Repayment of bullion loans

Principal portion of lease payments

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing
activities

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
EEBEAERARAR
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ENFE
ERAE

MEZBME/(FTA)
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BAAEE %

E

AN

SEBEERER
HZE2023F 12 A31BILEE

2023 2022

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P & TER TAET
37(a) 2,339,711 217,128
17,878 13,006

(42,236) (40,377)

(8,775) (2,641)

(146,598) (153,719)

2,159,980 33,397

(432,272) (376,606)

82 562

(10,793) =

23,000 =

- (16,172)

(5.245) (2,522)

(38,679) (27,223)

26,083 47,996

27,772 25,888

982 637

(409,070) (347,440)

1,316,680 3,379,366

(1,363,298) (2,991,887)

4,071,054 4,557,022

(4,531,324) (3,653,071)

37(c) (559,606) (544,051)
(86,595) (38,101)

(237,102) (291,297)

(1,390,191) 417,981
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 BZE2023F12A31BILFE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
B & FTEx TET
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReREREEZ
EQUIVALENTS 12 mEE 360,719 103,938
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year WEHZH & RERE S 748,628 671,548
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  SMNEEXREFHTZE - SHE (13,201) (26,858)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZBELRERESE
AT END OF YEAR 1,096,146 748,628

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BeRERBEEEIIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances Be RRITER 26 1,066,126 727,174
Non-pledged time deposits with original FHEZEHALR=EA
maturity of less than three months when ZERBTERER
acquired 26 30,020 21,454
1,096,146 748,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

manufacture and retail of jewellery and distribution of watches
wholesale of precious metals

trading of laboratory-grown diamond and gemstones

securities and futures broking (ceased operation since early May 2021)

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are detailed in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2.1

Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, customer gold deposits, bullion
loans, derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets
which have been measured at fair value as further explained in note
2.4 to the consolidated financial statements. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2.  BIECR(E)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 22 EHEEREEZ2EH

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’'s consolidated financial
statements:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since the Group’s
approach and policy align with the amendments, the amendments
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope of
the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred
tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments did not have any significant impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group upon initial
application.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group has
determined the temporary differences arising from right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately, which have been reflected in
the reconciliation disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. However, they did not have any material impact on
the overall deferred tax balances presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the related deferred tax balances
qualified for offsetting under HKAS 12.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar
Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes, including
the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income taxes
separately in the periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective
and the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable information
of their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which
the legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in
effect. The Group has not yet applied the temporary exception
during the current year because the entities comprising the Group
are operating in jurisdictions in which the Pillar Two tax law has not
yet been enacted or substantively enacted. The Group will disclose
known or reasonably estimable information related to its exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes in the consolidated financial statements
by the time when the Pillar Two tax law has been enacted or
substantively enacted and will disclose separately the current tax
expense or income related to Pillar Two income taxes when it is in
effect.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. EHECR(A)
2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting 23 EEAEHRERZEERBRE
Standards =8|
The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that have REEH ARG S P RRER
been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial LTEERERERZEEBITE
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if B TSRS AR o LN%%%R\EZ%
applicable, when they become effective. ISR BB IR S 2 Bl A AR R
Mo
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets FANBRE REFHEBEDNAY
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its EF105%R  SELEZBNEE
Associate or Joint Venture® BAGEN  dEsfiTE’
£ 28R BIAR
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BENBRE ERHONEERRE'
Leaseback’ ERIE 165
EHE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BRGHEN  BEAEARDIERE
Current or Non-current F1RBITEA (2020557
(the 2020 Amendments”)"*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with BEEHEN  WEZENERDAR
Covenants (the “2022 FIRBTE (202257
Amendments”)"*
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements' EhehEr fEARERE
and HKFRS 7 F1RREE
Eﬁ%iﬁ%?ﬁ‘J
FTRBAR
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability? EEeEY BRI AHmE
FUNRBITA
' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 ' R2024F 1 A1 BEAERREZ €5
HAR AR
?  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 2 R2025F1 A1 B ARGz
HAR AR
> No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 3 MRS IR AR B HAME AT B AN
* As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Y EAR2020F B ET R2022EBETH
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by #HR BEREFSHRUBHRRNIE
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause ] - BERAEHEREREEERD
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion EHERN D BEREREARE R
&R R &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute
a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 was removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it
retains. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to
sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as
an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its
classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of that liability as current or non-current.
Additional disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that
are subject to the entity complying with future covenants within
12 months after the reporting period. The amendments shall
be applied retrospectively with early application permitted. An
entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and
whether existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on
a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

2.3

24

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of
such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of
the amendments is permitted. The amendments provide certain
transition reliefs regarding comparative information, quantitative
information as at the beginning of the annual reporting period and
interim disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how
it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Material Accounting Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits
Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill
arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained
profits in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such
goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated retained profits
and is not recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when all or part of the business to which the goodwill relates is
disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates becomes impaired.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, customer gold
deposits, bullion loans, derivative financial instruments and certain
financial assets at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated
Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 2.5%
Plant and machinery 10% to 30%
Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and
equipment 20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property,
plant and equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets
stated at revalued amounts based on revaluations which were
reflected in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 1993 have not been revalued by class at the end of
the reporting period. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant
portion of the building revaluation reserve realised in respect of the
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement
in reserves.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including right-
of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group recognises
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Where applicable, the cost
of a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

50 to 70 years
2 to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office properties, retail stores and
factories (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in turnover in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as turnover in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value designated through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value designated through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments are also recognised as other income in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,;
or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings
or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are
satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

2. Accounting Policies (continued) 2. EFEERE
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued) 24 EEEHEE(E)
Financial liabilities (continued) HBEE &)
Subsequent measurement (continued) Higzt 2 (&)

(b)  Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings) (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

()  Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as bullion
contracts, cross currency swaps and foreign currency forward
contracts, to hedge its bullion price risk and foreign currency risk.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes, except that deferred tax is not
recognised for the Pillar Two income taxes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@)  Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns, trade
discounts and value added tax and is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery through e-shops
provide customers with a right of return, giving rise to
variable consideration.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products
from a customer.

(b)  Commission on transactions completed on e-commerce
platform
Revenue from the commission on transactions completed on
the e-commerce platform is recognised at the point in time
when the relevant transactions are completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods and services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the
goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured
at the former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any
expected costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases
in the value of the returned goods. The Group updates the
measurement of the asset for any revisions to the expected level of
returns and any additional decreases in the value of the returned
goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some
or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer
and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will
have to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of
refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services in exchange
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). The cost of
equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. When awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by
the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made
at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and
carried forward.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ relevant income and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan are required to participate in
central pension schemes operated by the respective local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as liabilities when they are approved
by the shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum of association and bye-
laws grant the Directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

Accounting Policies (continued)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the consolidated financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the retail of jewellery

Certain contracts for the retail of jewellery through e-shops
include a right of return that give rise to variable consideration.
In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to
exercise judgement to determine to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method based on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled.

The Group determined that the expected value method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration
for the sale of jewellery with rights of return, given the large
number of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that
the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on
its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration
will be resolved within a short time frame.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as
the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the property and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(a)

(b)

Variable consideration for returns
The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sale of jewellery with rights of return.

The Group has developed a statistical model for forecasting sales
returns. The model used the historical return data of each product
to come up with expected return percentages. These percentages
are applied to determine the expected value of the variable
consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to
historical return pattern will impact the expected return percentages
estimated by the Group.

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns half yearly
and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates
of expected returns are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Group’s past experience regarding returns may not be
representative of customers’ actual returns in the future. As at 31
December 2023, the amount recognised as refund liabilities was
HK$2,172,000 (2022: HK$1,832,000) for the expected returns.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The Group’s unlisted equity investments have been valued using
the asset-based method (2022: the income capitalisation method
and asset-based method). During the year, the Group has revisited
the valuation technique for certain unlisted equity investment and
considered it is more appropriate to be determined based on asset-
based method. The valuation technique of the income capitalisation
method requires the Group to make estimates about capitalisation
rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2023 was
HK$28,937,000 (2022: HK$37,019,000). Further details are
included in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(©

(d)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts
receivable. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type and customer type and
rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's accounts
receivable is disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on other financial assets

The measurement of expected losses on other financial assets
requires judgement including, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis. The carrying
amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are given in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at the end
of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is based on its value in use. In assessing value-in-
use, management estimates the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and chooses a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets as at 31 December 2023 were HK$1,202,495,000
(2022: HK$1,085,850,000) and HK$1,052,169,000 (2022:
HK$964,050,000), respectively. Further details are included in notes
16 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(h)

(i)

Measurement of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair value. The fair value was based on
valuation on these properties conducted by an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve making assumptions on certain market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group's investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December 2023
was HK$428,210,000 (2022: HK$508,335,000). Further details are
given in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates, based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of a similar nature,
including but not limit to economic outlook, sales forecasts and the
forecast market value for the inventory items. They could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. The Group
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.
The carrying amount of inventories is given in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and the Group’s reportable operating

segments are as follows:

Continuing operations

J the retail of jewellery and watches segment produces and sells
jewellery products and distributes watches for the Group's retail
business and operates retail stores mainly in Mainland China, Hong

Kong, Macau and Taiwan

. the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to

wholesale customers

o the trading of laboratory-grown diamond and gemstones (“LGD")
segment trades jewellery set with LGD. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Directors have decided to rename this
segment from “e-commerce platform” to reflect its current business

activities.

. the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment
in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation

potential, and other jewellery related businesses

Discontinued operation

o the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and

dealing services for securities and futures

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax
from continuing operations. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Directors have reassessed the basis of adjusted profit before tax for
reportable operating segments from continuing operations and considered
that it is more appropriate to be measured consistently with the Group's
profit before tax from continuing operations except that dividend income,
fair value gain or loss on investment properties, fair value gain or loss
on bullion loans designated as at fair value through profit or loss, fair
value gain or loss on derivative financial instruments — transactions not
qualifying as hedges, fair value gain or loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, finance income, finance costs and foreign exchange
differences, net are excluded from such measurement. The Directors
believe that the current presentation could provide better understanding
to the users of the financial statements to evaluate the Group’s operating

performance.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing

market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2023

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:

Dividend income

Net fair value gain/(loss) on:

Investment properties
Bullion loans designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
- transactions not qualifying as
hedges
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Finance income
Finance costs
Foreign exchange differences, net

Profit before tax
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A8l
BEFHRER
REBHE
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REMBERRME

4. REIBERE)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RREEEY EIlE s
Retail Wholesale Total for Securities
of jewellery  of precious Trading Other  continuing  and futures
and watches metals of LD businesses  operations broking Total
KER b3 B RER
EEZE  BORMB LGDEE R EHakt HEag At
Note  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
itz TR TR AR AR TER TR TR
5
24,274,496 710,728 1,743 10,450 25,003,417 - 25,003,417
- 812,358 - 528 812,886 - 812,886
- - - 9,922 9,922 - 9,922
24,274,496 1,523,086 1,143 20,900 25,826,225 - 25,826,225
(812,886) (812,886)
25,013,339 25,013,339
1,498,403 (2,091) (67,931) 9,466 1,437,847 (47,111) 1,390,136
28,754 - 28,754
(4,053) = (4,053)
15,555 - 15,555
1,979 - 1,979
(1,788) = (1,788)
17,556 £y 17,588
(129,899) - (129,899)
(14,499) - (14,499)
1,357,452 (47,679) 1,309,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2023

Other segment information

Net loss on bullion loans designated
as at fair value through profit or

loss

Net loss on disposal of derivative

financial instruments

Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
items of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Reversal of impairment of accounts

receivable, net

Impairment of receivables arising

from securities and futures
broking

Write-down of inventories to net

realisable value
Capital expenditure

BZ23%12831A
LEE

A EER
BERRATEET RS
LEERERFER
HETEERTATRR

HENE - BERREER
FER/ (ki)

W% BERRENE

FRERETE
BUEHEERE FE

EARAERLEL Y
B

WEFEET2RRE
AAMRY

REMBERME

4. REITBERE)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
RREEEY EIlE s
Retail Wholesale Total for Securities
of jewellery  of precious Trading Other  continuing  and futures
and watches metals of LD businesses  operations broking
KER b3 B RER
EEZE  BORMB LGDEE R EHakt HEag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR AR ThR TR
505,390 - - - 505,390 -
33,386 484 - - 33,870 -
1371 - 3 (29) 1,351 -
346,241 - 451 30 346,722 -
588,760 - 1,650 - 590,410 -
(9,003) - - - (9,003) -
- - - - - 45,233
12,948 - - - 12,948 -
433,29 - 1,498 - 434,794 -

Total
it
HK$'000
T#En

505,390

33,870

1,351

346,722
590,410

(9,003)

45,233

12,948
434,794
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2022

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:

Dividend income

Net fair value gain/(loss) on:

Investment properties
Bullion loans designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
- transactions not qualifying as
hedges
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Finance income
Finance costs
Foreign exchange differences, net

Profit before tax

BEANENANA
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4. REIBERE)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
HEREET RIHEEST
Retail Wholesale Total for Securities
of jewellery of precious Trading Other continuing ~ and futures
and watches metals of LGD businesses operations broking Total
KER i s FAFR
EHTE  REEME LGDEE Efp %% SHai Heag At
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TiEn Thn Tt T T
19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680 - 20,544,680
29320 618,982 - 528 648,830 - 648,830
- - - 11,836 11,836 - 11,836
19,781,260 1,384,844 1,845 37,397 21,205,346 - 21,205,346
(648,830) (648,830)
20,556,516 20,556,516
871,603 747 (55,051) 11,833 829,132 (34,042) 795,090
26,525 = 26,525
28 - 28
(121,116) - (121,116)
9,284 - 9,284
336 - 336
13,340 3 13,343
(81,860) - (81,860)
(82,905) - (82,905)
592,764 (34,039) 558,725
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2022

Other segment information

Net loss on bullion loans designated
as at fair value through profit or

loss
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of

derivative financial instruments
Net loss on disposal of items of

property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Reversal of impairment of accounts

receivable, net

Impairment of receivables arising

from securities and futures
broking

Write-down of inventories to net

realisable value
Capital expenditure

BEZUNEN2831A
LEE

A ER
BEARATEETEED
LEERERFER
hENEERTARER/

(Ygt)
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REMBERME

4. REIBERE)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

HEREET RIHEEST

Retail Wholesale Total for Securities

of jewellery of precious Trading Other continuing ~ and futures
and watches metals of LGD businesses operations broking
KER i s FAFR
BRTE  SOEME LGDEE Rt SHai it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T iR Thn Tt Tin
138,560 - - - 138,560 -
(13,274) 858 = = (12,416) =
6,607 - - - 6,607 -
332,876 - 431 - 333,307 -
535,966 - 1,304 - 537,210 -
(38,655) - - - (38,655) -

- - - - - 30,889

6,149 - - - 6,149 -
378414 - 154 16,172 394,740 -

Total
a3
HK$'000
TR

138,560
(12416)
6,607

333,307
537,210

(38,655)

30,889

6,149
394,740

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 132 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AEESEBERARRQA

2023 F %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, Operating Segment Information (continued)

(a)

(b)

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers — Continuing operations

Mainland China el N
Hong Kong and Macau BAERRM
Taiwan =)
Other regions HAt

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based
on the locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

Mainland China B A BE
Hong Kong and Macau N
Taiwan =0

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group's total turnover for the current and prior
years.

REMBERME

(b)

4 EEHBENE)
() HEEH

HEFIKEL 23S - HEEE

£

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE7 FiBT

15,826,481 13,700,246

8,904,631 6,625,123

281,713 231,085

514 62

25,013,339 20,556,516

FRBERERB WS EN TR

REHELRES -
HRBEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
1,386,694 1,422,359
1,477,910 1,303,660
38,610 37,237
2,903,214 2,763,256

LiSERBEEB R EEME
e WAEREEEARAF
BEFALBEAREONBEE
RERFIREE °

BRIEEFZEH

RAFER LFEREAEERA
REZERBIAREREREY
DPR10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Turnover

REMBERRME

Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover from

continuing operations:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from other sources
Gross rental income from investment properties
operating leases:

Other lease payments, including fixed payments

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

Segments k|
For the year ended H22023%
31 December 2023 12B31ALEE

Types of goods or services & m iR ER

Sale of goods EmiHE

Commission on transactions AEFEZ T AT
completed on e-commerce X H 2%
platform

Total revenue from contracts KBRFE &4z AU
with customers

Geographical areas WEm
Mainland China B AR
Hong Kong and Macau BB RRM
Taiwan =)
Other regions At

Total revenue from contracts KBRF A4z AU
with customers

Timing of revenue WaRRRE
recognition
Transferred at a point in time 7E8 28
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A A

t

5. #XE
REFELEEB 2 e EBOEUTES
23 -
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHT
KEEFEMZ W 25,003,417 20,544,680
K EEMARZ W
REVMELERE 2 BHS WA -
HinHEFHIE - BIEEFEMNK 9,922 11,836
25,013,339 20,556,516
REEFEEHz K
() DB EH
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious Trading Other
and watches metals of LGD businesses Total
%8R
EHRIE BEEEME LGDEE Hit %% &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn TER
24,274,496 710,728 7,639 10,450 25,003,313
= = 104 = 104
24,274,496 710,728 1,143 10,450 25,003,417
15,818,061 - 1,225 - 15,825,286
8,174,722 710,728 4 10,450 8,895,904
281,713 - - - 281,713
- - 514 - 514
24,274,496 710,728 7,143 10,450 25,003,417
24,274,496 710,728 7,743 10,450 25,003,417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

5.  Turnover (continued) 5. EEHE(E
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REFZEAN 2N (E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () DR EH(E)
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious Trading Other
Segments ik and watches metals of LGD businesses Total
HER |
BHETE BEEHE LGDEE At At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TAL TAL TATL TAL
For the year ended HZ222%
31 December 2022 12A31ALEE

Types of goods or services &RaRHKER
Sale of goods EoeE 19,751,940 765,862 1,783 25,033 20,544,618
Commission on transactions AEFEZTF AT

completed on e-commerce X H 2%

platform = - 62 - 62

Total revenue from contracts KBRF A2 AU

with customers 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680
Geographical areas WEMHE
Mainland China B AR 13,697,207 - 1,783 - 13,698,990
Hong Kong and Macau BERRM 5,823,648 765,862 - 25,033 6,614,543
Taiwan a8 231,085 - - - 231,085
Other regions Hithg - - 62 - 62
Total revenue from contracts REZXPAK) 2 Bz

with customers 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680
Timing of revenue KERARE

recognition
Transferred at a point in time 7E8 ;%8 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

5.  Turnover (continued) 5. HEHEE)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REFZEAN 2N (E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () DR EH(E)
Set out below the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with K Q BEAH 2 W E D 2BE BT
customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information: WESHZEHRNT :
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious Trading Other
Segments 28 and watches metals of LGD businesses Total
KER
BHIE ESBHE LGDEE Hi£% CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn TER
For the year ended BZ2003E
31 December 2023 12A31ALERE
Segment revenue PE 24,274,496 1,523,086 7,743 20,900 25,826,225
Other revenue Hilgz - - - (9,922) (9,922)
Intersegment adjustments MR R H$h
and eliminations - (812,358) - (528) (812,886)
Total revenue from contracts REZFEAH)
with customers 2l 24,274,496 710,728 7,743 10,450 25,003,417
For the year ended BZ202%
31 December 2022 12A31HLEE
Segment revenue DEkE 19,781,260 1,384,844 1,845 37,397 21,205,346
Other revenue Hitla - - - (11,836) (11,836)
Intersegment adjustments R EB5HE . 4
and eliminations (29,320) (618,982) - (528) (648,830)
Total revenue from contracts RKEZFA4]
with customers L6 19,751,940 765,862 1,845 25,033 20,544,680
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(if)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities

at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in i&iﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬂ
contract liabilities at the beginning of BRI ¢
the reporting period:

Sale of goods EmiHE

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is mainly on cash and credit card settlement, except
for corporate clients and wholesale customers, where payment is
due within 60 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers
with a right of return which give rise to variable consideration

subject to constraint.

Commission on transactions completed on e-commerce platform

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the completion of the

relevant transactions on e-commerce platform.

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts of transaction
prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are expected to be recognised
as revenue within one year from contract inception. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the Group has elected the practical expedient
of not disclosing the remaining performance obligations for these

types of contracts.

REMBERME

5. ExHE(E
RABFERN 2 Wz (&)

(1)

BfEZ

(ii)

DY EH ()
TRETRAREHEAREZE
gﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁiﬁlmm’]@ Zﬂimﬁ
]

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
75,941 84,040

BHIE T
AEEBRNEE 2 HEE R
T~

ERE

BOEARSNEREER B
ERE R EEF RN A60
BB  BEREEEURS
RERFEE - BRANAEFE
BRER - mHEERH AR T
SRE -

REFBEFENZHRE 2%
BHOEENEETHEFA LK
$H AR BEEMX °

RIEHBK ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁﬁ@iﬁﬁﬁ
(REOEBOAET)INR S
BIBHER A RIFRE— ilﬁ\]ﬁ@w
Bl - REFBV B RS ELE
15T AR AEEEEENT
BE % THREMEERNF S
BHEME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Other Income and Gains, net

An analysis of other income and gains, net from continuing operations is

REMBERME

6. HtWARWKE  FE
REFELERB 2 KO RS - %

as follows: BT :
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BizE FTHERT FET
Dividend income from listed investments ETREZREMA 27,772 25,888
Dividend income from unlisted investments 3 FH1%E 2 & EMA 982 637
Government grants* BRI R 8h * 8,194 45,635
Gain on disposal of an investment property — H& —IEREWE 7 s 5,900 =
Reversal of impairment of accounts JEWERFORER R - FE
receivable, net 22 9,003 38,655
Net fair value gain/(loss) on: THEEZ AFEETF S (BE) :
Investment properties REME 17 (4,053) 28
Bullion loans designated at fair value BEREATEEICRE
through profit or loss JETBEE 15,555 (121,116)
Derivative financial instruments THEemIA
— transactions not qualifying as hedges - AREHARER LIRS 7,979 9,284
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEBEFAEENTBEE
profit or loss (1,788) 336
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of derivative HEMESBT AR/ (B8)
financial instruments:
Foreign currency forward contracts EHINEE L 11,044 6,380
Cross currency swaps RN EH= (3,677) =
Others Hitb 29,247 31,786
106,158 37,513

*  Government grants for the year mainly represent subsidies received from municipal
governments in Mainland China. In the prior year, government grants mainly
represented subsidies received from government grants in connection with the
support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and subsidies from municipal governments in Mainland China.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations

The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

REMBERME

7. BECEERZBRBAERN

AEBREFELERB ZBBAEN D
/(A

Cost of inventories sold
Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value'
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Auditor’s remuneration
Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors
Gain on termination of leases
Loss on remeasurement of leases

Employee benefit expenses” (excluding
Directors’ emoluments (note 9)):
Wages and salaries

Pension scheme contributions
Less: Forfeited contributions

Net pension scheme contributions’

Direct operating expenses (including repairs
and maintenance) arising on rental-earning
investment properties

Net loss on bullion loans designated as
at fair value through profit or loss*

Net loss/(gain) on disposal of derivative
financial instruments®

Net loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Design fee paid to a related party’
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2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bz FTHT FHT
SHE M AR 17,850,262 15,001,337
WEEEEAERFE'
12,948 6,149
WE - WBERBBINE
346,722 333,307
FREEECHE 590,410 537,270
ZERH & 4,466 4,315
HEHEAERTESERER
ZHEFIE 818,852 765,645
HAABL T 2019 BRFESHEE
ZHEER 18(b) - (15,527)
BIERE 2 s (6,888) (3,905)
BHTEHEZERE 18(c) - 526
BRERANBEZ (TREEEHE
(Bftz£9)) -
I&RFS 1,817,584 1,624,460
RIKSEHEIER 322,378 297,111
W BRI (3) @)
BIREFTEIHEFTFE’ 322,375 297,109
2,139,959 1,921,569
AWEEE 2 REMEEELCERY
(BREGERRE)
2,217 1,855
EEARATEEITAEBZ
ELEREEFER" 505,390 138,560
HETESRmT AR (WKas)*
33,870 (12,416)
HENE BEMREBBEE FEE
7,351 6,607
AEEA TS NNRTE® 23 65
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

7. Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations (continued) 7. BESEEBRIRBARF(E)

1

This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$3,308,000 (2022:
HK$2,807,000) paid to the family members of certain Directors as employee
emoluments.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce
its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2022: approximately
HK$3,000).

The net loss on bullion loans designated as at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$505,390,000 (2022: HK$138,560,000) and the net loss on disposal of derivative
financial instruments included a net loss on bullion contracts of HK$41,237,000
(2022: net gain of HK$6,036,000), which are included in “Cost of sales” on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above bullion
transactions entered into by the Group is to manage the Group's bullion price risk.
Such loans and contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The net
loss/(gain) on disposal of derivative financial instruments also included a net gain on
foreign currency forward contracts of HK$11,044,000 (2022: HK$6,380,000) and a
net loss on cross currency swaps of HK$3,677,000 (2022: Nil) (note 6).

This balance is included in “Selling and distribution costs” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The design fee paid to a related party, who
is the family member of certain Directors, was determined in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group.

Finance Income and Finance Costs

An analysis of finance income and finance costs from continuing
operations is as follows:

Finance income: I N
Bank interest income RITHBUA
Finance costs: BB

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other loans RITEF BIREMBERZFE

Interest on lease liabilities HEAENES

| GESREEERABEREIHERAK I

EERAFASBEINFETESZRIEK
EEAEEM$ 2 £ 53,308,000 (2022
4 :2,807,000%7T) °

R2023F12A318 ' AEELEAAUR
BERREERKSFEERZ B2 MR
(2022 % : 943,00087T) °

EERERATEEEREBEZECER
& % 5 12 A505,390,0007 7T(20224 :
138,560,000 7L ) R B IEE L ET £ £
BRIAFHEEAZECRBANIEES
41,237,00058 75 (2022 4 : %35 6,036,000
BIL) WESEREERABRER LI
ERARIR - AEENVLRESBRHE
EEBASBzECBERAR - ZS5E
ERADYTH AL SRR G - &
EfMELBMIAFER/ (WE)MeEE
H 9 HE 4 49 5% e 3511,044,000 7 7T(2022
% 16,380,000 7) KRN E K HFER
3,677,000/87C (2022 F : Z) (HizE6) °

WEBRERERABRERLIHERDHE
Bl AEEAL(RETEENRERE)
X2 REABDARBELER R —RELKBE
FESTE

MBBA R
RESBEEXRBMBERARMBER
AWM
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR
17,556 13,340

87,663 41,483
42,236 40,377
129,899 81,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

9. Directors’ Emoluments 9.

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Fees we

Other emoluments: HinBi< -
Salaries and allowances e RER
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable EH&FEH@’]\ BIEAL
Pension scheme contributions RIRS IR

An analysis of the emoluments paid and payable to the Directors during
the year is as follows:

EEZHE
BEEMRA - BB R BEG5383(1)
(a)~(b> OROERAB(FREEETF
BTERBOIE2H AEEZESEHE
WENT :
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
4,148 3,770
8,150 7,784
2,854 1,864
71 132
11,075 9,780
15,223 13,550

FRENRENTEEIMEOWT

Discretionary Pension
Salaries and  bonuses paid scheme
Fees allowances  and payable contributions Total
) ﬁﬁ& B RES . Big N
e =4 BERAL HE 5 A3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THER TR THERT
2023
Executive Directors: HOTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing B R E 460 3,481 1,205 - 5,146
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing JERRAR B A 390 316 25 - 731
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing AR EE 330 2,943 1,047 - 4,320
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing BEART 330 1,410 577 71 2,388
1,510 8,150 2,854 n 12,585
Non-executive Directors: FHTES -
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERAE 390 - - - 390
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BHmEE 390 - - - 390
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* BRI B0 A 390 - - - 390
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* FRBLE" 460 - - - 460
Dr. LO King Man* ERNEL” 390 - - - 390
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* B ELE” 390 - - - 390
Mr. HSU Rockson*” TIREELE 228 - - - 228
2,638 = = = 2,638
4,148 8,150 2,854 Al 15,223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

9.  Directors’ Emoluments (continued) 9. EZ=Me(E)
Discretionary Pension
Salaries and bonuses paid scheme
Fees allowances and payable contributions Total
\ Hek B RER RS ‘
ik 28 ez FEIER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
THT THT FHT THAT THT
2022
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing BRI a 445 3,384 796 - 4,625
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing JERRAR B 375 315 25 = 715
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing Bk tE 315 2,777 684 67 3,843
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing B 315 1,308 359 65 2,047
1,450 7,784 1,864 132 11,230
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERAE 375 - - - 375
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam EHMEE 375 - - - 375
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun* BIREE L 375 - - - 375
Mr. LEE Ka Lun* EREELT 445 = = - 445
Dr. LO King Man* EsxiEL” 375 - - - 375
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung* BISER " 375 = = = 375
2,320 - - - 2,320
3,770 7,784 1,864 132 13,550
Independent Non-executive Directors * BAUFHITES
A Appointed on 1 June 2023 A R2023F6 A1 BEZT
There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent Non- FAVEEMMeEN TEYFNTES
executive Directors during the year (2022: Nil). (2022F : &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

Senior Management’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid to the members of senior management by band are

ma

10.

as follows:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

11.  Five Highest Paid Employees

three (2022: three) non-Director highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries and allowances

Discretionary bonuses paid and payable

Pension scheme contributions

fell within the following bands is as follows:

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

MBEHRME

>

it

SREEAEHE
ArmEREEARSMNZBENT

o
I

Number of individuals

AH
2023 2022
1,500,001 /& 7T £ 2,000,000 /%70 1 -
2,000,001 &L 2 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
2,500,001 7T 3,000,000 & 7T - 1
3,000,001 %72 3,500,000 %8 7T 1 1
3 3
1. LEESFHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included FRAEBREA RS FMNEERIENS
two (2022: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in (2022F : MB)EE - HFAMSER
note 9 above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining BN k9 - REE Esr=4(2022
G =R )RRFMIFESEE 2FAM
SEMMAT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
e KoR 7,363 7,728
B R EREIEIEA 2,001 1,510
RKEET B 131 146
9,495 9,384
The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose emoluments BENTUATARZ ZeEMEESES
ZABWT
Number of individuals
AH
2023 2022
2,500,001 %72 3,000,000 %8 7T = 1
3,000,001 L2 3,500,000 % 7T = 2
3,500,001 &L Z 4,000,000 7% 7T 3 -
3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

ma

MBEHRME

Income Tax 12. Fig#H
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: BEENEHDIRFAREBEE 2 B
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong JE &% B0 A A B % 16.5% (2022 4 ¢
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a 16.5% ) B - EAREE —KMB ARk
qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The O ZARFRHEMAHFEHESNE 2
first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this ER-ZMBRRAZERTEN T &
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable 2,000,000/ £ (2022 4 : 2,000,000 /&
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%). JC ) 128.25% (20225 : 8.25%) it &
i I R FEER B8 1 BU4Z 16.5% (2022 F
16.5% )51 & o
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Corporate Income BEPEAREMBEOEMRETIE([DE
Tax (the “CIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the CIT Law, the FEREDREEMEHEZERMA -
tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% (2022: 25%). Taxes B KEERT B AR 2 & A 25% (2022
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax &1 25%) o H A @ ERRE R 2 FiIE
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. DEAREREEEREEER 2 BAN
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Current - Hong Kong KE - BE
Charge for the year FAHIEA 85,956 23,130
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFEREBIR/ (BERE) 1,542 (62)
Current — Mainland China and elsewhere ANER — AR BB K B bbb [
Charge for the year FRNTIE 201,309 96,326
Underprovision in prior years PBEFEREBETE 529 50
Deferred Rt 21,254 (2,441)
Total tax charge for the year from FELeEB EATIEESE
continuing operations 310,590 117,003
Total tax charge for the year from the RIEREEH s ENHIERSE
discontinued operation = =
310,590 117,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

Income Tax (continued)

12.

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory tax rate for the jurisdiction in which major operating subsidiaries
of the Group are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Loss before tax from the discontinued operation

Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate
of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%)

Difference in tax rates applied for specific
provinces or enacted by local authorities

Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods

Estimated income not subject to tax

Estimated expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10%
(2022: 5% or 10%) on the distributable
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

Estimated tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

Tax charge from continuing operations at
the effective rate

Tax charge from the discontinued operation at
the effective rate

R TS 2 R AT R
RILEERTE 2 IR R ATE R

REBEERE16.5%
(20224 : 16.5%):tE 2 Fi1A

REMBERME

Pt ()

TREAEEEZLEMNE L A ML
FIEaEAEER ZAEMRFETERR
BEADEN 2B - URIEEERERFE

ERANBEANRE BB 2 BE

R
SLBE R HIBEAR DR

BABHZ EEHRA
AR flist < i
BASERTEARKMBEML
ZMBRRZ A2 IRAEN 5%

510% (20224 : 5% 5, 10%)

HERRENZVE
FRBESEzHEES
HARER Z hETFIEER

BASEEER KRG EHA

BRELGH R E 2 HELE
EBHIE

REBEMEHE IR ERE
E Y]

ZBIBEITH R ¢
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL
1,357,452 592,764
(47,679) (34,039)
1,309,773 558,725
216,112 92,190
57,776 24,405
2,071 (12)
(14,430) (26,210)
12,337 6,265
13,949 1,174
(1,921) (10)
24,696 19,201
310,590 117,003
310,590 117,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

13.

Income Tax (continued)
Pillar Two income taxes

As stated in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial statement, the Group
has applied the mandatory exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from Pillar Two
income taxes, and will account for the Pillar Two income taxes as current
tax when incurred.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential exposure arising
from Pillar Two legislation based on the information available for the year
ended 31 December 2023. Based on the assessment carried out so far,
the Group has identified potential exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in
Macau where the Pillar Two effective tax rates are likely to be lower than
15%. However, exposure may also exist in other jurisdictions where the
assessment is in progress. Quantitative information to indicate potential
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes is currently not known or reasonably
estimable.

Discontinued Operation

On 29 January 2021, the Board came to the decision to wind down the
operation of the securities and futures broking business. The operation
of the securities and futures broking business, which had ceased in May
2021, was classified as a discontinued operation.

The results of the discontinued operation for the year are presented
below:

Hip AR
TBEM

Other income and gains, net

Administrative expenses

Impairment of receivables arising from
securities and futures broking (note 23)

Finance income

BRRORE (R 23)
EIR T ON

Loss for the year from the discontinued operation

#E
B RAERLES R

BRIERERBE 2 EABR

ma

12.

13.

MBEHRME

Pt ()
XHEZFREH

BRI BRRM T 2.2 - AR
ERERRKEARSXHE_MERELN
BERHIREEN A E 2 BFHERRHIED
IMER - RN T ZPRSTE RS E
ARSI AR

REBTEEREZE2023F12A318 1
FENAAENTHE R AGIFEL
ZEERRMA - BIBES BILFTETY
Tl AREEHBITERPI AR S
I RBERR BN E—EEH
RIFAT BN 15% o KT+ EAEHETTHT
BHEM R AT EE AR FERR © B
A ED Mk A BN TEEERTR
BAFTE R ST — PSR B R o

RIERERK

MN2021FE1 8298 EEERERILE
HFRHERLER - BHRPERLENR
ER2021FESARIERE  WESEA
BRPCEEETE o

FRRERERBORERINT

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
28 191
(2,506) (3,344)
(45,233) (30,889)
32 3
(47,679) (34,039)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Discontinued Operation (continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities associated with the discontinued

REMBERME

13, RIEREEK(E)

RBEMRER MEERBRBEER

operation at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BENEESBNT
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHT
Assets BE
Receivables arising from securities and futures broking &% & B & A& A2 & 4 7 JEUWR X
(note 23) (Mi3E23) 78,144 123,642
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets FERNFRIE - B REBER T Rt B E 409 409
Cash held on behalf of clients REPHERS 479 2,070
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRBRE 4,791 5,338
Assets associated with the discontinued operation BRI B E 83,823 131,459
Liabilities EE
Payables arising from securities and futures broking — #F& K HEELEE 2 ERNEER
(note 28) (Hi3E28) 479 2,070
Other payables and accruals Hi R R ETIER 166 546
Liabilities associated with the discontinued operation E2#% |HELEKIEHAZ BE 645 2,616

Net assets directly associated with the discontinued

BRI EXBERNECBEFE

operation

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are as follows:

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities BEEERSRAN /R )F58

Loss per share:

83,178 128,843

RIMHEERXBEEZRSREFBEOT ¢

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FEL

{ (547) 2,021
SREEE -

EAREE  REREHEEEK (7) cents{l (5) cents{ll

Basic and diluted, from the discontinued operation

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts from the discontinued
operation is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company from the discontinued operation of HK$47,679,000 (2022:
HK$34,039,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
677,434,000 (2022: 677,434,000) in issue during the year.

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

RIHREEKE SREABBSEIRE
RARRHEE ABHRECEEKER
47,679,0007(2022 4 : 34,039,000
BrL) RERNDHITMEFESKRG
677,434,000 % (2022 £ : 677,434,000
W) LB E o

REZE2023F12A31HK2022F12 A
MNALFEVESTBEEELRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

15.

Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend for 2022: HK15.0 cents
(2021: HK28.0 cents) per ordinary share

Interim dividend for 2023: HK20.0 cents
(2022: HK15.0 cents) per ordinary share

Dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period:

Final dividend for 2023: HK40.0 cents
(2022: HK15.0 cents) per ordinary share

14.

RERRIIRE
ZERE
2022 FARBME  FEER

15.0780L (2021 4 : 28.07#1l)

2023 FFHHIRE - BEBR

20.0581(2022 % : 15.058(L)

RIREHRBERE
ZERE
2023 FAHKE  FEER

40.07%(1(2022 4 - 15.07840)

The proposed final dividend for 2023 was recommended after the end of
the reporting period and has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period, and it is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Owners of the Company 15.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 677,434,000 (2022:

677,434,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings:

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners

of the Company, used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculation
From continuing operations
From the discontinued operation

B :
AREEBARIEFA
Al (B8R) - AR
AEESRERREERN
REFELEEK
RERIEEEER

ma

1 7% 3R R B &
3=
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
101,615 189,682
135,487 101,615
237,102 291,297
270,974 101,615

2023 F R 2 REIR S R E KRR
FEERE TARBRERRERRAE
RARBARRBRRAERERREAFAE L
HAETR - TTAIEE

ARRBEAANEEEREF

FREABNEBNEFAARAER
AAE S A R F A BT I0#EF A
677,434,000 % (2022 % : 677,434,000
B ERBEE

NEE P E 22023F128318 &
202F12A31BLEEYERTER
BELmig -

BREAREERNTIRE AT B

3

2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR THET
1,060,359 486,365
(47,679) (34,039)
1,012,680 452,326
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. W% - HEBRFRE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor  Construction
land Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HENE
XA 2Bl
ERLi BT  HERRE RERRE RE EEIR &it
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn Tin TiEn

As at 31 December 2023 20235128318

At 1 January 2023: R2023F1R18:
Cost or valuation RAZfEE 19,558 690,179 177,495 1,882,848 11,300 - 2,781,380
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHFERAE

and impairment - (316,954) (132,353) (1,236,082) (10,141) - (1,695,530)
Net carrying amount REFE 19,558 373,225 45,142 646,766 1,159 - 1,085,850
At 1 January 2023, R202351R18 -

net of accumulated NB2HHE

depreciation and KB

impairment 19,558 373,225 45,142 646,766 1,159 - 1,085,850
Additions RE - 122,244 9,192 294,382 1,977 6,999 434,794
Transfer from investment ~~ ERARRENE

properties 17 - 58,300 - - - - 58,300
Disposals ik - - (79) (7.352) - @ (7.433)
Depreciation provided FERITERSE

during the year - (35,012) (14,081) (296,813) (816) - (346,722)
Exchange realignment R 3 (5,615) (963) (15,634) (21) (84) (22,294)
At 31 December 2023, R2023F12A318

net of accumulated MR RHTE

depreciation and RAE

impairment 19,581 513,142 39,211 621,349 2,299 6,913 1,202,495
At 31 December 2023: R2023F128318:
Cost or valuation RASEE 19,581 861,271 181,788 2,002,247 11,932 6,913 3,083,732
Accumulated depreciation  Z:tFERGIE

and impairment - (348,129) (142,577) (1,380,898) (9,633) - (1,881,237)
Net carrying amount BEFE 19,581 513,142 39,211 621,349 2,299 6,913 1,202,495
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Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2022:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2022,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

Surplus on revaluation

Additions

Transfers

Transfer to investment
properties

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2022,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
impairment

At 31 December 2022:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net carrying amount

R2022%12A318

R202251 418 :
RASfHE
ZHITERGE

REHE

RanF1/18
MERHAE
Rinf

Y

hE

g8
BRERENE

&
ERTERE

B AR
R2025124318

MB25E
Bt

R202%5128318
AR (E
ZHMERRE

2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERME

16. W% - BERREE)
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction
land Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BENZ
XA EZ AU
gt BT  BERRE REREB & fRIR CE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TEL THL TAL T TEL THL TEL
21,652 695,723 179,732 1,781,437 14,612 186 2,693,342
- (300,133) (127,31)  (1,135,550) (13,249) - (1,576,163)
21,652 395,590 52,501 645,887 1,363 186 1,117,179
21,652 395,590 52,501 645,887 1,363 186 1,117,179
- 20,622 - - - - 20,622
- 25,664 11,053 341,152 699 - 378,568
- - - 177 - (177 -
17 - (21,200) - - - - (21,200)
- - (349) (6,765) (55) - (7,169)
- (29,568) (14,885) (288,079) (775) - (333,307)
(2,094) (17,883) (3,178) (45,606) (73) (9) (68,843)
19,558 373,225 45,142 646,766 1,159 = 1,085,850
19,558 690,179 177,495 1,882,848 11,300 - 2,781,380
- (316,954) (132,353)  (1,236,082) (10,141) - (1,695,530)
19,558 373,225 45,142 646,766 1,159 - 1,085,850
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Certain of the Group's buildings were revalued on 31 December 1993
by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally qualified valuers. The
buildings were revalued on an open market, existing use basis. Since
1995, no further revaluations of the Group’s buildings have been carried
out, as the Group has relied upon the exemption, provided under the
transitional provisions of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out
future revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were stated

at valuation at that time.

Had these buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amount would have been approximately

HK$8,349,000 (2022: HK$9,467,000).

17. Investment Properties

st

Carrying amount at 1 January W1 A1BZEEE
Additions NE
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EEEERYE
Transfer to owner-occupied properties BRZERAME
Disposal HE

Net gain/(loss) from a fair value adjustment
Exchange realignment

Al

B R

®12 A31BZEEE

Carrying amount at 31 December

Management has determined that the investment properties consist of
two classes of asset, i.e., properties held in Hong Kong and properties
held outside Hong Kong, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$428,210,000 on 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$508,335,000) based
on valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent

professionally qualified valuers.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on

pages 202 to 206.

ATFEEREZFRS/ ()

ma

16.

17.

MBEHRME

ME - BRERRE(R)

REBETEFNI993F12A31BK
BUEEAERGEMBRAIENTE
f o ZEEFRERBARKRARMEE
EEG o AEEH 1995 FHM BB
ERFE16R2BERRE TR &
BHAERHEIRZME  #ERRE
%ﬁ*%iﬁ’mﬁﬁﬁﬁg$ﬁﬁi

135 It A2 F DA PR AR R T I E 5
Bk HERMEE 4 48,349,000 7T(2022
1 9,467,00087T) °

RENE
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
KisE FHT FET
508,335 472,897
= 16,172
16 = 21,200
16 (58,300) =
(17,100) =
6 (4,053) 28
(672) (1,962)
428,210 508,335

EEECRESBEMEZNE BUHEKE
RETHRENEOEMBLE  IRES
BEZMERRBBREINGAEZNE - 1
2023F 128310 AEB2KRENME
RERBYEXRERGEMBERTHE
BRARIEITZ(AEENA428,210,0007%
75(2022 4 : 508,335,000 7T) °

ZERBMENGEHERTE=T &
—FHEENRA M BEMKRME 18 -

BRLEERENE E—THFENE
202E206E °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group has assessed that the
highest and best use of its properties did not differ from their existing use.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy:

REVBHRRMEE
17. REWEGE)
DNFEEER

FTERENEADEARNTFEEER 2L
A3 B Z=2023F &2022F12A31H
IFFEARREBKR2 2 EL &S FE
B 28%  NEEALIELRRIZ K
SEEFCEME ERRREREEE
BERBITEDF

NEALTBESRZ BRI ATE
ESHRHE -

Carrying amount at 1 January 2022

Additions

Transfer from owner-occupied properties

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2022
and 1 January 2023

Transfer to owner-occupied properties

Disposal

Net loss from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2023

R2022%F1 81 BZ2EEE

NE

EBERaEAME

REBZERTFERNATEE
R 2 F W

fE 5%

R2022%F 128318 R
20231 A1 BZREE

BREaAME

HE

REBERERTPERNAFEE
AR FEE

[E 5 A%

R2023F12 B31 BZEmEE

Properties Properties
held in  held outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
REREE REBR
A/ BFEZME &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET T
447,280 25,617 472,897
16,172 = 16,172
21,200 - 21,200
28 - 28
- (1,962) (1,962)
484,680 23,655 508,335
(58,300) - (58,300)
(17,100) - (17,100)
(3,500) (553) (4,053)
- (672) (672)
405,780 22,430 428,210
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

17.

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Properties held in
Hong Kong
REBRBZYE

Properties held outside
Hong Kong
REBRINGE 2%

Valuation technique

fEE R

Market comparison
method
MiZLLBE

Income capitalisation
method

WABARLE

Income capitalisation
method

LON- %8973

Significant
unobservable inputs
EREUBRUE
Price per square foot
BYHRER

Price per unit of car

parking space

A B ER

Market unit rent per

square foot per month
BRAFARMSEMHS

Capitalisation rate
Bt X

Market unit rent per

square meter per month
BABFAKMSEMES

Capitalisation rate

BRIt X

A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot, price per unit
of car parking space, market unit rent per square foot per month and
market unit rent per square meter per month in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/decrease in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment

properties.

The valuations take into account the characteristics of the properties
which included the location, size, floor level, year of completion and other

factors collectively.

ma

2.1% to 4.3%
21% £4.3%

RMB15.0
AR¥15.0T

8.5%

B 3% R B 5
REWME(H)
APEESR(E)
TEFHAREMEGEMERGERI
REIEHEZHME
Range
gE
2023 2022
HK$8,200 to HK$8,300 to
HK$9,100 HK$9,100
8,200/ 8L E 8,300 8L %
9,100 & T 9,100 % 7T
HK$900,000 to  HK$900,000 to
HK$1,600,000 HK$ 1,600,000
900,000#7TE 900,000 &%
1,600,000 % T 1,600,0007& 7T
HK$21 to HK$19 to
HK$140 HK$144
21BRE 198TE
14078 T 14475 7T

2.0% to 4.3%
20%£4.3%

RMB14.7
ARE147 T

8.5%

BYHRER  EEUBUER  SAF
FhHRMGEMEENEHEF T ATS
BUASBUIMAR LA THREERR
BYE s NTEEAEREN, D o EX
L =B AR L TR EBIRE
MENDFEEDRKERD, B0 -

HERBH RSN - RS - K
hBE - TIFOHREMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various buildings used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods between 50 and 70 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of
buildings generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years. Generally,
the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that include variable
lease payments, which are further discussed below.

(@)  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2022 M2022F 1818

Additions NE

Termination of leases BIEEE

Remeasurement of leases EFENE

Depreciation charge NERX

Exchange realignment BE 4, R B

At 31 December 2022 72022912 A31H
and 1 January 2023 ’2023F1A1H

Additions NE

Termination of leases RIFRE

Depreciation charge HERX

Exchange realignment BE R

At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H

REVBHRRMEE
18. #ME
REBEREBEA

FEEAREBENZEEFHITERES
4o BARAIMEDR — XM ZAMEEUREE
HELih MHNTS0E70F - MBE
ZEITHHRENKR  BISEBELN
FWFE - BEEFHRABAENT 1 E
10F - —RMs - AEEARAAAEE
IINATEZRHHEREEE - ETHE
BHBEMERETE  FBEEINT

@ RABEE
FRAKEFEREEENRAER

2gmT
Leasehold

land Buildings Total
HEL# BF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER
11,310 820,606 831,916
= 754,872 754,872
- (45,705) (45,705)
= (8,284) (8,284)
(276) (536,994) (537,270)
(858) (30,621) (31,479)
10,176 953,874 964,050
10,793 766,653 777,446
- (85,479) (85,479)
(375) (590,035) (590,410)
(595) (12,843) (13,438)
19,999 1,032,170 1,052,169
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January

New leases

Termination of leases

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year

Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors (note 7)

Payments

Remeasurement of leases

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion due for repayment
within a period of:
More than one year but less than
two years
More than two years but less than
five years
Over five years

REMBERME

18. MHE(#E)
REBEREBEAE)

b) MHERRE
FAHERENREERESN

N
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FEx FET
M1 A1BZEEE 982,985 907,220
oHE 743,511 733,233
RIFHRE (92,367) (49,610)
FAEERF SR
42,236 40,377
EHAL T 2019 BB S EE
AR (MET7) - (15,527)
(E:N (601,842) (584,428)
EHEEHE - (7,758)
ME 5 AR (15,385) (40,522)
K12 A31 B2 REE 1,059,138 982,985
-
MENER D 517,216 466,241
ENTHRABSEER 2
FEREILD
BA—FEIARE
335,539 335,654
BEMEERIRASE
205,467 177,484
HENE 916 3,606
541,922 516,744
1,059,138 982,985

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42(a) to

the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible covid-
19-related rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases of
certain retail stores during the year ended 31 December 2022.

HEREBENIBMADITREGAUE
KM 42(0) 5

AEBEBATRESEZEAEE
202212 B31 BIEEEHBAAR
FETZEEHEENTELER
2019 BHRBSHAZASER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(©

(d)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as

follows:

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases

Variable lease payments not included
in the measurement of lease
liabilities*

Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors

Gain on termination of leases

Loss on remeasurement of leases

Total amount recognised in
profit or loss

HEAEHNE
EREBECNE

RGHEEFRENMAY
R AHERGEHENTE
AEHE"

HBAALTH 2019 BIRNES
HEZBRE TR
BIERE 2t

B EHEZER

PREH R R FIREE

*  The Group leased a number of the retail stores and units in shopping malls
which contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the Group's
turnover generated from the retail stores and the units in the shopping malls.
There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements for some of these

leases.

The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows relating
to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 37(c)
and 38(b), respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

REMBERME

18.

AE ()
AEEERREAR)
(0 RExFHERHEEHENAL
T
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
fia T T
18( 42,236 40,377
18( 590,410 537,270
98,081 100,043
720,771 665,602
18(b) = (15,527)
(6,888) (3,905)
7 - 526
1,444,610 1,324,386
* AEEBEZETEEHRREDS
SHEN  ZEHERSUAKER
ZEBDPOTEEFREMEEL
EXEERERNITZAETRER -
BoZERENRAEREFERERE
SRHE -
(@) BREEEHRLRELLERS

MARBENEEFBENRTAS
TR RN R E I SRR 3
37(c) % 38(b) H E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

19.

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) consisting of

REMBERME

18. MHE(#E)
AEBERHBA
REERBEEHETHHAEREYE

commercial properties, industrial property, residential property, roof (Mt3E17)  BREREBRPBEAERD

and car parking spaces in Hong Kong and Mainland China under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$9,922,000
(2022: HK$11,836,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the

E3/E I%%% TEME KK
FEf ZEHRENGKRBEEXAER
TRERES  YREBEERMETTR
ETTHHESAE  FRAEECER
A4S WA A9,922,0007 7T (2022 F -
11,836,000/ 7T) * FFIEH NG KR

consolidated financial statements. RMIEES
At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivables by M2023F 12 8310 AEBBREEAR
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with ETEH{éW\ﬁﬁfﬁ%&%Tﬁ%E@%%ﬂ%%iﬁ
its tenants are as follows: MEFBEMT :
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Within one year —FR 8,537 7,309
After one year but within two years —F EEREUAR 4,409 2,224
After two years but within three years MELEB=FHURA 930 448
After three years but within four years =FAEBEMEFEIAR - 236
13,876 10,217
Other Assets 19. HEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
Cost of membership for a seat at CGSE SREBEHHERNA 1,500 1,500
Rental deposits® HERe* 213,595 200,999
Deposits paid for purchases of items of property, BEYE  HBNREEBZ
plant and equipment Bf&e 5,245 2,522
220,340 205,021
*  The rental deposits are related to office properties, retail stores and factories leased W NAEEZHRAE  TEEHKEEM

by the Group (note 18(a)) and the majority of the terms of the lease arrangements
are over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate amount of approximately

#)(Ff £ 18(a ))Z*BEWEET’E% PN (Pl
NAMEE—F HPaANN18EERT

HK$118 million (2022: approximately HK$131 million) relating to operating leases (2022 % - i’]131 BEAT)B—FRNEHZ

expiring within one year. The Directors are of the opinion that such deposits are of
a long-term nature on the basis that the related leases are expected to be renewed
upon their respective expiry dates. Accordingly, the Directors consider it appropriate
to classify such deposits as non-current assets.

KERE RBR BEWEHERARES
Exllﬁﬁﬁiﬁ*i’ﬁ_%ﬁ IR & e & 21T
BH-Hit BEXERAERUERENERE
RBAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.

21.

ma

MBEHRME

Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other 20, EEARAVEESAHMEEKEMNE
Comprehensive Income BEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Listed equity investments, at fair value ETRHRE - BATER
HKEC™ R 891,583 1,121,797
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FLETRGIRE - BRAFEE
Sure Success Holdings Limited Sure Success Holdings Limited 19,900 19,900
Golden Twin (Un Long) Catering Company Limited () RERR AT 8,783 16,849
Hong Kong Precious Metals Exchange Limited EERECBRHFERAT 254 270
28,937 37,019
920,520 1,158,816
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value BRI EB A HEIEE AR AT
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these BEFAEMZENE  BAEERAEZ
investments to be strategic in nature. SREBRBME -
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received dividends B Z2023F12831BLEE A&
in the amounts of HK$27,246,000 (2022: HK$25,383,000), HK$559,000 Y Z) B 227,246,000 7% 7T.(2022 5 ¢
(2022: HK$206,000), HK$413,000 (2022: HK$413,000) and HK$10,000 25,383,000 JC ) ° 559,000/ Jt(2022
(2022: HK$18,000) from HKEC, Sure Success Holdings Limited, Golden £ 206,000 7T ) * 413,000 7% 7T.(2022
Twin (Un Long) Catering Company Limited and Hong Kong Precious % 413,000 7T ) % 10,000 % 7T(2022
Metals Exchange Limited, respectively. % : 18,0008 7T) 9 Rl BB ET - Sure
Success Holdings Limited, &4 (JTER) #X
REBRARIKEBECBRIMERAD
o
* 0n 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock Exchange and *  FA2000%F3A6H - MBI H AT R IR AT
the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger) BVRAD & BF 5T BIA R R 5 BT RSB AR (& 0F)
Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares of HKEC, six exchange trading Bl - RE B ERIGH XFT6,223,500 IR AR 12
rights in the Stock Exchange and one exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange NEB R AR SR — BRI S - A
as a consideration for the cancellation of its 6 shares held in the Stock Exchange BRREBRZMEE 26 RRHM REBHRZM
and 1 share held in the Futures Exchange. As at 31 December 2023, the Group held BB ZIRR M B2023F12A318 »
3,326,800 (2022: 3,326,800) shares of HKEC. 7 42 [ 4% 75 7 %2 7 3,326,800 % (2022 4 :
3,326,800 %) A& 15 ©
Inventories 2. RE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Goods held for sale FEHEZEm 12,256,832 12,112,349
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22,

Accounts Receivable 22.
Trade and credit card receivables RWE S REARER
Impairment A

Accounts receivable FEUER R

The Group’s trading terms with its retail and LGD trading customers
are mainly on cash and credit card settlement while trading terms with
corporate clients and wholesale customers are on credit with credit period
generally up to 60 days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:
Within 1 month 1EARA

1 to 2 months 1221EAR

2 to 3 months 2Z3f8A

Over 3 months ®B3MEA

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

At 1 January ®n1A1A8

Reversal of impairment losses, net (note 6) MEEERRE - FE(HEE)
Amount written off as uncollectable i Eioh=E N ]
Exchange realignment PE N TR

At 31 December K12 8318

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type
and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

ma

Bt HE R M &
FEWERR
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT
996,557 875,695
(27,198) (57,223)
969,359 818,472
AREBRETZENIGDEERFA
RPBEREEUREREAREE -
GCEEZEFRMBEFPILZ R PIER

PHT i 4‘3 /EEN

kv
i
RE—MRERZAIE6OR - S EE
Z&a@)\%iﬁﬂﬁﬁ o BB BIRHR A

PSR - RYSRFRBEER AR
FREBREERRROTAT :

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
906,424 700,198
46,138 70,042
16,294 25,746
503 22,486
969,359 818,472
PR BRTR 2 BB IR E BT -
2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR THET
57,223 112,189
(9,003) (38,655)
(19,572) (9,101)
(1,450) (7,210)
27,198 57,223

AEBENERE B BERRBEEETR
BDN - U ERBEEER - BEXT)
%E@ﬂﬁiﬁfﬂ?‘é%'l%?ﬂ(1§IJZZD?§HEE B

RENARRFPREULFR) 2 ERP
’\*EZEEIJZ@E?@EE%Z?*E MR E R

AREMEIEER - BB BRERNER
iﬁiﬁﬁﬂ—ﬂg SERBEEMHZAERA

SHAR - BN RRREERRE
Ao —RE - BHBE—F REETR

IRERHIBTTE B R U AR SRS T LAMH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22,

23.

ma

MBEHRME

Accounts Receivable (continued) 22. ERERF(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TREYIAEE AR EEREET BRI ER
Group's accounts receivable using a provision matrix: EXNEERBER
As at 31 December 2023 M2023512831H
Past due
k]
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
RE SR11EA 123{8R #BiB3{EA &5t
Expected credit loss rate LI 1.00% 2.21% 3.52% 44.51% 2.73%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BRrE#2E(FHET) 816,933 98,570 46,917 34,137 996,557
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) EEHEEEE(THT) 8,175 2,176 1,652 15,195 27,198
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%F12A31H
Past due
k]
Less than 1103 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
ok PR1{EA 1E3f8A HiB3{E A B
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 1.47% 3.46% 5.21% 59.25% 6.53%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEEI4E(E(F57T) 632,987 111,420 62,402 68,886 875,695
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BEREEAE(THET) 9,305 3,853 3,253 40,812 57,223
Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking 23. EFRBERKRLELE ZEWIRER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET
Receivables arising from securities and futures EHBEBRTERR
broking conducted in the ordinary course HERLEEY
of business: JEUTBR R -

Loans to margin clients® TREFEZ' 736,917 737,182
Impairment A (658,773) (613,540)
Receivables arising from securities BHERAERBEEL

and futures broking JE AR 3R 78,144 123,642

The loans to margin clients were secured by the underlying pledged securities,
repayable on demand and bore interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis was
disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis was not relevant in
view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing. As at 31 December
2023, the total market value of securities pledged as collateral and securities held
by guarantors in respect of the loans to margin clients was HK$78,144,000 (2022:
HK$123,642,000).

Receivables from margin clients arising from the business of dealing in
securities and futures broking are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LMITED /160

AEEESEBEBEERAQR

' OHBREFERNEBCEEESERR
ERERKEEREEERTGIE - ESER
RERBFAEREEBHERKRRS M
WM WERERR DN - R2023F
12A318 BHAFREFERUEFHER
EERORERTMBZERCLTER
78,144,000 78 7T.(2022 F : 123,642,00077T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of receivables arising
from securities and futures broking are as follows:

At 1 January 2022
Loss allowance recognised (note 13)

At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023
Loss allowance recognised (note 13)

At 31 December 2023

REMBERME

23. RERHEELELZEUERR(E)
A MR EL 2 RYRR 2 RER

BREZHWT
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-month not credit- credit-
impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
TEREERE HEGERE
1218 RS ZEHEY ZEHEH
FEBR FEFR FEBR
(F1RER) (F2RER) (E3ER) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx TET BT
R2022F1A81H - 582,651 582,651
BRREEEE(HFE13) = 30,889 30,889
R2022F12A31B K
2023%F1A1H - 613,540 613,540
BRREBEE (1 13) - 45,233 45,233
M2023F12/831H - 658,773 658,773

Receivables arising from securities and futures broking are categorised
into excellent, good and fair. Excellent refers to loans to margin clients
of which margin obligation can be met and payment of interest and
principal is not in doubt, with good quality and liquidity of collateral.
Good refers to loans to margin clients with exposures which principal and
interest are partially or fully secured by collateral with values higher than
carrying amount. Fair refers to loans to margin clients with exposures of
which loss, partial or full, has incurred and with insufficient collateral. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by considering
the probability of default of counterparties. The Group also takes into
account forward-looking information to reflect the debtors’ probability
of default under the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate.

ERRPERCEL ZRYSRR D AL
B REE—KR HEREHFREP
(TABITERESES  FEMAEH
XNPERE - ERROEENRBIER
HINER - RERERAFRESREE
o BEAES R S ER I A REE R
mEHBAREHER  BRFRERBER
K- —RREAFREFPRENESER
RHoREREX  BERRAE  BE
AR EERE A ETREERIZY
FRAOMAGILET - ARETEHEE
BAEIEEENRBREBZAEZRAERT
HBAIBER A R BRRASERR OTRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

24.

ma

MBEHRRME

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued) 23. BERHELSLES ZEBUIRR(E)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount by the Group's internal credit rating BASERNBEEFERFERIBE D2
and year end classification: REAZBESITWT
As at 31 December 2023 M2023512831H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B 1M E2MEER B3R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THERT FTHET TERT
Internal rating grade NEME BT R
Excellent ke - - - -
Good Ry = = - -
Fair —f - - 736,917 736,917
- - 736,917 736,917
As at 31 December 2022 20225 12831H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
1R E 2R £ 3R A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT THAT FHET
Internal rating grade NEMEERTR
Excellent te - - - _
Good Rt¥ - - _ _
Fair —& = = 737,182 737,182
- - 737,182 737,182
Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets 24, FBAMNRE- HtEWRRREGCEE

Prepayments BRIA
Deposits Ze
Right-of-return assets REREE
Other receivables H it FEUBR 3K

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts.
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
783,387 747,005
57,007 60,439
1,784 1,494
6,585 6,477
848,763 815,415

BEAELMEHRZUBEERBIHTEE
Hm AL B 2 FEMBR T - M2023F K&
2022F 128318 RFENEEEE
*@/J\ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Listed equity investments, at fair value

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

26. Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash and bank balances B & RRITER

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of FHREEIHA DR =EA Z
less than three months when acquired gigiibva-iyes |

Cash and cash equivalents RekERHE

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland China denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to RMB532,423,000 (approximately
HK$585,399,000) (2022: RMB328,800,000 (approximately
HK$372,136,000)). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits as at 31 December 2023 are made for
periods of 2 weeks to 1 month, and earn interest at the time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held
on behalf of clients” under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the corresponding accounts
payable to the respective clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not

allowed to use the clients” monies to settle its own obligations.

Ll RE - AT EE

REMBERME

BAVEEFABEENUKEE

2023 2022
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR TET
12,417 14,334

Ll R B TIHEEERE - MABR
BRAFEEABRNUBEE -

ReRERRE REFFERE
ReRkERREZHMMT :

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
1,066,126 727,174
30,020 21,454
1,096,146 748,628

RBEHR AEBEFBEAKES
BIMBARMAREABN RS
RB1THERAEARKS32423,0007T
(#585,399,000/87) (2022 % :
AR#328,800,0007T(#7372,136,000
BIL)) e ARBREeamiaAs e
B ORI - AR R R B K BE 2 NGRS A1
RAETE  EERNEETERT  AEEE
B BERRETINEES ZRITHAR
BRBAHMER -

RITREBEET B RITERFRLZEHF
REIWA S - R2023F12 831 BHE
HENMER 2 ERHA2EHZ1EAT
% WIRTEHERFERRRF L - RI77
?ﬁWE%E&?ﬁﬁi&%ﬁjﬁﬁKEmﬂﬁZ
#RIT °

AEERFRRITRARBIUETRS - A
FHESNBEEFNEBEBREL LR
B - ARED KU FELRED BNEE
FBARKABREEER N Z[KRP
RAERE | YMRAKEE ERPHA
ZEMBRIMA B EMERBENT
HATPER - AREAAEAEFRIEA
EEAEE B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.

28.

Accounts Payable

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1TEAR
1 to 2 months 122EA
Over 2 months BiE2 @A
Accounts payable JETBRFR

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally due for
settlement on 30 days.

Payables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

REMBERME

27. EREX

REFEHR - BARFREZERAMZIR
AT -

2023 2022

HK$’'000 HK$'000

TR TET

130,152 124,911

1,074 5,347

3,691 184

134,917 130,442

ENERARE AR HEIORAGE -

28. RBENRHEELELZENRR

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Payables arising from securities and futures ERBEEPES
broking conducted in the ordinary course RBEGILEEZ
of business: JERTERAR
Cash clients’ RexpP’ 466 1,463
Margin clients” TRERE" 13 607
Payables arising from securities and futures broking — #F& KB EELEE 2 EANER 479 2,070

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an
ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of such business.
*Included in the cash client accounts payable arising from dealing in securities
conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of approximately
HK$466,000 (2022: HK$1,463,000) representing those clients’ undrawn monies
placed with the Group.

*  The margin client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates.

ESRARENUEBMESHRENTER

TR BRI EEERE DT -

P OORERRESPETRAFBERELE RN
B4R P &R AN 4466,0007 (2022 F -
1,463,000/870) AR EEFPERASEZ R

REGRR ©

* ENAREPEFAREREEE

BRETR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29.

Other Payables and Accruals

Accruals fEEtIRE
Contract liabilities EHEE
Refund liabilities BFRAR
Other payables Hfth FEAT AR K
Customer gold deposits REFES

Notes:

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

KEEPZRHERNE
EmHEE

Short-term advances received from customers
Sale of goods

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver jewellery and
precious metals. The decreases in contract liabilities in 2023 and 2022 were mainly
due to the decrease in short-term advances from customer orders of goods at the
end of the years.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

The Group provides gold deposit services to its customers. Under this arrangement,
customers deposit physical gold with the Group and can withdraw the same units
of gold together with a fixed amount of fee on the maturity date. The customer
gold deposits are estimated based on the fair value of gold deposits outstanding at
the end of the reporting period. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate. As at 31 December 2023, gold deposits from
customers also included approximately 800 (2022: 800) taels of gold from certain
management personnel of the Group.

REMBERME

29. HftEMRMRERE

2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B s FERx FHT
131,146 111,916
(@) 72,168 75,941
2,172 1,832
(b) 445,420 398,557
(0) 23,782 20,901
674,688 609,147
B
(@) BHBEFENT
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
2023 20224 20224
12A31A8 12A318 1818
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx BT T
72,168 75,941 84,040
BHABRERRNKERESBUIMZ
5 HATE IR FUE - 2023 R 20226 A KA
BROEEHRERREZFTENREE
FARFRD °
(b) EtbENERAEE -
(© AEERERPREFSRE - BELE

B REFAAEEGEAETS REIEAR
ROEREN 2 ETHEER - BFF
SHERREBREBRTEEZ AT EEE
HEET o BT EEGRERN  YEEE
BEHERT - W2023F 128318 BF
BeNMBREAEEETERABZERN
8007 (2022 : 800 ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets BE

Bullion contracts ExEBEY
Cross currency swaps RXEM 1 1
Liabilities af&

Bullion contracts E2EBEN
Foreign currency forward contracts REINEES L

The bullion contracts, cross currency swaps and foreign currency forward
contracts are stated at their fair values. The above transactions involving
derivative financial instruments are conducted with reputable financial
institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2023, the aggregate contractual amount of the bullion contracts was
HK$167,107,000 (2022: HK$289,273,000).

In addition, the Group has entered into cross currency swaps and foreign
currency forward contracts to manage its foreign currency risk. The cross
currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts were measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value thereof
amounting to HK$3,896,000 (2022: HK$3,531,000) were credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

The purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered into by the Group
is to manage the Group’s commodity price risk and foreign currency risk.
Such contracts and swaps did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

ma

30.

B 3% R B 5
fTEERMIA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
528 -
- 10,008
528 10,008
2,261 5,894
2,581 6,477
4,842 12,371
ESBAY INEREHRRBINE
BRNRERFEEIR - LS RITAE

CHMIAZRGNEEER T ZE K
BRERELBE SN AETT - K2023
F128318 E2BAEYNZANEE
“ (& 5167,107,000/8 7T(20224F :
289,273,000/ 7T) °

BESN - AEBFT YR X & ¥ s 8 iR
JIEANEREIINERR ZERXNE
BB REHINEANEATEBEFA
BB - FARGEBERZREA
HAFEEZEMNSEA3,896,000/8 7T
(20224 : 3,531,000 7T) °

AEEFY RO RFEHREEEEAS
EzAmERERRIMNERR - ZFEAHD
RIEH A& HIR G SRR 2 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.

ma

MBEHRME

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 31, FHERTEXR
2023 2022
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
GRS i TiEn AAANE 5%A TEL
% %
Current ik |
Portion of term loans from banks REBIER—ER
due for repayment within HEEE P
one year - unsecured THES - BEA 21-6.7 2024 476,283 22-12 2023 547,358
Current portion of bank loans ER—ENIBEEL
due for repayment within BIERZRE
one year - unsecured no - BEE 2.2-6.9 2024 612,605 2.2-6.8 2023 478,805
1,088,888 1,026,163
Non-current E ik
Non-current portion of bank BRAT BREREIE
loans due for repayment BERTERZ
within a period of; EREES
More than one year but —E A
less than two years DRRE
- unsecured - B8R 44-69 2025 363,041 22-68 2024 395,468
More than two years but MEN LB
less than five years DREE
- unsecured - B8R 46-68 2026 65,989 44-68 2025 145,293
429,030 540,761
1,517,918 1,566,924

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of the term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that are classified as current liabilities is expected to
be settled within one year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's banking facilities amounted
to HK$3,244,863,000 (2022: HK$3,089,056,000), of which
HK$1,517,918,000 (2022: HK$1,566,924,000) had been utilised at the
end of the reporting period.

All of the banking facilities, including bank borrowings and bullion
loans (note 32), are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time, irrespective of whether the Group has complied
with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

AERITER(BRREREEZEHE
oK) TR B SRS BR o TREBLER —4F
RIMEREABSHEREREIRNE
RARBABEZHAERERHN —FRBF

g o

M2023F 128318 "REBZERTE
& % 53,244,863,00058 7T(2022 4 :
3,089,056,000870) * RREEHREH
B E $1,517,918,0007% 7T(2022 4
1,566,924,000787T) °

MARTEE(BRERITERRESERE
BE(ME32)) AXERANTAETHHLL
K ERANESREBI I EER
B o MAKERRGE - FIRREERA
REREE - WM AEBZETERE
A B B4 TR 22 ERE
BERIAEEZIES  THAKERST
EETHERETREERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings (continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants for
all the outstanding bank borrowings and bullion loans. Accordingly, the
Group does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 42(a) to the consolidated financial statements. As
at 31 December 2023 and 2022, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting period

are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar ET
Renminbi AR
New Taiwan dollar ek

32. Bullion Loans

Bullion loans — unsecured

Bullion trading facilities E2BR I
Contractual interest rate BHF|=
Original maturity [REEA

The amounts represented borrowings from banks or top bullion trading

companies and the amounts payable are pegged with bullion prices.

Certain of the bullion loan facilities are subject to fulfilment of covenants
under the Group's banking facilities. Details of which are disclosed in note

31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bullion loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of
bullion prices on bullion inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Bullion loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information
about the bullion loans is provided on that basis to the Group's key

management personnel.

BESEES - SR

E

REMBERME

31. FERTERE)

AEERFEAERBRTERRECERE
ETHERHETZERREZER - Bt
AEERERBEEETZSHTE 17
BrReTEENEREEREEER - 56
AEFEERDECRR 2 E—THFEH
WA BHKRME42(a) - N2023FE K
2022F 128318 AEEYEERE
BEHREEZHE -

RTEFRRERRREAEATIEE
RE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
1,248,916 1,380,810
47,719 73,756
170,423 67,908
50,860 44,450
1,517,918 1,566,924
32. HERMfEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
3,047,732 3,073,102
7,665,418 5,683,173

0.8% -4.5% 0.8% - 6.3%
1-9months B 1-8 months A

ZHRBERBTRERISBE S AR
& MENRERESBERBE -

ATESBREERABNAAKERITE
Ezm#E FERERMBRRME

HE -

EARTREERNAREESBERK
PHETCBEECVE - A KRR
MeHhastRE Gt - ENETRE
ETREBRERRERE MKERBE QY
BEEEERRMERE - SEEE AR
AFEEFABRENABEAE - MEBZ
FEEREEZEMDRAREERLIE
BrXEEBABRME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. Bullion Loans (continued)

REMBERME

The carrying amounts of the bullion loans at the end of the reporting
period are denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi
United States dollar

33. Deferred Tax

(oross deferred tax assets/ BLRERE/
(labilties) (Bf)e%
At 1 January 2022 RANEIR1B
Adjustments (note 2.2 #E(H22)

A1 January 2022 (restated) —— #202E1 818
(1)

Deferred tax credited/{charged) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss- during the year

Bxchange redignment B
(ross deferred tax assets/ LUWEE/
(liabilities) i
At 31 December 2022 and ﬁ\ 2022¢1Zﬂ 31H
1 January 2023 (rstated) RBE1A1A
(&5)

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to - EARGAERR
the consoldated statementof  3tA/(18)2
profitor logs during the year LR

Bxchange redlignment Efag

(Gross deferred tax assets/ EitiEeE/
(iabiltes) (Bf)es
At 31 December 2023 RABENANA

32. BEE (&)
& %aé%% RIRERRZREENAT
FIERREN
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
AR 1,796,584 1,944,711
= 1,251,148 1,128,391
3,047,732 3,073,102
33. EEBIE
Losses
available for
offsetting Depreciation
against Impairment  allowance
Decelerated future  Impairment of inexcess of
lease  Right-of-use tax taable  of accounts  right-of-use related  Withholding
liabilities assets  depreciation profits  receivable assets  depreciation taxes Others Total
TERRR
Al Jl BRE  MEGRE
HERE  RAEEE RRERE Pl i BRRE BENE BURENE it i ait
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
T 1AL Thn Tén Tén TAL Thn Tén Tén ThL
12,850 - 11963 1,20 28,048 8,801 (35,447) (330,660) 6,706 (296,525)
143,074 (143,074) - - - - - - - -
155,924 (143,074) 11,963 1,20 28,048 8801 (35447) (330,666) 6,706 (296,525)
14558 (14471) (112) n (9,664) (8,486) 1079 (1,174) 20,640 2441
(12313) 11319 (209) - (1,868) - 182 - (1,117) (3,986)
158,169 (146,166) 11,602 1291 16,516 315 (34,180) (331,840) 26,229 (298,070)
(4.269) 4533 1,36 m) 2317) (315) 8 (13,949) (6,235) (21,254)
(513) 169 (90) - (456) - 54 - (120) (1,556)
153,387 (141,464) 12,748 570 13783 - (33,349) (345,789) 19.274 (320,880)

~ A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. Deferred Tax (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in the statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting

purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised in RAMBHRARS

the consolidated statement of financial position RZEEFRBFEEE
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in REMBARRRF

the consolidated statement of financial position BRAZEEHREFARG

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$809,346,000
(2022: HK$704,810,000) and Mainland China of HK$72,847,000 (2022:
HK$55,727,000). The tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the tax losses arose, whilst those arising in Mainland China
will expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
of HK$805,899,000 (2022: HK$768,261,000) as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is uncertain
whether taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised. The Group had tax losses arising in Macau of HK$15,543,000
as at 31 December 2022 and were utilised during the year ended 31

December 2023.

The Group is liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The applicable rate is 5% or

10% for the Group.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

34. Share Capital

Authorised: ETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.25 each

Issued and fully paid:
677,434,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.25 each

BRITRATE :
677,434,000 L EREE
0258z L@k

ma

33.

34,

1,000,000,000 A% & % E1E
02582 Bk

MBEHRME

DR (H)

RERIE - ETRERAEEEMRRFD
ERBARRKRPEE - A TEAEEIET
BERESRDT  WEBBREZH

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
59,179 68,244
(380,059) (366,314)
(320,880) (298,070)

AEEBRBERELE 2R ERBBE
/809,346,000 (2022 F -
704,810,000 L) - KPR AREEEZ
i 18 5 18 /572,847,000 7T(2022 4 -
55,727,000 7T) - REBEE 2 RIEE
BRI ERGAEREZSELERBERD
Bl RRERTRF - MR B REEE
ZREBEENAERNER EETEH
EEEARRERT G - AR EEE
DREEEE—BEREZWBAR B
R RERETE RS B ERTEF A& B
TIIRE B - B &5 805,899,000 /4
(20224 : 768,261,000 7T ) B Itk %
BERRELEHRBEE - N2022F 128
318 AEENRMELEZTRBEEES
15,543,000 7T * WEREZE 2023412
A31BIEFEREA -

REFBFREARZENPEARZEFNBIK
SN ZMBARR2008F1 A1HEEL
AT IR 2 R EBMATERY - A% H
IR ER5%310% °

ARRRERRRE 2 BB LB KAE
o

B
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
250,000 250,000
169,359 169,359
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 11 June

2020 (the “Adoption Date"”).

A summary of the principal terms of the Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to Eligible
Participants (as defined below) who have contributed or may contribute to
the Group and to enable the Group to attract and retain employees and
other personnel that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which

the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer
to grant an option to subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to
such conditions as it may think fit to the following persons (the "Eligible

Participants”):

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive director but not any non-executive director) of the

Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

¢. any individual acting in his capacity as an adviser or a consultant that
provides research, development or other support or advice to the

Group or any Invested Entity;

d. any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of securities issued by any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; and

e. any distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business
partner, joint venture business partner, promoter and service provider
to the Group or any Invested Entity whom the Directors consider, in
their sole discretion, has contributed or may contribute to the Group

and any Invested Entity.

The total number of the Company's shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
10% of the total
number of the Company’s shares in issue as at the Adoption Date (such
total number of issued shares being 677,434,000 shares). As at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 67,743,400 shares, representing

share option scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed

10% of the shares in issue.
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35.

MBEHRME

L-ie B

RAEBER2020F6 A1 B(EH A
H )R iR 81 ([ 3%ZaT81)) -

Z BN EREFHEEIIMT -

Zat e E R AKEEL BRIk A W
HERZAER2BAERR TMH

RE N RE - AREAREES W%Iﬁ”
HARERASERBEABREZEAE
%U&A, BEFEEZEEREMA

BEZHE EFSERARCENER
REERET - T2ERERANTALIE
BREAANDRHBRENELD - ARE
ARABeD

a. ARA - AEMHEERRREMRE
ERNEAEE(TRmAZBRRE
EE BREMATES BETEE
ERFRITES)

b. ARAF - HAEFMNERRIEMEKE
ERNEMFNTES(BRBEULIE
BITEE)

¢ {EAEBLF
REEBRMME -
KEZNTAAL

d. AEEEMKERRREMRETR
AR - HAREEEAKE AR

o

KA [AEE SRR
P SR

SEMREBRAEITZEF M
BAAN K

e. EE2ENERRCEHARY
$El&Eﬁ?§§%¢ﬁ§%
ZAEESEAREBRNENDH
BoAeR - EBP HER - KR
EBBHN  REXGEBH  HERR
FRFHLRERS o

REZE R A E B R E B R
Z%ﬁ%h%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬁ2$ﬂﬁ
BB - EHETBRBANDRNEMA
HZEBITRMNBER 10% (ZEETR
4281 5 677,434,000% ) - RANBT R
SR B IR BIAT BT AOAR D
B E67,743,4000% » BN EBTIRH B
‘|0% °

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 171 ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 4 iR

BEEESEERAR

~ A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of total number of shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such Eligible Participant
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules), if the Eligible Participant is a connected

person (as defined in the Listing Rules), abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after the date
on which the option is granted as the Board may determine in granting
the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as the Board
may determine in granting the option but in any event shall not exceed
10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the

offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable

on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board provided
always that it shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately

preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Subject to the termination provisions set out in the Scheme, the Scheme
shall be valid for a period of 10 years commencing from the Adoption

Date.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not have a past
practice of cash settlement for these share options. The Group accounts

for the Scheme as an equity-settled plan.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme since the Adoption

Date.

36. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 88 and 89 of the consolidated financial

statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which
are established in the People’s Republic of China has been transferred to

reserve funds which are restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (173
BEEESEERARRDA

37. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 37. BREBRSARERME
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from (a) ERNACEREBRECHE
operations
2023 2022
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B s FTEx FHT
Profit/(loss) before tax: BREBAER,(B8) -
From continuing operations RKEAFHE Z‘«“%f&‘ 1,357,452 592,764
From the discontinued operation RER | EEEER 13 (47,679) (34,039)
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs BI15& A 129,899 81,860
Finance income EION (17,588) (13,343)
Dividend income from listed Bz BREMEA
investments 6 (27,772) (25,888)
Dividend income from unlisted EEMIRE ZBREMA
investments 6 (982) (637)
Net loss on disposal of items of HEME - B RREER
property, plant and equipment FER 7 7,351 6,607
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HETESmMTIE
derivative financial instruments FIEE, () 7 33,870 (12,416)
Net loss on bullion loans designated EEARATEEIIERE
as at fair value through profit ZESBEEIER
or loss 7 505,390 138,560
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment — R&EWE 2 N FEE
properties FER () 6 4,053 (28)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on bullion BEARAFEECAE
loans designated as at fair value ZESBEENATERE
through profit or loss FEE () 6 (15,555) 121,116
Net fair value loss/(gain) on BATEESABRNNBEE
financial assets at fair value through ZATEEFES,/ (W)
profit or loss 6 1,788 (336)
Net fair value gain on derivative TESBMTAZRAFEER
financial instruments - transactions FEE - AAFA EH
not qualifying as hedges FBEZR 6 (7,979) (9,284)
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—BREME s
property 6 (5,900) =
Covid-19-related rent concessions HAALTH2019EBHRAE
from lessors ﬁﬁﬁZfﬁi%M 18(b) - (15,527)
Gain on termination of leases RIFTRE 2 W 18(c) (6,888) (3,905)
Loss on remeasurement of leases EFrEHE BB 18(c) = 526
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREZTE
equipment 16 346,722 333,307
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREAELITE 18(a) 590,410 537,270
Reversal of impairment of accounts FEUARRERE - FE
receivable, net 6, 22 (9,003) (38,655)
Impairment of receivables arising from mﬁﬁﬂﬁ ST AR 2 FEMBR R
securities and futures broking B 13, 23 45,233 30,889
Write-down of inventories to net jvhﬁﬁf SBR[ E
realisable value 7 12,948 6,149
2,895,770 1,694,990
Increase in inventories FEZEm (292,256) (1,162,809)
Increase in accounts receivable FEURBRE TR 2 32N (192,817) (113,035)
Decrease in receivables arising from 5 NS SO EE 2 TEIBR TR
securities and futures broking Zﬁ < 265 391
Increase in prepayments, other B IE H bR R E A
receivables and other assets ﬁ? bl (49,623) (31,161)
Decrease in cash held on behalf of 1&%)5#%‘1,%%2/}‘%”\
clients 1,591 1,815
Decrease in accounts payable ENERRZ B (12,146) (108,253)
Decrease in payables arising from %&Hﬂ%i,i%ﬁ)zizrgﬁﬁ%m
securities and futures broking D (1,591) (1,815)
Changes in derivative financial TEEMIAZE
instruments (23,862) 12,416
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hib MR L ETIER
and accruals 2%8m,/ CRd) 14,380 (75,411)
Cash generated from operations REMGRE 2,339,711 217,128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEBERERKE
37. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 37. HZEABEERERMEE)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: (b) BMETHELEZEEEH:
2023
Interest-
bearing
bank Lease Bullion
borrowings liabilities loans
TERTER HESE EZBRE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET THET
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1A1H 1,566,924 982,985 3,073,102
Changes from financing cash flow ~ RIEREREEE) (46,618) (559,606) (460,270)
New leases HHE - 743,511 =
Foreign exchange movement GNEE ) (2,388) (15,385) (54,935)
Interest expense FERXY - 42,236 -
Interest paid classified as PEAKERENE
operating cash flows RERFE - (42,236) =
Termination of leases BIFAE - (92,367) =
Net loss on bullion loans designated 1§ AR A FEEE
as at fair value through profit BE ELBES
or loss FEE - - 505,390
Net fair value gain on bullion loans ~ #§EARATLEEIE
designated as at fair value BEZERBEER
through profit or loss NFEEF R - - (15,555)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F 128318 1,517,918 1,059,138 3,047,732
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

37. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 37. BREBRSARERMZ(E)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities: (b) BMETHEEZEEL2D: (A)
(continued)
2022
Interest-
bearing
bank Lease Bullion
borrowings liabilities loans
HFEBEAER HEARE BESBREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT FHT
At 1 January 2022 R2022451818 1,185,708 907,220 2,029,588
Changes from financing cash flow ~ FEBELHEE 387,479 (544,051) 903,951
New leases Mg - 733,233 =
Foreign exchange movement AN (6,263) (40,522) (120,113)
Interest expense MERYZ = 40,377 =
Interest paid classified as PEREERERE
operating cash flows HEMHFIE = (40,377) -
Termination of leases KIEEE = (49,610) =
Remeasurement of leases BHENE - (7,758) =
Covid-19-related rent concessions AL TH 2019 E K
from lessors RERE HEER - (15,527) =
Net loss on bullion loans designated  $5§& ARAFEBEGE
as at fair value through profit BEZESCBEE
or loss FEE = = 138,560
Net fair value loss on bullion loans  $§EARA T EEE
designated as at fair value RECESBEEN
through profit or loss NEEETEE = = 121,116
At 31 December 2022 M2022F12A831H 1,566,924 982,985 3,073,102
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(c)

(d)

Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflows for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$766,653,000
(2022: HK$754,872,000) and HK$743,511,000 (2022:

respectively, in respect of lease

arrangements for buildings.

HK$733,233,000),

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
received listed shares classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$3,933,000 as partial settlement

of accounts receivable.

Commitments

(a)

(b)

The Group had the following capital commitments for the property,
plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet commenced
as at 31 December 2023. The future lease payments for these
non-cancellable lease contracts are HK$53,150,000 (2022:
HK$33,003,000) due within one year and HK$164,054,000 (2022:

RERBA
BEEHA

SRR ORRER S 3

HK$69,442,000) due in the second to fifth years, inclusive.

REMBERRME

i/

RERERERME(E)

() HERSRBLE
HAGRABRSRERNAERER
HeasmEmT

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
861,088 806,022
559,606 544,051
1,420,694 1,350,073
(d) FEFRLRS

(b)

i) ER AEEREFHE
ZHNFERAREEREE
BEMNERSEND A
766,653,000/&77L(2022
F 1 754,872,000 T ) &
743,511,000487(2022
F 1 733,233,000/87T) °

(i) #HE2022F12831HIEEF
& A% E U EI3,933,000
B ETRRG - ZERG
W ABRATEENAR
sMMBEE  ERBIER

= Py
PO EE -

AEERBMEMROYE - #aZ R

RABERAENT ¢
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
12,707 16,899
72023412 A 31 NE

w-
4 d ot

B
HARBHSERAESY - *Aﬁ
FAIHEHEANNAKEER
18 /53,150,000 7L(2022 4 :
33,003,000 T ) X — F A
H % 164,054,000 712022 4F :
69,442,000 L) RE_EFHEF
(BIEEREME)EEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. Connected and Related Party Transactions

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere (a)
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with connected and/or related
parties during the year at mutually agreed terms:

Nature of transactions

REME

Lease payments for the lease of a retail shop

HETEEHIEERX

Lease payments for the short-term lease of
quarters of a Director

HEEEEe 2 RBBE Y HENA

Consultancy expenses for the provision of
image consultancy services to the Group

MALR B R RERRSE 2 BRRAX

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’

REMBERME

39. BEALRS
BRERAGE

INTEAR S
Relationship 2023
B% HK$'000
TER
Certain Directors who have beneficial
interests in the property
ETEERZNEREEnER 816

A related company in which a Director
has beneficial interests

—HEEBER R BENR 900

A related company in which family
members of two Directors have
beneficial interests
ﬁ%i%Z%ﬁ%ﬁX,jz&ﬁfﬁm =
s 1,063

2R 5 RESRIN
Eﬁiﬁﬁ‘@/\i& LR 2 R

BB HA
$§@W¢m

2022
HK$'000
THET

3,300

900

1,507

Ll BEREALR S IMER L
mﬁJ%+mAa%%£z¢*

R Ll %*E?Fim%ﬂﬁﬂ
%MAEf%%%$ﬁ FER

approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules. % NERBYRREIEZRE

(b) Emoluments of key management personnel of the Group (b)

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to key
management personnel during the year, including the amounts paid
and payable to the Company’s Executive Directors, is as follows:

Fees

Salaries and allowances

Discretionary bonuses paid and payable
Pension scheme contributions

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to

the consolidated financial statements.

FEETREEASHE

FRACNRENTER
oL BRENRENTAR
AMTES 2% #0T :

BRAEZ

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

we 1,510 1,450
e Rz 39,800 42,125
B R EREIBIEA 12,606 8,590
RINSEEIMER 958 1,066
54,874 53,231

EXHeE—PHBERGRENH

WRMFES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

39. Connected and Related Party Transactions (continued) 39. BAEATRE (&)
(c) On 31 January 2023, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the (0 M2023F 18318 ARAEIZMHE

Company (the “HK Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with certain Directors and their relatives (collectively,
the “HK Vendors”), pursuant to which the HK Vendors had agreed
to sell, and the HK Purchaser had agreed to purchase, a building
situated at Hong Kong at a total consideration of HK$116,000,000.

The consideration had been determined on the basis of normal
commercial terms and arm’s length negotiation between the HK
Vendors and the HK Purchaser.

On the same day, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “PRC Purchaser”) entered into two sale and purchase
agreements with a Director (the “PRC Vendor”), pursuant to which
the PRC Vendor had agreed to sell, and the PRC Purchaser had
agreed to purchase, two parcels of land located in PRC at a total
consideration of RMB7,175,000 and RMB2,954,000, respectively
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,307,000 and HK$3,420,000,
respectively).

The considerations had been determined on the basis of normal
commercial terms and arm’s length negotiation between the PRC
Vendor and the PRC Purchaser.

Further details of the transactions are contained in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 January 2023.

The transactions were completed during the reporting year.

Z2BEMBAR(AAES] A
ETESRHRERBREIRAR
BEHhDIVEEHH Bl &
BEIRBEHERBEETRBR
B-BURNBEINE  BRER
116,000,000 7T

REDAEEE T RBERTE—
REBIER LB D FERRETE

FAA - ARAzHE2ENE AR
A((FEED ) E-RER([H
BE;DIILMOEEGHE &

o FEESREHERTEES
REWEMREBELNSREZ i
BRED R HSART7,175,000 7T
R AR#2,954,0007T(5 Bl EE
72 498,307,000% 7T & 3,420,000 %8
JT) °

REDETFEES RTFEETZE—
REBER LB D FERRET

BRoE—P2FHE  BHERAE
Al HE#A2023F1B31HZA
ﬂq o

O I ant

Z

b

Vi

]

R EFENTHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023
Financial assets

Financial assets included in other assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable
Payables arising from securities
and futures broking
Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals
Customer gold deposits
Derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Bullion loans
Lease liabilities

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDI

HHEE

BATAMAR MR
ERARDTEET AR

SEisE AR
kS
BARBEAEELY
[

BREBNNE  AtEK

EUnERAERAY
AT B A

YBEE
TEERIA
REPRERS
RERSRARSE

BEBaR

Tl Gt

@

2
BRZHBAE
5

I 24 = T
i > om HF T G 00b G ik =T

\
A

522

F A 4 &

REMBERRME

40. RERNSEZSWMIA

R|ERR - FEGz 2B TAREEN

T
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair designated
value through at fair value
profit or loss- Financial  through other
mandatorily assets at comprehensive
designated amortised  income-equity
as such cost investments Total
HATEE ERBHAT
SRR  mERAEM
HHEE - BRRAHERE EEKEN
wHEE SEN  HBEE- .
RILER HHEE R RE EX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TiER
- 215,095 - 215,095
- - 920,520 920,520
- 969,359 - 969,359
- 78,144 - 78,144
- 63,592 - 63,592
12,417 - - 12,417
528 - - 528
- 479 - 479
- 1,096,146 - 1,096,146
12,945 2,422,815 920,520 3,356,280
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
BRAVEETA
BENHBAR
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading _ cost Total
RREZE T RESABAE )
RERLER BFEE ZHBEE X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
- - 134,917 134,917
- - 479 479
- - 320,775 320,775
23,782 - - 23,782
- 4,842 - 4,842
- - 1,517,918 1,517,918
3,047,732 - - 3,047,732
- - 1,059,138 1,059,138
3,071,514 4,842 3,033,227 6,109,583
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

40. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 40. RERSEZzERMIAE)
2022
Financial assets BREE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair designated
value through at fair value
profit or loss- Financial through other
mandatorily assets at  comprehensive
designated amortised income-equity
as such cost investments Total
EATEE BERBRAT
FTABRA {BEET AL
HBEE - REERA 2EYEN
RHEE 51| Y HBEE -
AR HBAE Rink & At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TEL TET TET
Financial assets included in other assets BErEMEE HEEE = 202,499 = 202,499
Financial assets designated at fair value BEARANTEEG AL
through other comprehensive income 2ANENEKEE - - 1,158,816 1,158,816
Accounts receivable TR = 818,472 = 818,472
Receivables arising from securities EERBEREEEL
and futures broking JEIERN - 123,642 - 123,642
Financial assets included in BEERAFE - HtElh
prepayments, other receivables ERREMEENGE
and other assets BE - 66,916 - 66,916
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEFABEN
profit or loss HEEE 14,334 = = 14,334
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 10,008 = = 10,008
Cash held on behalf of clients REPHERS - 2,070 = 2,070
Cash and cash equivalents AekERE S - 748,628 - 748,628
24,342 1,962,227 1,158,816 3,145,385
Financial liabilities B¥EE
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
BRATEEA
Bana%aR
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading cost Total
I IRRER R REHRAAE
BEALER KFEE ZHBaR CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAT TR
Accounts payable BB - - 130,442 130,442
Payables arising from securities ErRHEBEEEY
and futures broking FERTERR - = 2,070 2,070
Financial liabilities included in other BEEEMENRRK
payables and accruals A EEZHEEE = = 448,482 448,482
Customer gold deposits XPEF® 20,901 - - 20,901
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA = 12,371 = 12,371
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER - - 1,566,924 1,566,924
Bullion loans ELBREE 3,073,102 - - 3,073,102
Lease liabilities HEBE - - 982,985 982,985
3,094,003 12,371 3,130,903 6,237,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash held on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, payables
arising from securities and futures broking, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, customer gold deposits and bank borrowings
due for repayment within one year approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of other assets and bank borrowings due for repayment
after one year approximate to their carrying amounts, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings, bullion
loans and customer gold deposits as at 31 December 2023 were assessed
to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair values of the unlisted equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income have been estimated using the
asset-based method (2022: the income capitalisation method and asset-
based method). The valuation under the income capitalisation method
requires the management to make estimate about the capitalisation rates.
Management believes that the estimated fair value resulting from the
valuation technique, which is recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related change in fair value, which is recorded
in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the
most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of bullion loans and customer gold deposits is based on
open market prices of bullion.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2023, derivative financial instruments represented bullion contracts and
foreign currency forward contracts which were measured based on bullion
market prices and forward pricing, respectively (2022: derivative financial
instruments represented bullion contracts, foreign currency forward
contracts and cross currency swaps which were measured based on bullion
market prices, forward pricing and swap pricing, respectively). The carrying
amounts of the bullion contracts and foreign currency forward contracts
are the same as their fair values.

REMBERME

41.

EMIAZAFPEERAVEESR

RBEHMR  ARE2HBEERARZ
REEEEATEERS

BEEDHERIES  EFRPERL
EEZ RN - B EBRNTA - A
USSR R EMEELMHEEE  REP
BARAL ReRITRARE AKX
EAFREELEL  RNER  BRE
HiEA RSk B RE 2HBRE &
PEE AR —FRIIBEER ZRITER
ZAVEERAKRAGERS  TRHRZK
ETABNEHRNES -

MBEERBBECATEENASHER
MEMXZTFAZLAARBZ SBAR
CRHISBRLERIN) et 2 FEER
ERTATIERRR

HihEERBRM 1 FRIPEEZRTE
RZATEEREREERS  6HEA
ENRBEEEUER  EERR LS T
BT A EBERARITREE
HARRRERE - AEEN2023F12 A
N ERTER  E2BEERE
FhreEY 2 TRORMRITER 2 ATE
BERHFETFEALTEK o

EMRE 2 R EBEDREMSRE
AE - HEARAFEEFAEMZENR
@2 ETRINRE 2 AV EEIRAE
EEWE(20225F  WABRMLAEREE
ERR) A - RIRABARME 2 5
BEREEBHENCLLREM G - B
BERRREERMEL At A FEE
ERGEMBRARCRIEBAFEE
FPHOREME2ARELE  YTEAE
ERARBEHRREE 2BE -

BEeBEEREPTFEZATEENRE
B ARMERE -

FEERCERIFZSHEBRBRES
BE SRR ITESRTI A - 12023
F12A318 TEEBTRAEEESEA
HREBINES DD R E S BTISER
REERAE(2022F : (THESHIA
EELEAY RESNEAHRRINEE
BHLEESEMBER  BRHERR
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Bz EAEEE QA FEERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity

analysis:

As at 31 December 2023
7M2023%12831H

Unlisted equity investments
designated at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
HEEREATEETAEM
FHKEREZE ETRHEE

As at 31 December 2022
®2022%12HA31H

Unlisted equity investments
designated at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
EERRRTEET AR
FHKEEFE ETRHERE

Valuation
technique

fEE R

Asset-based method
EEERZL

Income
capitalisation
method

WABALE

Asset-based method
BEERZE
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Significant
unobservable input

EXBUBEYE

N/A
TER

Capitalisation rate

B &

N/A
N

AEEESEBEBEERAQR
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41.

2023

TRIAZAVEERAVEESR(E)

TEIHAERTAGEZERBENBE
YEHEERBILHREN -

Range

gE

N/A
TER

3.8% to
4.3%

3.8% &
4.3%

N/A
TEA

Sensitivity of
the input to fair value

BEHAFEEZHRE
N/A
TER

1% increase/decrease in
capitalisation rate would

result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$199,000

BRI &EM,/
B 1% EEHRAF

ERA,/1811199,00058 7T

N/A
N



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2023

Financial assets designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2022

Financial assets designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

R20235 128318

T ARAHERRA
i 2 E KRS
AE

BRATEEF AR
MBEE

fTEERTA

R2022%12A31R

BERRATEETA
A2

BRVEER ARHH
MBEE

fTAEERTA

REMBERRME

41.

APEEER

TRIAZAVEERAVEESR(E)

TREJXEEEBTAZAFEENE

E&
BAVEEHECEE

Fair value measurement using

RANTEE 2 AVEEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERm S EAATREE EABUBER
HE £ g
(&A1) (#A12) (#513) =H)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TET
891,583 - 28,937 920,520
12,417 - - 12,417
- 528 - 528
904,000 528 28,937 933,465
1,121,797 - 37,019 1,158,816
14,334 - - 14,334
- 10,008 - 10,008
1,136,131 10,008 37,019 1,183,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 41.

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are

as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income:

At 1 January

Total gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive
income

At 31 December

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2023

Bullion loans ELBEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTE
Customer gold deposits XPEe

As at 31 December 2022

Bullion loans ELBREE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTE
Customer gold deposits XPRe

APEESER(E)

TRMIAZAVEERAVEESR(E)

FABRIZAHEEFELENT

R20235 128318

R2022%12A31R

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
IBEREATEES ARM
FHBENIBEE
M1A1H 37,019 36,424
REMEEKGTERZ
Wi/ (BB @R (8,082) 595
MN12H318 28,937 37,019
BRATEEEZEE:
Fair value measurement using
RANTERZ AV EETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTS EAARE EABUBE
H1E Y& ¢
(&A1) (#R5A12) (&513) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TEL TET TR TR
3,047,732 - - 3,047,732
- 4,842 = 4,842
23,782 - - 23,782
3,071,514 4,842 - 3,076,356
3,073,102 = = 3,073,102
- 12,371 - 12,371
20,901 - - 20,901
3,094,003 12,371 - 3,106,374

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities.

FN - BHREERMBARZER KK
B2 cRYBEAVEEFEER  TES

AFEHARR3 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable and accounts payable, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group’'s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to reduce potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
equity price risk and commodity price risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
detailed below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with floating
interest rates.

For Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar floating-rate
borrowings, assuming that the amount of liabilities outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year, a 50-basis point increase/decrease in interest rates at 31
December 2023 and 2022 would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit before tax by HK$4,944,000 and HK$5,886,000,
respectively. The sensitivity to the interest rate used is considered
reasonable, with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax.

The Group's policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available without increasing its foreign currency exposures. In
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure and
considers utilising hedging instruments should the need arise.

REMBERME

42. BEERERARRBE

(a)

BREBEE

AREZIRERMTABRERTE
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BZBERTFRMEAMNZFIE -
BEAN » ZRER B EL B A R R K
T RREREREERAEHT
Ao

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 185 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AEESEBEERARAA

2023 4 iR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the
units’ functional currency. Management conducted periodical review
of exposures and requirements of various currencies, and used cross
currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts to manage
certain of its foreign currency exposures on significant and recurring
future commercial transactions. Hedging is only considered for firm
commitments.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. Currency risk is
managed by partly financing non-Hong Kong dollar assets with
loans denominated in the relevant currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax arising from Renminbi denominated financial
instruments and the Group's equity.

2023

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT AR B
against the Renminbi

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens  fisi& 7t i AR E In2&
against the Renminbi

2022

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT AR B,
against the Renminbi

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens  fiti#& 7t 3 A R E N4

against the Renminbi

REMBERME

42,

H¥ERERBERBER)

(a)

Increase/
(decrease)

Renminbi rate

ARBER

#m,/ (ML)

%

(5)

B m B R 2 ()

SMNEE R

FEBZRHGERERTEREE
BEMNEI &I 2 S
AZEE - EEERTRAEE MR
S REBEIT TSR AR
N EBEHRRPINESNE R
BEAREEERRBAERSGZET
%%E@O$$E@ﬁ%$%%ﬁ
TTHH o

AEBZEERRABIZNET
AREEETRER - ERIMNER,
BIERAIMNEERBT LIERT
BEETHORE -

TRETRAAME S G2
ZBERT  AEERNRSHR 2K
BAEF (M ARBHENSRT
REL) RAKENESHARE
EXAERIEEE)  BURE

Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in profit (decrease)
before tax in equity
BRBE AT A REmEm,
#m/ () (R2)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTET
2,824 378,946
(2,824) (378,946)
2,639 370,452
(2,639) (370,452)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities and
futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to the credit
risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group's retail
sales of jewellery and watches and the transactions of LGD trading
are are usually transacted on a cash basis, via popular credit cards
or through reputable and dispersed department stores and online
sales platforms. The Group's credit sales to corporate clients and
wholesale customers are generally on credit terms within 60 days.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with
respect to its retail business as it has a large number of diversified
customers. For accounts receivable arising from the wholesale
of diamonds and precious metals, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties and bullion banks. The
Group's receivables from margin clients arising from the ordinary
course of business of dealing in securities are secured by the
underlying collaterals. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has its credit control policy
to minimise the credit risk. In addition, all receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances are followed
up by senior management.

REMBERME

42. BBEREEEERBEK(E)

(a)

B m b E & ()

EEER

YIRS ESMAEREELZ
FEUER I ARERNRZ 5 F T
BOMEAZIEERERAR &%
RBRRENGEEMBRRART U F
PBEECKREE - NEEZKE
FEGRTEHERLGDEENR S
BENES BBLERERRIE
BEEBRERDBZBERARE
LHEFRETRS ARERD
REPRMBRFPETZEEHE
—RIE60 R A R IETT - B
REEXEBRAREDHEF &
WEEAEDZEERR - gEO
LECEBHBEL ZRUBER - K
SEERERARAEECFE =%
REeBMETRS AKEREAE
EBPELFERELCREFRE
FEFAGRMEERERERR -
7 £ (B 4 0 A B OO o A s R AR 2
Bl WREEEEHBRARESE
BRg - U5 - A EIER AR
BEHEER  ARERERRE

BABRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

(a)

REMBERME

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 42. HEEKREEAERBE(E)
Financial risk factors (continued) () HBEBREZ(E)
Credit risk (continued) R (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging mEBERRFRIEESE
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TREBAEBNEERR  JIR
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which EEEZERESEERR  BIEE
is mainly based on past due information unless other information BRAKNARE NEAESEME
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging # BRATRETENSHER &
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross R1I2ANBZERIBELEA
carrying amounts for financial assets. it - 27| 8T AU BEENKRE
wE -
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12831H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
12{8A RS
REFE 2HRNEEEHA
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RE EIRE £l R[9S Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAx TEx TR Tazn TEx
Accounts receivable* YRR - - - 996,557 996,557
Receivables arising from  EHRHELH
securities and futures EEZRNER
broking
- Doubtful** - BT - - 736,917 - 736,917
Financial assets included in  B2%EHAMEEZ
other assets HBEE
- Normal** -EF* 215,095 - - - 215,095
Financial assets included in - &4 & TE{TZUE -
prepayments, other ity LR R
receivables and other HEEMMKEE
assets
- Normal** -EE™ 63,592 - - - 63,592
Cash held on behalf of REFHERE
clients
- Not yet past due — MAREH 479 - - - 479
Cash and cash equivalents BERZERBES
— Not yet past due - RS 1,096,146 - - - 1,096,146
1,375,312 - 736,917 996,557 3,108,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

(a)

REMBERME

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 42. HEEKREEAERBE(E)
Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HMEEREZ(E)
Credit risk (continued) EEEE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEERRERSER S (E)
As at 31 December 2022 ®2022%F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
12{A ATEH
FEESE 2 HEHEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1E F2MEE F3MEE X a0 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THEL THET THL FAL
Accounts receivable* MR - - - 875,695 875,695
Receivables arising from &4 R HIEEL
securities and futures EEZEWERR
broking
- Doubtful** - NEE = - 737,182 - 737,182
Financial assets included in B2HEHMEE Y
other assets MEEE
- Normal** -EE 202,499 - - = 202,499
Financial assets included in  B&7EEMIE «
prepayments, other HEi R R
receivables and other HthBENYKEE
assets
- Normal™ ] B 66,916 - - - 66,916
Cash held on behalf of REFERRE
clients
— Not yet past due - AR 2,070 - - - 2,070
Cash and cash equivalents B&RERBES
- Not yet past due - HABEH 748,628 = = = 748,628
1,020,113 - 737,182 875,695 2,632,990

*  For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

** The credit quality of the receivables arising from securities and futures
broking, financial assets included in other assets and financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered
to be “doubtful”.

* %

AL B R 2SR
BIE - AR ARRNERHRE
RERA BB BMRME22

sk MR ESE 2 BRERR -
BEEEMEEZMBEERBESE
BNRE - EtRRERREMEE
MBS A R M B Y EE AT
RERGEEZ FERR B IRH#R
BABEM  BREUBEEZEE
HEWRARIER]- BRI Z5HH
BEZFREERGAITHEE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

REMBERME

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 42. HEEREEAERBKE(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BIHEREZEE)
Liquidity risk B E DR
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AEBERTHEZESNERES
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the REBAERARWKE AKX
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash SEEFREESRENR SRS
flows. The responsibility of the Group’s treasury department is to KB ARBEBKHBAZE
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility TAEBEBERRTEEEESZHE
through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity B R EE 2 FIE T - DR
requirements both in the short term and long term. The Group EHEHERRARSHELENK - K
maintains significant flexibility to respond to opportunities and EEEBRREEDHE AR
events by ensuring that committed credit lines are available. All EEHEE  #RHRHREELALE
debts of the Group (other than lease liabilities) as at 31 December BN EIE . 2023512 A31
2023 would mature within three years. B AEEmAEEEEARR
SR =FNEIE -
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end RBEHER - AEB P AER
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted BETREARFTRFEAE 2 3B
payments, is as follows: AR
2023
No fixed
terms of 1 year 2 years 5 years
repayment/ or less or less or less
repayable 3 months but over but over but over Over
on demand orless 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
EEER
&8/ 2% 1EG0T  2FIUT  SEIUT
EREE EAIMT E3@AML  EB1ENE E2EME SENL fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién Tin T Tin Tin T Tén
Accounts payable JEREER 21,710 113,07 - - - - 134,917
Payables arising from securities ~ BHRAEALEL 2
and futures broking B 479 - - - - _ 479
Financial liabilities included BETEBERENR
in other payables and accruals  FExfTER 2 ERE 47,190 272,985 - - - - 320,775
Customer gold deposits EPke 23,782 - - - - - 23,782
Derivative financial instruments #1528 IE - 2,261 - 2,581 - - 4,842
Lease liablites BEAR - 148,776 399,709 349,626 210,950 957 1,110,018
Term loans subject to repayment  REFEE KT
on demand clause EHEH 476,283 - - - - - 476283
Other interest-bearing bhank Bt SRTER
borrowings - 175,907 485,734 379,085 67,350 - 1,108,076
Bullion loans -6 1 - 2,184,438 863,294 - - - 3001732
570,044 2,897,574 1,748,731 731,292 278,300 957 6,226,904
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

REMBERME

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 42, BHEEREEEERBIKR(E)
Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HEEREZE(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) HBEZEE(E)
2022
No fixed
terms of 1 year 2 years 5 years
repayment/ or less or less or less
repayable 3 months but over but over but over Over
on demand or less 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
BEEE
BH/A% 1EIT  2FPUT  SEAUT \
EREE 3EAINT E3@AME  E1ENE B2ENE SENE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEn T T TR T T
Accounts payable FEf1st 23,785 106,657 - - - - 130,442
Payables arising from securities ~ EERASELREL 7
and futures broking ERER 2,070 - - - - - 2,070
Financial liabilties included CEVES RSN
in other payables and accruals — [EFPEE 2B EE 132,999 315,483 - - - = 448,482
Customer gold deposits EPke 20,901 - - - - = 20,901
Derivative financial instruments {744 R TA - 5,804 - 6,477 - = 1231
Lease liabilities HEAR - 131,646 365,300 349,740 182,967 3,640 1,033,293
Term loans subject to repayment  REFESREZ Y
on demand clause EHET 547,358 - - - - - 547,358
Other interest-bearing bank At BHITER
borrowings - 169,888 351,663 415,508 148,649 - 1,085,708
Bullion loans EEBRE - 2,123,360 949,742 - - - 3,073,102
721,113 2,852,928 1,666,705 11,725 331,616 3,640 6,353,727
Equity price risk R ETEE g

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The fair values of these listed
equity investments are affected by market forces and other factors.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income (note 20) and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 25) as at 31
December 2023. The Group's listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and are valued
at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The
majority of the listed equity investments are held for non-trading

purposes.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, the impact with respect to the financial
assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income

is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

B EREBRIER D ES 2D TFE
ERBROEEKTE RERESBE
HREEHM Nz AR - E LT
BHIREZ A FBEXTSIER
HEAXRTE - AEER2023F
NRANBREDEAEERRAT
BEAEBEEARSNTHEE
(MtzE20) RIFAFEEFABR
B 7 & 2 (B RE 25) 2 18 B A% 1
BERMAZRDBRER - A%
Bz ETiRE N B R A
RS ET - AREERFHRTE
SHE - KD ETRHIRE Th#E
FEERR -

TRERER &SRR REET
8 RAEMEHTE LA AL
ARAFEMHRNTERTFEE
F10% B8 GEE - BLADMN
MmE @ WEERREAFEETAR
twEERENRBEEERTE
gﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ@@%ﬁ%%%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

2023
Investments listed in Hong Kong: REBEMZIKE
Financial assets designated at fair & ARAFEE
value through other FTAHE 2 E s
comprehensive income B A E
Financial assets at fair value BATEESABRN
through profit or loss MBEE

RARY LT ZRE
BAVEER ABSN

Investment listed in Shenzhen:
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss HBEE
2022
Investments listed in Hong Kong: REBLEMZEKE :
Financial assets designated at fair 38 & AR ATL(EE
value through other FTAH M 2 E s
comprehensive income BB EE
Financial assets at fair value BATEESABRN
through profit or loss MBEE

RARY LT ZRE
BAVEER ABSEN
MBEE

Investment listed in Shenzhen:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery including bullion
products. The bullion market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of bullion could adversely affect the Group's financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the
Group uses bullion loans as well as derivative financial instruments,
such as bullion contracts, to reduce its exposure to fluctuation in
the bullion prices on bullion inventories. The bullion price exposures

are monitored by management.

For the bullion loans and bullion contracts, assuming that the
amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease in
market prices of bullion at 31 December 2023 and 2022 would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$322,712,000 and HK$336,827,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the market prices of bullion used is considered reasonable, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax. This
information has not taken into account potential financial impact

on other financial statement line items.

REMBERME

42. HBBEEREBBERBE(E)
(a) MHBEBREEE)
R ERE R ()
Carrying Increase/
amount decrease Increase/
of equity in profit decrease
investments before tax in equity
BRDREZ B AT A &
REE ®m,/ B &,/ mL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THER THER
891,583 - 89,158
8,316 832 -
4,101 410 -
1,121,797 - 112,180
9,737 974 _
4,597 460 -
B B 15 A
FEENEHERE  0EFELE

Em- BEBMEX2RUARBE
HEHRERTE - B2 BEBAK
AJRET AN SR B 2 B RSB B T 7
& RREFmEBRR A%
EERECBEEURESBAY
ENTESMIE  UREESEE
REDHECEBTE 2 ABALE -
EEREERELBERZAEBRA

= o

=

HELEBEERESBANME
BN REHRER 2 EBIINE
BAFEELER  ELBMEN2023
FR2022512A31B &M,/
D10% D RIE D 1AL
B[ B B 71 322,712,000 78 7T K
336,827,000/ T ° EFTA b &
SR TE DA AR B R
ZERT  AEEREUMAES
BHEBzGRENBAIE - WER
TEZEHEMPBEHRERBE &
RS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(b) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and

to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group regards equity attributable to owners of the Company as
its capital and manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and business
strategies. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and repay
debts or issue new shares. The Group is required to comply with
certain externally imposed capital requirements set out in certain of
its banking facility agreements. Additionally, a subsidiary formerly
engaged in securities broking, which is a regulated entity under the
SFC, and a subsidiary which is a member of the CGSE, are required
to comply with respective minimum capital requirements imposed
by the SFC and the CGSE. During the two years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, these subsidiaries complied with respective
minimum capital requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2022.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total equity. Total borrowings include interest-
bearing bank borrowings and bullion loans. Total equity comprises
all components of equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable
level. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting periods were as

follows:

Total borrowings BiEE

Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company

BARRRHL X

Gearing ratio

LNNSIE 2PN AR £

REMBERME

42. HHEBREERERBEE)

(b)

EXER

AEBRELER T RABRARE
AEBPFEREXEB N Uk
PBREZBEALE U HEER
REMBR 2 EE

AEEBRARNREEABLEZS
HEAR  WIREEMR K E TSR
SEVERHARERE  WHHE
mﬁ%oﬁﬁ%&ﬂﬁ§$ i
AN & B A B B 1) IR SRR A5 2 AR
g IR EEEBEREITHN -
AEERETEETRITME S
Fi# 2 B TFIMNEBARMRE © BEob -
—%WE AN EBSCLER
ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁzxﬁﬁﬁgyu
& XHBARAESREES S
B8 ZERREAERTEESRSE
REBSLERZEBRKERNR
m,ﬁﬁimBi&muiuﬂ
NEKWMEF ZEWBA
BTRESRSREBIHE Eam
zyﬁé$ﬁm BZE2023ER
2022F 12 A31HILEE - KEE

ERELY B RELRFLE
et

AEERBERBELE(NEEE
B aigas) B E§ZK cBEER
A RRTEFNESBIEE - &
BRRERAR W%ﬁA%E%ﬁZ

A - AEEZBEAKHER
BELEABERIEKT - RERE
HRZERBELENT -
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$ OOO
4,565,650 4,640,026
12,204,072 11,890,543
37.4% 39.0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following tables set out details of financial instruments subject to
offsetting at the end of the reporting period.

Assets
Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable

REMBERRME

43. HEHEMBEERUBEE
TREFINBERRZEENRZERT

BFig -
2023
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial  of financial Related amounts
liabilities assets  not set off in the consolidated
setoff  presented statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe AERGAREMRRZTEHZ
amounts of  consolidated consolidated RELE
recognised  statement statement of Cash
financial  of financial financial Financial collateral
assets position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
REEHE  WGaEH
HR &8 iR &
BRANE ZERIME 2H.EH BEARE
EELE L BERE SRIA gl 8
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiEn TR TiEn T TiEn TiEn
BE
TEdRF 970,767 (1,408) 969,359 - - 969,359
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial  of financial Related amounts
assets liabilities  not set off in the consolidated
setoff  presented statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe AERGAREMRRZTEHZ
amounts of  consolidated ~consolidated RELE
recognised  statement statement of Cash
financial  of financial financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
RESHE  REEEE
HR & H & iR &
BRANE ZECEIME  2HZUB BEARS
afELE EELE AEFE SRIA gl 8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn T TiEn TiEn
ff
FEfHRR 136,325 (1,408) 134,917 - - 134,917
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

Assets
Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable

W

43,

M BRRME

BEHUBEERMBEE(E)

2022

Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial of financial Related amounts
liabilities assets  not set off in the consolidated
set off presented  statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe RERGAMBRARTHEEL
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated EER
recognised  statement of  statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral
assets position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
RERHE  REEHHK
AR HH A%
R AR 10 S WA b BHEfRE
BELE AfEEE BEFE $RIA g i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAL TAL TAL TAL
i
JEUEREL 819,102 (630) 818,472 - - 818,472
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial of financial Related amounts
assets liabilities  not set off in the consolidated
set off presented  statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe RERGAMBRARTHEE L
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated EER
recognised statement ~ statement of Cash
financial  of financial financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
RERITE  RESHHE
HRRTEH RAET
R AR 10 S WA b BEfRE
AEEE BESE BETE $RIA gl i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAL TAL TAL TAL
af
AL 131,072 (630) 130,442 - - 130,442

IH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44,

REMBERME

Statement of Financial Position of the Company 44. AERQTHHERRE
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at BRRARRBRERARZTHBRRNEZE
the end of the reporting period is as follows: BN -
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG NI 2,681,646 2,616,081
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments SN E O 232 349
Cash and cash equivalents HeEERRS 3,132 2,676
Total current assets BREEE 3,364 3,025
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBRE
Other payables and accruals Hi R RR R ERTIER 7,451 6,653
Tax payable fERITEIE 100 99
Total current liabilities FEN TN =Fi 7,551 6,752
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEEE (4,187) (3,727)
Net assets EEFE 2,677,459 2,612,354
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRA 169,359 169,359
Reserves (note) & (P 3E) 2,508,100 2,442,995
Total equity R 2,677,459 2,612,354
Vincent CHOW Wing Shing JAXKE Winston CHOW Wun Sing AR
Director 55 Director B5E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44,

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (continued) 44,

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

ma

BB RN
D F BN & (&)
BiaE
ARARIREZBENT
Share Contributed Retained
surplus profits Total
AR REEF At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx TET FTET
975,582 696,080 2,732,018
- 2,274 2,274

= (291,297) (291,297)

975,582 407,057 2,442,995

= 302,207 302,207

= (237,102) (237,102)

premium
[ gripy]
HK$'000
FTExT
At 1 January 2022 R202251A1H 1,060,356
Profit and total FERRMNEEE
comprehensive income W 4azE
for the year -
Dividends declared and FRE K LA S
paid during the year -
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H
and 1 January 2023 K2023F1/1H 1,060,356
Profit and total FERRM L EE
comprehensive income W 4asE
for the year -
Dividends declared and FAEIRREMRE
paid during the year -
At 31 December 2023 M2023F 12 A31H 1,060,356

975,582 472,162 2,508,100

The Company’s contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of the
Group's reorganisation and represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares allocated under the reorganisation scheme
and the then consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act, the contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders under certain circumstances.

ARBER 19N FEEZBARBBREAR
SEEMA - HREBEEAEERE ZADE
BHEERFEENBARER 2GEE
ERECEBAE -

BRERRNE  BETERT - HARKRA
IR BOR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45.

Particulars of Subsidiaries

Information about subsidiaries is as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

45,

Issued ordinary

ma

MBEHRME

HE A E5 A

MBRRZERMT :

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
Ry, ERTEBERA/ AQFHif -
28 AR & S B AR A BRER DL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE e
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
HEBRARF EBEARES 600,000 7T REEK
Best Choice Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property investment
e 18T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Dealers Limited
EEEERERAR] B 5,000,000 % 7T REZER
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic of ~ HK$1,500,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
Company Limited” China/Mainland China and watches
A (PR EEBRAE FEARLME, 1,500,000,0005 T KRE RBHkRIEE
Hh B A B
Chow Sang Sang Commodities Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Inactive
Limited
BAELEERERADR BB 5,000,000 7T RS
Chow Sang Sang Corporate Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Gift Limited gift products
BEErEERERRR BE 1,000,000 % 7T TEEmEE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of RMB 10,000,000 - 100  Diamond polishing
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.” China/Mainland China
BAEEEA(ER)ARAR" hEARKME, AR 10,000,000 7T BRTE
B RE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of US$10,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.” China/Mainland China
BEEEA(EE)ARAR” hEARANE 10,000,000 % 7T BREE
B
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
BELERBER DA BB 15,000,000 7T SERE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
BAEEHEERADA BB 5,000,000 %7 REZR
Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
BAEEEECIBERARES) REERRES 50,000 % 7T REER
BRAT
Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$110,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
AEEEEERAR B 110,000,000 7T REZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

45,

Issued ordinary

REMBERME

B RFE ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTZERE A28 firdh
8 AR & S B MR A RER DL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE i3
Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100  Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China
&£ A BBR (B ) B IR A A) N = N 28T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Investments Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100  Investment holding
Limited
AEERERR A Eo 2,500,000 77T REEKR
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(China) Limited marketing services
and
investment holding
BEERE (PE)BRAR Bt 18T RIS RE RS
KRB
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Company Limited and watches
BEERBESTARRAA BB 30,000,000 KERERTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$275,307,500 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.” China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEERE (L) BRAR REARLME,  275307,500%7C RESLERHE
LalETPN =
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Pte Ltd Singapore SG$2 - 100 Inactive
AR 2HTT S
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.” China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEERE(FS)ARAR" hEARAME, AR 20,000,000 7T KRERERHE
Hh B A B
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$24,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.” China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
AEEHRERT(RA)ERAT" hEARLME 24,400,000 7% 7T KRERENEE
B RE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taiwan
BEEERETROBRAR EEHARES A& 50,000 % 7T KREHE
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
International Limited
[B A S IR AR A REERRES 17T REER
Chow Sang Sang Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of property
nominee services
BEEREBABRAR BB 1,000,000 77T REYERIE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

45,

Issued ordinary

ma

MBEHRME

B RS ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTZERE A28 firdh
8 AR & S B MR A RER DL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE i3
Chow Sang Sang Property British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
Holdings (BVI) Limited (redomiciled from
Netherlands Antilles)/
Hong Kong
RBER RS 30,0003 T MERE
(BERERNIE),
i
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100  Property investment
BAEEBERERAA BB 10,000,000 % 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
AEEBESBRRA o 10,000,000 & 75 B4R
Emphasis Jewellery Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
HERAKEERAR R 25,0008 KETE
Foshan Shunde Jinpeng Jewelry People’s Republic of RMB 1,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BILmEER e ERE S REARLNE, AR 1,000,0007T KRERENHE
BREFRAR " B RE
Hong Kong Gemological Research Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Gemological
and Authentication Centre research and
Company Limited authentication
ERREHRREETLARAR B 100,000 7T BEHERERE
The Future Rocks Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 80 Trading of LGD
and investment
holding
& 100,000 78 7T LGD BB RIREER
The Future Rocks (Guangdong) People’s Republic of HK$65,500,000 - 80 Trading of LGD
Company Limited* China/Mainland China
AREFEBER)BRAR" hEARANE 65,500,000 78 7T LGDE®E
B RE
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Inactive
Mainland China
TREBERBRAH EBRBARES/ 100,000 % 7T LEEX
B K e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45.

46.

REMBERME

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 45. KIBRARFEGE)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTZERE A28 firdh
8 AR & S B MR A RER DL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE i3
World Commercial Sales Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Company Limited precious metals
HRBBITERAA BB 2,500,000 7T BESEAE
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Inactive
i 2787 -

*  These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the

law of the People’s Republic of China

Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

46.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2024.

AEESEBEERARAA

* UERADNREREARKME AR 2
SHEBALE
REMBRRZME

N AT BERRN2024563 822 A EE
Eg i RIEETE o
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

ENRFER

AEEFENIBYEFBOT

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1 R SR & A% BEEE BE R
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFEFR)
Hong Kong
i)
# 229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/own use  30,632* Commercial Short
P EEREUE 22955 2 1% i P =l EES =]
* GIF & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & 2177 Rental/own use  2,790* Commercial Medium
Kowloon
P ARESILE 326 E 3285 T ERIE et VA=) EES e
* G/F & 1/F, 99-101 Wuhu Street, HH.IL. 472, 471 & Own use 2,345% Commercial Medium
Hunghom, Kowloon 447 s A
PNEABEREGI9E 101 TR 148 B GRS F
Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/lown use  1,788* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon
NEATFEALNFHT 1ERKE ezl [HES H
Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2267 R.P. Rental 1,078* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P.
BEATEM428E 4305 T B4E g EES H
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 s.A.R.P. Rental 551% Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon & 5.B.ss.2
NEEEF19R NMEBAEBEXRE g (Ees T
2/F, Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F, 5/F & Flat A, 6/F,  K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use  10,784* Commercial Short
231 Nathan Road, Kowloon
NEBIUE2315721 - 3HEARBEE - ez =y::! [EES 5]
41 - SHERGIEARE
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A11, A13, N.K.I.L. 35155 C, Own use 53,337 Industrial Medium
1/F, Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A13, D&F
2/F, Unit A4, 8/F & Unit A3, 10/F,
Block A, 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
BSB89 E 491 5RALZ 1AL BH I% H

A2 A3 A4 A6 A8 A1 AI3E -

2BA1 A2 A3 A4 A6 A8 AIZE

8EAL ER10EAIE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

ENRFER

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1t ER 55 8 A% BEER BE HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RATFAR)
Hong Kong
BB
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No.  K.I.L. 10223 Rental/own use  N/A Car park Medium
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon
NEFT@E 107 1095 F LigH TEf Hi8, 8 TEA BhL F
7R 22 RN 26 57 %%
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. 4208 Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street,
Kowloon
NEDEEE 154 E164 REZHIE lii} TER B &
B162 SFEfu
* G/F, 1/F & 3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, K.I.L. 2444 s.AR.P.  Rental/own use 7,491% Commercial ~ Medium
Kowloon & 2444 R.P.
PREBIEEI 6935 T - 112K 3E HiE, 8 A [GES i
* 85 & 87 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3639 & 3640 Own use 5,410 Commercial Medium
New Territories inD.D. 120
P ETRTTBAB LIRSS R8T HRE 8H [EES i
* Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089% Commercial Medium
Tai Po, New Territories No. 28
PHRAHERETOR 78 T B 8H [EES i
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, 350 Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial Medium
Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong Lot No. 149
BB LEE 350 A 2 T 305554 A [EES F
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

Description Lot Number

BE R

Use

Jich=

ENRFER

Gross
Floor Area

BEER

Type
BE

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
EPN

East of Guangzhu Highway, Licun 154077-014
Management Zone, Licun District,
Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province
BREFBILTIREERBESNEER
FETRRE R

Rental

A

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RATFAR)

123,700

Industrial/
commercial

I%/B%

Medium

* Unit No. 1-1, Fulihua Mansion, No. 150 134092-003
Qinghui Road, Daliang Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province
"EREBILTIEEREARBBEER 1505
EBERE1R2

Own use

=pi

1,906

Commercial

[GES

Medium

16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section 2, 2310-7-50
No. 100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMNT R REHABE1005 28
ENBRREGBEI6E

Own use

B

23,686

Commercial

[GES

Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 200 and 201, 2310-7-50
2nd Basement, R&F Yingtai Plaza,
Section 2, No.100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BRARMNTARIREHAERE 100528
ENBRFESRA2E200 K& 201 FEL

Own use

B

N/A

TEH

Car park

Bz

Medium
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

ENRFER

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1t ER 55 8 A% BEAER BE HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RATFAR)
Mainland China
al=ipN
Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B, 10501060004-17 Own use 4,957 Commercial Medium
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road,
High-tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi
Province
PRTG & PO % T =0 27 [ A B 1 SR AT R BA RS H
BIFIMBAZ 16 /€ 1601 £ 1602 &
Car Parking Space No. D010, 1st Basement  10501060004-17 Own use N/A Car park Medium
and Car Parking Space No. F061,
2nd Basement, Vanmetropolis,
No.1 Tangyan Road, High-tech District,
Xian City, Shaanxi Province
PRFE 7O % T =0 27 (2 AL B 1 SR AT R g8 A B e
BB T 1 EEEDR 010 EM
BT 2EBEEFR06157E M
No. 3 Xinxi 4th Road North, Lunjiao Town,  164084-189 Own use 578,736 Industrial Medium
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province
BRABILTIEEE GEENB4HKIEIR g/ Ix i
No. 168 and Section 1 of No. 168 155078-208 & 209  Own use 10,764 Residential Long
Lanyuan Street, Lanyuan Road,
Licun, Lunjiao Street, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province
EREHLTIEZRBHREEH N HER g4 T= &

R 1685 & 16852 —
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD s E£15
Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1t ER 55 8 A% BEER BE HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RATFAR)
Taiwan
=) |
Units 1-2, 7/F, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E.  0568-0000 Own use 6,847 Commercial Freehold
Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan
ABAltMEEREZERKER =) EES KAERE
1R 7TE1E 28
Car Parking Space Nos. 132 and 133 in 0568-0000 Own use N/A Car park Freehold
B5, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. Rd.,
Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan
AEaltmEERBZRER =l TiEm E==1iv} KAKERE

2195 N 58 132 & 13395 EEfiL

Location of branches
DITHIES

*  Saleable area
EAEE
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DEFINITIONS

B&

Board the board of Directors

£y E £

Companies Act Bermuda Companies Act 1981

NN BRE1981FRRNE

Company Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited

PN/NS| B4 E EEERER AR

CGSE The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society

EREEFH% TREESHS

Director(s) the director(s) of the Company

E AAFES

ESG Environmental, Social and Governance

BB HERER RIE - HERER

FY the full year, twelve months ended 31 December

25 2F - HE12A31BLE+ZEA

Futures Exchange Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited

HAZX PR BEPERHMBERRAT

Group the Company and its subsidiaries

AEE AREREMBARTF]

HKEC Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

B BARGREEMBR AT

HKEx ESG Guide ESG Reporting Guide contained in Appendix C2 (formerly Appendix 27) to
the Listing Rules

ABRMERE L8 RERES EAR RIS C2 (RIBMS -+ ) B BRIE - e RERREES

Hong Kong the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

BB FEEBERITHE

Listing Rules Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

ARl MR PrE S EHARA

Macau the Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC

RP R BRPI R I T R

Mainland China or Mainland PRC excluding, for the purpose of this annual report (unless otherwise
indicated), Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

LN FE - BRAFRMNE - BRXBESEMEN  TREEE  RPFIRGE

Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix C3 (formerly Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules

R2ESP A FHRAMERC (AT AEz EMETAESETESFIHNRE
el
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DEFINITIONS
B=

PRC or China
[

SFC

et
Az m 85

555G
FIEHEER

Stock Exchange
B 32 P

Taiwan

PANN it
==

H
L¥EE
2H
THEE

%
%

the People’s Republic of China
EE AR HME

Securities and Futures Commission

ErlHEEHERZEE

same store sales growth
RIEHEE &K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMARSMARLIDA

Taiwan region of the PRC

AR

the first half of a year, six months ended 30 June

F¥EE BHE6A30BILNEAR

the second half of a year, six months ended 31 December

THEE  HE12831BIEAEA

percent
Bt
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2023 interim results:
2023 interim dividend payment:
Announcement of 2023 annual results:

Closure of register of members for
annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting:

Closure of register of members for
final dividend:

2023 final dividend payment:

Share Information

Stock code on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited:

Board lot size:

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

29 August 2023
27 September 2023

22 March 2024

27 May to 30 May 2024

(both dates inclusive)
30 May 2024
5 June to 7 June 2024

(both dates inclusive)

20 June 2024

116

1,000 shares

Telephone:  +852 2980-1333
Facsimile: +852 2810-8185
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Investor Relations

Corporate Affairs Department
27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone:  +852 2991-0366
Facsimile: +852 2730-9683
Email: ir@chowsangsang.com

RERE

B B
N2023FHEAELE © 202348 A29H
IR 2023 FAHEANRE © 202349 A 27H
NH2023F2FEE + 20243 A22H
Tz M BE 202455 A27H
BRFE Z5A30H
(BRRAFAE) : (BREEEMX)
EREFAD : 2024F5A308
FERERDBE 2024F6 A58
ERTFE £6H7H
(REIREE) (BEEEMAK)
TR 2023 FRHWE © 2024F 6 A20H
RBER

REBEAER AR 116
NEZBHHRER

BTFEEE 1,000 /i

BRERNBFELAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

ERRNBFELSE
EEERERARAT

BEEBEBI6T

BREBPOI17E

BT a5 +852 2980-1333

f5E : +852 2810-8185

B I : is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

REERE

LRZEBH

EBNERDE

KERENSR 2718

B - +852 2991-0366
{#5 : +852 2730-9683
B : ir@chowsangsang.com
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